AGENDA *AMENDED*

BOARD OF SELECTMEN MASHPEE TOWN CLERK
MONDAY, JUNE 28, 2021
WAQUOIT MEETING ROOM JUN 2 4 2021
MASHPEE TOWN HALL _ <
16 GREAT NECK ROAD NORTH RECEIVED BY: _ — STA
MASHPEE, MA 02649

*Broadcast Live on Local Cable Channel 18*
*Streamed Live on the Town of Mashpee Website: https://www.mashpeema.gcov/channel-18*

6 p.m. — Convene Meeting in Open Session
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
MOMENT OF SILENCE

Convene Joint Meeting with the Affordable Housing Trust
> Update on 950 Falmouth Road Affordable Housing Project
> Discussion and Approval of Housing Assistance Corporation Request for Additional Funding for 950
Falmouth Road
> Discussion and Approval of Pursuing Transferring the 108 Commercial Street Property from the Town
of Mashpee to the Affordable Housing Trust
Adjourn Joint Meeting with the Affordable Housing Trust

MINUTES
Approval of the following: Monday, June 7, 2021 Regular Session

APPOINTMENTS & HEARINGS

» Public Comment

> 6:40 pm Public Hearing: Liquor License Amendment Application of Better Food, LLC dba Siena 17 Steeple Street
Mashpee, MA: Alteration of Premises: Graham Silliman

> Discussion of the July 1, 2021 Ban on the Sale of Alcohol Nips:
Dena Rymsha; Representatives of the Mashpee Wine and Spirits Retail Community

> Discussion and Approval of Award of Annual Contract for Operation of the Transfer Station, Hauling of
Recyclables: Department of Public Works Director Catherine Laurent

> Discussion and Approval of Temporary Sign Permit:
Annual Seaside Le Mans, September 4" — 11*, 2021: Kelsey Ellis

» Discussion and Approval of Appointment of the following:
Sewer Commission Member-at-Large (Term Expires June 30, 2023): Alfred R. Towle

COMMUNICATIONS & CORRESPONDENCE
OLD BUSINESS
> Discussion and Approval of 2021-22 Liaison Assignments
NEW BUSINESS
> Update on Cyanobacteria Blooms in Mashpee-Wakeby and Santuit Ponds: DNR Director Ashley Fisher
> Discussion and Approval of Seasonal No Parking Designation on the Entry Road to the State Boat Ramp for
Mashpee-Wakeby Pond (Fisherman’s Landing off of Route 130)
Discussion and Approval of Acceptance of Unit Deed for 31 Mercantile Way Units 6 & 7 Mashpee, MA
Discussion and Approval of Letter Opposing the Multi-Purpose Machine Gun Range Proposed by the
Massachusetts National Guard
»> Discussion and Approval to Authorize the Town Manager to Execute the Required Submissions for Financial
Assistance from the Massachusetts Clean Water Trust
LIAISON REPORTS
TOWN MANAGER UPDATES
ADDITIONAL TOPICS
(This space is reserved for topics that the Chairman did not reasonably anticipate would be discussed)
EXECUTIVE SESSION
ADJOURNMENT

A2 4




‘W) ‘dnoig usm Aepsioy

1984-0004 = Wour-|
B3 aydeugy

ALINIOIA 3118

8686-192 (£19)
80120 VN ‘uoisog
18245 UNoY oF

Buisnoy elqepioyy jo uopeAsesesd

S113ISNHOVSSY ‘I3dHSYIN
SNVYd ONILLIWYTd
avOd HLNOWTV4 056

M0 3HL

$1I¥130 2 SALON ONILNVId

(2) Nv1d 3dvOSANYT TVNLdIONOD
(1) NvId 3dvOSany WNLJIONOD
(6) 8IV130 NOILONMISNGD

| (»sUv130 NOLONEISNOD]
(£) $7IV130 NOLLONMLSNDD
__()SUvi3aNOLLONMISNOD

(1) STIY13Q NOLLDMYLSNOD
Nvd H3LYMILSYM

__ @ Nvid Alnun
(1) Nv1d AL

J40td QVON SSOUD|

__ (2) Nv1d 39VNIVa 3 ONIaves
| (1) Nvd 3OVNIVEIa B ONIgYND
i (2) NVid 1N0AYT 38|
(1) Nv1d 1NOAV 3LS]
NVd 3Us 7Tve3A0|
NV11d 0S3 ¥ NOWLYNVdIYd 301S|
S3LON NOLLOMYLSNOD

SNOLLIGNOD ONILSIX3

¥IN0D)|

o
2
E
]
4

LB
2]

oigeL 1M 1ealg

8Ll 188y {

‘-— N"nlvlm:

©

1202 AdVNYg34 a3SInTgy
0202 ¥390100

3

SNV1d ONILLINY3d
AvOd HLNOWTV4 056

ey
i hos

s

45 oydeID

J3dHSYIN

B

SLLISNHOVSSVYIN ‘I3dHSVYIN

RslardvH 49 Aq 42720720 PaIUd 1Z/10/20 Pewpou Teg

HYOd

/5o Burnon

B¥p'AQ




L3 © e o o

FIVOS DiHdYHED

L TN

204 49500 ALY VMDA VL0 D

VZITONL00 AL
BRI 40 AMLHES ALMIOO TWYASKIND D00t RGN

— e

NouvmIoE) 30ean -
PEVES— |

Omusaomm g

e . e R Ao e s g n Ay Lo ool [PE—
D e T T e e PR T S T E e
O ey i e A SSPELE0T1 M R0 10 Lot ot vt
S i S s T A B L o Dy oo Ra——-
mww uwu A LAY K T SRR B ST s e s B T T et 3
128a v s
£ Bge2 .
g Wa I e
i H o RS | o
@i
g Larstb faryen vy
5 P—_: Y
I ony
8 e g
mm m ¥ m P—
; mm.wu koo (@
mmw soqumn @
Ww THOZ QO vIE —— W
Ao V3400 hasvoo B ] —
g o e |
Tz Aan ELENA DI VN — e
§El s are ==
. [y
a1 . wssoswan |
5 woounun =
iz e e
g - [
g mas @ ity
i m it J T wewema
f ausen . 08w ————
ol = oo by aun |
>
3 2, smen a4 iyl e —
= M w Mwakvn by
Zl BS R [e————
of m2 e - —
m W = oy ous PrEe—— —_m—
Z| 20 N s >
S c S PES—— N
S| €3 = P - wnonmen | o
a| o [EETeuA
Zz| XX s @ BT [—
al 58 o et | o
vl mo om0 snen °
2| 3 e ol =
& S
Ve O wmn
UV AR el e - - - om0 @ e |~
F3 @ Ko 056 .. nn @ OO 401 ‘Assemnas
s F] 3 g : = . JR—
H m 5 - e - ,L.Bt,hwfffﬂt Aoneesinay
§| et o A T Tme—eee T e — =it won @
U1 m W BT - \ > N
= - - s
b s woan ———e =
= £ 3 Fowwowm @ Wivesos
i W‘W [E e e @ o
iz s AVOH ¥4i00) R e
! o
1 R 20 Lows pma B 00OM - 3034
ol i ey
L : H e g N——
— ANENEAYS O 300
i i - emanZ prten
= NOUVOYN TAISD
J Sl e g o
; 5L0TEG WA b 9 T
1 s g swuaoo
"
i o =
L)

5MD'X3 1E00Z\SBUMEI\GROUSEN BUISNOH SiEp/LY HYOd LE00210202\BlokH %2 A9 1212020 P L2/20720 ‘peuipaw 3sey




e —
oo o 48 Mot SIS oo i B LS AL SN e ) YT
v Crprs e R S L B ey e
ALY Obuonmoa: A e R T A
. AMYESIOIN Y DNOGET R W.
= o . N8 TILLTTIO NOUR oy CHMLI A VD kot i 2 0 e S
= e s m
21 LV LA UL oy T ) S5 LI P e T e
B ——_— ]
" yor o LT 1 1 ] ST e, LI vy 5
oy s STV IGNIISE ARG 8130 GESYRERI ATIGIAGE YO OVEQ TSt WV.RZ Th SN Y00t POy BACRCeD Sy o SN TG L 90 MoLnonan =
- L T Lo e Lo S AT T e ey w0 LTIV A VIO 2411500 4V A e o4 o il e Y ST see < | 5
] — e e e R e e wnn S B T s rOa v ncmio S M O 0 r
e WAL P a ™ e Tva v ) IV B AT T S e Ty w
s - X3 M1eERD Cl ENNOOCN FEALLOR VD ML N3N 4443 L0V Ol TR O Ewins s e VUL CEROONYEY U Lo
2__ 1, & _ “a 2L 3 A L oL e e ST NS b S S S O LNV PP BV AL G Oee i L L
s svor P e —— R T, Lo Ty e el e B s g
wspa WEBASL . Pt s W e oot HEUYLRD VoM o ed A v TP AV O I B 1 MOINVAGO 3L E0IAE MM B3 VO KA L e 5 SR
vee 3 =g el e VAL LTI SOt T W RO ERe L TAPLETAL Lt o v HETiRES - i a0 20N B N ey o S o4 a3 e ety i 2
— s o2 1, Frt -
TNYS ANwD1 GNVS ANvon GNVE AWvOT HOUINMLINGO 45
WPHARL NOLLIWIADO QL WO BAVEERAY LNGSRIIS HYTIO “DNIDUO S0 LI OL ' LY “IWBCUEI0 CNY NOLLNOKTAO 103 841 v
_.s uasor A atpuneoa v vy oo e BUSNRS e e < |3
o il . i O AL NG ST L1 BACHG WOLN Weohd s O LD OO wan i
== — ‘ s
WE HA D) W2 YA WZHAOL T
g ¥ Lo ~ '
Y T T KL vy BT LB X543 Ty S DA T
- A RIS 8 Y14 AR AN AR HOLTOPMS YL T B s SR e o T avous oo | T
E!ghgigigggg-il!ggg!bgﬁg ﬂ
glg.ﬂkgis,‘ssiggg»s-iilnt > g“i%ijﬁsgggsigs%is 'ml
UL T 1Y 219 N0 1 3L 0 A ERIMOM Y L XN S LLUVIN Cot O3S A DALMY L0 300 B KM LIVNEO00 0 Ao S S o g RN
0 Eégiﬁg‘géigi‘%sg!gi ® gzgggggﬁgﬁt&-%!ﬂﬁﬂ!gis! m
. “BILON HOILNGWI0 TvEaNED
T —————
S LGRS LY SRR AN $TIH O LT 06 Sy ek 318 341 mctd v GV VRL v evr
ﬂ“ﬁﬁ-ﬁrﬁ!ggiggugn.!gﬂ(gg;!
L LT B KLU (LY CHY SAATYCR L YL NS Y Y HOU TSNS e MO e ao SR Sadaily % | &
!ﬂiﬁgll‘!i«l!gsgg‘-g!!glg! AYMOVCY ST00V B A §TVOMEE 0 ONOKKD =
mw.mm%%m A 0 0ce samus i 0w v | B
1 I oig Yy
ARS8 e TR T E3
= oo
sgp89g RS DR LU SN LS STV AL SOV NI ST e VAN S et AL
HHLE A e e O e L e oz aunnesou % |3
mw °k s : 0 Oy o o e o T soomay emous s g |
z ST S e B AL T e rerron 2 |
i 2= AR e e Ty et Tel ST ST NSRS e I TS R A e e 4 oot oo 1S
8 T
= MAOL ey R T e e S perociIEe oL Svesen a3l S5V RATIIOR MY ) ARG MECTIXl MO ST 04 VAN Conk SRS b 1508 B0 00 oty Sheiass 12 W
ey LVIRHE G N8 CRALVYD ¥ TRVLGN! O A4 (MO SOLLYOLITI0 W] TP el L+
ot 3 PR a 5 g.f!iﬂi:!nﬂgg!ll!!!-gﬂ.gﬁiw!zﬂﬁﬂua “ .iliﬁl;gﬂﬁgnq!!!l!t!-!ﬁghggﬁiﬂﬂzao? L
W ~ prevy = - g l!i:sggigglgigg;g g ]
UL WZUAGH Al X000 34 0 JONVAY NI MOLINO0 B A8 TRRA B0 LA BoUICD |
[l | [P—— LS R ey T LN O I s P R e i A S0
H £ xall ¥ o v v G iﬂ?!ﬁegsgﬁxanﬁé%g;iﬂiiﬁk o S S L S B B e M s e cats | B
a — PR et e e S o e B s s e aek sy w [
TV ha 4L L VORI AL 48 BVt S50 3 SO S ¥ P A oy oMz
’ 205 9r wo TG v eV NOLOu e 2LFAN08 LS v oo T 1 o i
oaz patznaLs BuvD e s o oottt ey N
P XAy oa G 2 o LI T ——
m 3 oL ATIENON v ouvss o SRR TR e T S 3 | &
g o - e ) ———— e
aw . . A Mot 0 N3 LTS Ve O LB TA D el
Z| RS VIVa 1ld 1531708 PRSNONAR L eyt L o S L S e T OO 8
Q| maq [P - AR 4 YT 9 ST 4 B MR o L, U T L 130505 2 o s A BN GV naisis st 1 | 5
m23a AV G0 I 01 8 40 WRASMADLIONION BLINSHGS M v ¥ L0 U0 SN 34 N S D vt S > JUOLIVULNGO 34 0 Us0sy 5
o £ [T DHCITCND Mraocsau 24 5 S8uuvad U QLo sancuans 0 oeois 2y e s s I o
HEER ) L e e e e e R
= “RAVOIO0 MALSY CNIYVREMRE TW ISIL TINONVA 5 s 5] IOM ABAMNS 2NN
5| 35 e it (3
= Mo 34 naLIoa 34 4 s
o m\vv ® m s 10 TR OROLIOS 3L PO LT 01 st e ¥ AS CMIOLIRS CHY VRLITAICO 4. 4B THOINOMS 30 L5V1 HOLLIN 0 Sl R B oty 14
oA | e e
M 2 .Wu“ el -
Ty —
5| czo SN
dl 883 R
o m © wusacom P -
—_———
b or [
aven CTRRONNGIN | e 30
e nonoween | ———aa——
raa X% A R MM ——— B
B .
M ANV —_— L) B A DL MAMEM LM YIRS AL AR QLT WS v v Q3unoz: sanon: LGRS NOLIN o0 0 MY 3L OL TGV L5 T H04 TINDTa) ) ¢
wosisn o, e ———— - R Ot N At v o e o e Y AT ron G LY e e T T 6 o U ek S B Y B
- o | P T R o A P S o s o 10 M4 Ui o T DOVt Rres 11 LD L s S o S e S 20T Mhes LS s
1l ez - P T OY IS 1 S AEAR S NP D LA o ety S et B i
e anws 30 o0
w g o R N | — P v VIO DX Y ALYLS TR HLM S0 M I L S i S S0y
£ e e | L 0 HOLLYAY € 41 50 ML ML T Gy
2 — PR, B T ——. 7Lt
§| sfst s caurun TN T Eos SR Rutat e o SRR 6 S T oy et L B ey e Lo 3 et oA L ey
H m s o o e S e B T A0 T/ WA oa AU B oNAA LS MM T I LS ar e  trt SN B sy St v ueasni)
ez A, TR Ot 1 BT S P S T B i - I et s e b O T
§ g mvamo by gz A iy ) A OL R LT T SRty v v a7 LIV oo s i L S NN
H 4 I T TR MO T ) LA AT v o s S Bt AL 1700 €3U LN GO OGO I 423004 1 Y3 WY TEUAV YL, MRS BV KL AL A SRR e g P44 M) NOUOMULE0 40 NS 42 OL o) T 3L o AR
! 2 ——— R e e e R, N e ey S e o SIS B SLick
3 - TS 400ud 1SN0 L6 RITNCNYI P |39 OLL TV RICHLIN SV OWY (BVENY. DY "SBINVANC ALTILT SO0RIVA 40 BXWOSSH
g . y S T aasaE] B e Sl L, S S s v Ucetonmiat el O A XN 1L VO VIR Y EAL2R1 3 o N NSO ORI SO NOUTeOT .
Iw. L PR @r\(f\r&(r\( LN DK SANLOLLR JOWIV CHCTAION QWY BTV LY BTOHNVIY BOVHIYAG ‘s Svoevios TIectsy 'y BTy BT
5 S S0 29 31 OO Y DTSN o
o it o e A e Lo TR OO VIO B Ao A Y At B A A TS O o
B st H soumowT & _— T B s e R S S S ATI MRS e G e L oSy S L )
- e S ...~ .. e 3R0HD WS/ BONRNG29 FHL N BTN 3L TH/AT G T 1 ASVILNGO B, WU A0 e 00 TR L B D I S Y LV 2 M3 3 SO NS T
- MR TOLS S
o PHUEDKING 0 0 o1 e TSR 1 3¢ 6009 s 2w L OO0 TEYOUOVE b R HL G o0 34
3 EEN—— #4008 ¥ ST MO 0 o o Y 84 00 e v . IO (Y YD 1L CRLYEROLSY PB4 IO TV 1900 Y T s e
_m i e K e TROU U TR ORTWOMTICUNEN 8 A LGOI 3 A e T RrLRS o s T e L T NN AT T
i LNIPLLVIE0 HELI VM, M AQ (CRITCER @V B4 ¢ Dantvat, bl o
| " nveae G o T bl o vy~ Y L A0 L S04 1y L1300 4014035 3 Mo TP B SO
TP EOL 31 A2 o ALY ST et S e s 8 VILOWANGO B
: - e S s
PR R 5 L A3 L RO W BT T S ¢
ITTT R . TN ELYCACHA Y ELING TS NG ST M5 SO R T ! Svv e NOLLY NIV 1IEMRIN (Y OtE0Ma 1375 3009 NG 01 AYSEN "GRA0 R B BN 253HL N QI FOMd
Bl E noswmonsm @ e Al Vel o 3 O P LLr AT N r O e MO e ot SR S o e s 3y S o e ey _— UM LIEION) Qo LOvINCO ATV T
WARRER. R AL RS AP O SVEY Ao VAL MUELS oSt SOy et
¥ _ @ Toaawe @
i1 _ ! saven 1o ™"
u :_ 3 4
{ril
_ ]
i 7 |
| L ! _




-0 mmuﬂ.."..quz: == ~ kT

: Fnos01100 _ Tivowa 1o
miny oo _ g S0y EE N IHIENDD FONEA NOUDNMIERGS ANVEOARAL
- | o
— } e, [ B —— . Ay
iz | oz |a 5 o = snm y s \ﬂ. ey l RSN e ~smo
o e /1 202 12 AANA RN N %
—rs FTVOS DlHd ! S PR . AR A i .
/ . s
L
W
VoI
-
oy .
[ [t
Hiii :
Bgw / 6#0a1e
B mw f
L =

LR TO

LBedO AN T

|1 DA TR

au w08 0 som

bmpLS | coozisBumesmeedyseys BUSnoH eiaEpRY HyOd VEOUDOZOZSIOSI0UAVH ¥4 AQ L2r20720 Pavpd 1220720 spaupow L]

Fouauson
4 i TEHNVTO 10UINGS Nosoua NOOF L6 INGRIGas
. u 1000 000N 011 NS 50 OHUN A WOLYTIVASH S0 T o e - i "
A0y B TGy St M LY S LT O 04 Y O 31 0L WYY L5000 HHIVETRELS 118 Y MOLLIAUSGO rawaTing '
e o U T S e eSS s ¥ M3 KT ATOOM MY LSOO 47T KIS VA 5 LTS 38 e
=] W e e o T
, R A R S o T 08 1
Y
M % v & X & | WOUDES VaA RV
m| Imo ) 3 il : y . —
m o SR I g \ N i
> .:._WW_ z ! X R ...\ 3 - £, ) T B, T rocssnesaman~ |7 G
£33z N Y SRR N : : N & o ——
2 28 \ " i PR 4 e . ¥ - T o310 Guoliowd o
a3l 2z . ol g P 7 y f ) ¥a e " seca vare \P\ssinn
z| 2 w m o LYY ~ g < . i ' a y - TR
= 223 == By TRWD
[= -
Q| GZ5
o 3 -
z| 3
Sl @
-4

\.t\\\, i SC 1
-

VMO TIN5 9% HOSVRNOUNLAINGLZS TS T GNY NOLLSIMIE ORI BLMOGU VALY o s o YU HORCHS HAL MM IS B SNt 1L 4O OO

T Tt
TR e \l\\i.v\f.
m fied anwenn amsosone 7
3 o —
g £ B
§| gt o e
H P — e
- LIS TALTENY 991 LM O23TI00 RAGE0 HO LhImary Rt =
3 | S Ems et B e e P
e b T = ..
B e LM e T =z £ S EEE]
H . - — T
S ——— .
[ - I —
: T
5 BOUNTMISACORIAMIINGL 204 ORTER Y AL AR B 40a1d
B T | voestvmsrmouaimon su i Il TovSaLy ke o ey i
n b L0 DITAEAD NY MO SMOTIV $IHL “SYEWY NOUNALIMOE 0O JOVE LIS ¥ TTVLRS NPV KOSV bW 40 NOUVTIAEN
I Tk LR e S S
n e Lt e R Sy B e
3 LOCM INWINIL Y LY NOUYATTS TOW.AING ¥ SOWCA MOLLOMAIGNOD
7 e M o e o e s ;
. e P i s A T SR L o
] LGMITI0 40 350CH0 A RSOkl Y AT Py HOLLI sy TS A0 W 2113 L AN WO EaACsy o0 0 QLI NOU TR
n !—Ecﬁgo‘!lﬂ—!!%!ez Z1 RADINYI NOISOMI HIW L Vi) WAIVING RO Y DNIAYH SvRiy HEHIC HOKIVY ALALLIY ORBIVETD ONVY ANY DHENIO0 HOLLYAMGENGY 311 MU NOUYI VISHOS 1 FONMINK] NG TELVOIN ANF H31YM 0S0JORd ;__
T o e ST L e i e T omou
e R i S S e
TErb s O AT ¥ T TN Mo T AR R RN D o s T o B ALY I 00 T v Y Tl SIS B L S0 B Bt BT ——
S i O VI M CEOY XL 300 O TR w ‘FIOLLOVIA NOLLYZTIIVAS S2VRIOWIY UM NOVRS LI 4 "308 CRNOLT 40 TVY EZIWN O, MV 10 M 28 JOMLNOO O GEMTSVIN LANVIOTIM TIY 20 HOUMLNITT LT
i [F1:4 ONY TS IR JIILLOMG BLL e KONS L 40 WAL BABYEIXA MO UZICXT UL TV ‘HOLIILLI) 4 VIV G 000Ant B, e iy (O $Y0MLNOO NOSSCAA3 Y LNICHE T1Y 50 5ot e
3 EHLACPY WL 54 CHND CINBENNE HOCACGLLWN LGN B3 LOW 137 2T W IVEWY GIbMu S VOL RIONVRIFID GNY ERKIVA THAVIED 40 L9 AL a3 Y HOUS 38 ATVO 441 M0 TIRIHOG B TINNOSael
| SIS AV T ERENOLTAN Y 4 e ¥ ARy LA L SV HWTENOM LML 3107 B SWOH30  '¢
LS SE e R Sy s A
@ } aje CHY NOMICRS TIV BRINSMG O 130k FHL, 20 HOUYMNGD 3L HUM SIN14 L9 40 NOUNEIROS ¥ WO ' SHTYMNILS 0n35 LI HIVINIY DL "AUVISEIIN 8 Qv SHOLE CSHERD BHL "MOLLVIZWESIL 30 BLVE) SHL O RAVAL £ 40 FYWTNIA
AR R e —
H AUEEEIIN BHL TRVIVAY AUV 24V 4O LIS NO FOWGS B CERT QL BONMINA NO CLYINON] GY £L00 HOLINMLENOD 01N D Ard TNV TINNORIR S5 QOIS U, 18 QAT MO0 SO
(NRNAN ] i b PR R e e
, o sy o oo RSSRLE T T 1 Yanwe o e e e
R ey e ot T e e o Sl Sl e
e L T i e T R L
i WOLLFILSHI) 3118 DRIMNG TRV VW0V ‘CEZIEY.S ONY BAOAM) I0MINGT INIIWIT2S OHYNOBOUA 10asd & ‘SHLAONOLTWNCS 21 AV UINWO SHL AR S Nl Svr ity
H ST B o LIRSS BRI e T Sy i L e OO0 KA Y PO S
Al 4TAME “ONDCHVEL LNGISO3E ANY ONKI N ANYST0RN SLNGAZD MEHLYEM EHIIMG ANY PO NOISON T2 TIVAY USNO DOOT 15 HONY TIVavisLs 'ZoNE4 LB aanans ‘AU HOS WO OMd el L MTTION S TIY LY A0
nqu-ﬂ!g-ad?ﬁm:.n—iﬂiﬂ:!—n " B»Egggiggg KRGO NOISOWR 30 L2314 004 40 SITRAND WINIY ¥ NN S THL 50 LS00 GHORION ¥ KIVINIVIA RRLIVA WORNOD
NOIBCAG! AMVETS TN JH1 ISNG ONY HRILALDV NOLDNELINGD HOLEOA THY ONICAIVE B {A) NY i LN AT NOUNTION
[ e L e e D L e T oo e R
kil NN O EOUCN VINOLONALINGD 50 1MVLS 211 QL MORKM. ')
SEMEUANETI TGRS o e SO RIS, oo s o o LSS

40 TS 0 C0F L HOUNLENGO DA S15E IR B¢ HOUDFRLISNG KBALO WO SNVOMHLINVA LR VY108 04 Ut IO TV MR 0N 0 LTI D3IVNOSI0 B Burv SSIORTo RGN




NVd 311 TIvH3A0

S11ISNHOVSSYI ‘JI4HSVIN

SNYId ONILLINYIA
avoy HLNOW1V 066

BMP'LS |E00ASBUMEICN03dUSE BISNOH SI2PIoBY HYOd HED0RNOZ0DSIOR0EH 19 A8 12720720 porand 12/20/20 ‘PaUIpOU j5;




T S~ [ F5
9-9 i o ~ T L34 02 = HONI
\ \J\ﬁ\ e 0wy
ANSAREOVNY !
\ oL o [} ~ = __ I ! |_I| -]
TN i ® o = o oo o
£ ATVOS DHIVHS

s et
W77 I o
s LA e

Ry [
» = iy \.___
L - 533 L v.m. ¥ :m...r S

iy

(LY NV1d LNOAV1 3LI1S
SLLIISNHIVSSYI ‘T3dHSYIN
SNV1d ONILLINYId
avON HLNOWVA 056

00120
-l

“9u] ‘dnouD uentm Aejsioy

Fenda0vg e

KT mluln]m
P i I T T

—

Emp'LS | £D0ZASBUIMBIGIeadusel BUISNOH S9eRIORY HYOd 1£002\0202\IefoudvH  ¥a 44 12720720 Ped 12720720 -paUipow y5e]




(2) NvId LNOAVT AlIS

SLIISNHOVYSSYIN 'I3dHSYIN
SNVId ONILLING3d
avod HINOWTY4 0se

4334 0Z = HONI L
T
)
] e
or ® o o0 @
IT¥IS DIHdWY!

‘H 9 4Q 12720720 pequpd 12720720 ‘payipol jset

¥ HYOd |

Buisnoy

Bmp 1S IEDOZ\SEI-!'"M.

Git DAT8

BNV 20Y26 S5VH

ERT ]




133402 = HONI | 4
oy e T [
~ REEILNG AN24

Sy
ol

7 ¢

o o
WIS JIHIVYD

U9 T3 L HIAM

AVMTHGR AONZONENA

EhL vy |
005} 13 KOLLOR
-7 AVERIOJ INENITIS =

v s Sy S

L)

'
\

i 1
WITNOANZL |

e AN
e J\\ '

iz |
gz |

i
i
2 =
HE
fi 0
Z| Toa
Z| Tm3
[} m ﬁ -
ol BELE-
=E
3 m J= FEDEIVA NI .~
W 23 NPZ S 00071 M
S w m & , TvmeaLvigoA
i P
£ ¢ T - o s e
7] [¢] e NoLNarrinoan s ) y
m| TL R -~ cagam \
= GZ8 ooy R/ |
. A
2| 9°s et Y, \
m @ . ' LA untvE-E.WHimI!i \w ﬂ\\\ .
; ft - .
£ wzmoine e b : g
APEELO0 A3 = i 3 . = W recvRY
p oy SUEZNIAN 21 P - VBRI AN ZE : N o5l 8>
[ : o PR o gmeada - T / AT \
7 S o A e < -Svhina -7 vewaung Ll VL - !
m, w ] - e S ,_‘% o A \\\\ -7 Lrbeato Az X R V
g < o - d P = Srenno e el N
] F] mn * " i . st ¥ 5
fi: §15
.lm i g e .//\ \
B 4 e W W )
3 F GRS S
i 5 -
¥ %
1 B
B P

i
g g

B ALYLS SBYIN

4

SO0y

bAoA AAA

R = ot

[ Ay Y Lol i
\ b T - 1 snAMAA T Nodonienos oo E,
e e - A, TS O/t OLIIENVNL 3
— R O Ra b 38 CLRmHINEE
———— N
—— - ~ -
lllllllllllllllllllllll ~ - ~ ,

12r20/20 ‘payipow jse|

1e/eorzo pajund

E——
040D 1£002\EEUIMBICNEodYSE BUISNDH SIIEAIRY HYOG | EDOT0Z0ZEROIUYH - 0




6-0 133302 = HoN L

o) IVEOLON
e i (33815 °93d003T AvMavos INVTZ G VAT IS NSRS
weoe | ooz BHE
; ety 3 @ a o =
i ! e
i
Nctrd 3 #~ ANSWNOTIY 3NN HAIND
UVLIQANY SNVI4 338
128 oS -
_;
AT szam
2248 M . ,
el /.v. l— wzg _n L zz—mblwx(.rek.‘.g.v "M e wiwmI0is -
e e ] ; o.. xen) 34078 12 @ w10 '
/*1 o 51 ondacns k= 8w .
. — o -
zam
oz 48
wannavsgza
.
T, AN ok
1
I =
2 / =
LR ™
[H
o=
W i _\_ i

oy
g
~

1Z/Z0/20 ‘POUIPOUI 15

%349 12120720 :pajud

Hvod

W Butsnoy

In) m ’ Ql .\
M Qo Lllfl\akl\ "\m '
Z| Tua . _
@ _.4_.-__..:0 - o | § .7
M BWM - ] I m..\
£3% i
W S0 J
2 b4
Z| 2565
| opT
m HWH
3l 25
G5>
| 458
Bl @

TS awniuno Az
s

0094 73 noytoa

NI AU RSV

t
’

A 2018
i -
s S I~ &

a9 7 L Iuam [
AYMTIGS ADNEIOUING 7,/
/LY |

0054 13 w1108
Avesiod ianias L~

iiifis:]
it

Ry A
il

(2) AN HOLYW

() aNHoLv

6mp° 0D 1E00ZIEBUMELGT




0L-0

s

9-0 133HS NO 3QIAOH SINIFNNSITY INNHILNTD
b2 40 ot | 1eooz IHL NOdN a3SvE JUY NMOKS SIT1408d TTY 310N

o R

1€ = ub “FIVOS WOLLETA
02 = ub FIVIS VANOZINOH
ITNH0Md GYOY SSOHD

ENLAN 24

of= .+ ! | 1 ] I ondor ks 3 e |
IIIII N S BMsS
- QA Y KOB.B _|

— ..||r|'WU14 -
= ki VTN AN ZE
F= W OF Wt — A

w N . G -

ey
g

o047 ,
RN ~

UBiEvia

6MP'0D LS00ZBUMEIqwedTEY GUISNOH B(GepIOYY HYOd LE00\0Z0NSWEI0GNH A 40 12720720 Paua V2/Z0/Z0 *PoyIpOw Js8)

Brovina e Zy

20VH SNLLEIXT — IlquU#fr

SNVId ONILLINYTS
avoyd HLNOW1vd 056
|

F40¥d AVOY SSOHD
S1LISNHOVSSYW ‘33dHSVIN

bR




Ly
LTSI TV
N ]
B0 Jpydaiey

J3dHSYIW

.u..._. ‘dnosd uepim Aejwioy
8686-192 (219)
80120 VIN ‘uojsog
19018 Unag oy
Buisnoy ejqepioyy jo uoljeasssalg

Zapomiag P

] v gv“%oﬂ

aLs ﬁ%_\ f
SLLISNHOVSSYIN ‘JIJHSYW . C iﬁ”
SNVId ONLLLINYId L . m.w{m mu A3 | \rﬂd.\a

avOd HLNOWTv4 056

A

WL AT O JEY
.Ngsgigﬁgﬂséﬁgwﬁsuzgggwx
TYNOLLGAY '810Z ‘0 O
ezl ATTEHOH A8 0L

UM 9
e

ALMEJOBd 3HL "
T06) 5L HIENED30 AALVD

A Y

SUV130 2 S3LON ONILNYId 1z
) NYId 3dvOSANYI TVN1d3INGD)|
NYd 3dVOSANYT WNLJIONDD
{8) SIVA3a NOLLONMLSNOD 8
(¥) SUVL3Q NOILONHLSNOD L
(€) SIV130 NOLLONMLSNOD
(2) S71v130 NOWONULSNOD |
{1) $TIY130 NOLLONYLISNOD
NVId ¥ALVMILSYM

(@) Nvid Arien) I 11

(1) Nv1d ALMIN

_____ 3T40¥d avOu $SOHD
(2) Nv1d 39VNIVaIa 8 ONIGVND)|
(1) Nv1d 39vNIvHO 3 DNIGVMD)|
__ (@NVIdLnoAVI 3LS
(I NVId LNOAVT Fuis]
Nvd 3US TIVHIA0

NV1d 953 % NOLLVNVdTud 1S
___SI1ON NOWLONYISNOD
SNQILIANOD ONILSIXE|
¥3A00|

3

=
hos

l
|

(=3
-

o o

|u:n-‘

120¢ AYVNH934 3sIngyY
0¢0¢ ¥390100

SL11ISNHOVSSVIN ‘I3dHSVYIN
SNVY1d ONILLINY3d
AVOd HLNOWIV4 056

v|m

o

| T

|y

|"

L e0ug
8iqe L 1817 198y

e
a
o
E
E
z|
8
£
[2]

n

——

‘H 39 Aa 12/20/20 Paud  |2/40/20 peypows 58|

Hvod

Buisnoy

Bmp'AD




433409 = HONI 4
(e uh
qﬂnﬁ T
e A ® = ® E:lknasumm.%:hﬁm
VIS DIHdvYyD & BV s wooamwints v rosan
L5 3o s oot -
VRSO 100 V1€
093000 AL A3 PGP DU SNBATN 4 o 4
[ev— N
[ERTENAP—-
o ..
- — _
B e T .
s B o o
L | TIVHE B3uLLf Rl KuTes CHE
P v e o oo B iy e g T LS IR B
5 O W CSVE 2 s KA NN 1Y LT e S ey o e SR T SO mouseou [l
~ e
an umum DO ALY M S TR O D S L e Lo oz wowesan v
3 T.m m.w- a0 0 Fo M quyuiam M s N
£33 M Al *
2 piosd V2 i . . o O
¥ mm g o Eam AN Hrigsa i e o
am Eaggii!»iglzﬁgggsggg N xoorm 0
'GH HUNDWTYA 0001
ah dgan \/l\ Y2 10158 v SION SRS ruaenze g
e Ly
i oonica
e e 2.
]
- anaffl e
_w m mw m : —
§3547 seam iy Tenmaouon &
\ 4
mmm h manen g
i" e AN0T 300U Y4 L —
m w0 ® YRS Ve rLSVOS — ) —
. R u—. —r—
Iz n s ———
m g1 AT (e [ERs— —_————
b M m et 02000 INO A N0 ——— —
o8 [y — ————
3 o @)
a
— [OPS——
3 [ —_———
s s B A0S VUM
“ i wowms @ — |
] 3 s
csen 9 008 1% —_—
Bl § snon 14 |
] e e s g R —_—
- T o L TER T a ——
zZl m3 [ T——
Q mny AousuOu M &
ol M=z Frem. J—
el = = oo B IR0 —_—
S mnlnu. e a0 —
. EETe— _—
3 DT / muousnin @ T seounGon —_———
[=] Y. e —_———
Ix -7
m =3 ot SO0 [ —- s avaswe —
o SW O e =0 i DB D
0 P v R v ——
m m i et & ] — oo
P Bt P f— S=S—
[ .N\\\ .\\\\\H\\i. m&xmg&nn:;o» wsmowo O Saurnun
ANINIOTEAI0 il e QU HLNOWTVA 596 o
.‘_E:.uu..w>=mmu Aol 5101t Towme @ ovus B —
B39 “OM HINOW v 03 Sl rrTTp—
m« HiE 510756 avwt Py LT e @ -
H m [ 2 s 10100uu1ney
2 > PN YA el e ——
i it 2 A o @
| Ry HE el
m g oM T @ S
! mﬂ mv WITAB NI () SenvianiTrm
g s
-4
Im 5 TowMmaMITR @ e —
th 3 — p
i -
soven 10a " F iy
w MUY 1048 peusoa 5T 000M - 304
Mﬁ ﬁ - 30N
Pov— e t——
o wameniSh ) veranas0z00m
sneoTiASD 1o v
NOLIVOVA YALLS54
u muousa @ p—
o punoR v 065 .
5107 16 VR ]
[RSw—
s s —
wwonos _p o
imman
s = )
S
aN3937

6mpx3 1£002\SBuweITIOR0USE GUISNGH BIGERIORY HyOd VE002\0202\I08[0scvH 40 40 12/20/20 ‘Pewuiud 12720720 Pouipow fe8y




AU MUt Y O OO
SrOCH0 MO BMRILE GV §hokd L LN YEALRAY JOVNIVEE 1L 0 GRS o ety
ARG O O

OIS 4 LT VD i (L s S0
O AN AL v L 10 TYACRER] S, ESHToN Bvcnvio B bty DS

e

P COPUATIND NOMOU A DAL DM ‘TS B LW, TS INSARTED 40 AOIYEN Mort S S s
YOS PRI RTVML ANY 40 THAGHGM 23 BUSTIHOO S3pVSLIGYm 00 3 A ANO AL B i
#40-4161NOR U0 HYHLL LG VAID 1633 LS ULV TS Bl 40 WO DA TARIZOY oo TEIIT RS 8

L2/t0re0 Peypaw

:
i
E
i
I
ga
i
ié
I
i
!
:
i
%
H

%1 A9 12/20/20 paiupd

x
W
g
8
i b
¢ o
FET T g m
’ m W m "RING DML JUTIHCD ANV HIWM 20N 00 K2 »
VL0 L e 2 e ES0A30 ORor D
_m mwm 8 0Nl L 7 MMV VUL v SRSV 3T v S S e e GRS M LSV L AV B T 22 w
srghiv V0 G03NSR WG v 513 R 4, I LS e A, WO IO o A 3 e ] — -
mmm e g LTI 2900V ARG PP 1 IV 1 AL A0 34 30 B o AT g
g I3 =
[V ——— e L |-
e F2 SRR R SRR SRS M e oy s s tesoncny |5
E 22 LY T8 R s Bt AT s B e o 2L Yo e a e 3h S0 o Skt i SO S0 S5 sy o % | 2
3 e T A o LYo W U OO L3 Y s Tou e 3L )
2 S S Wor e Sl VT a i s ol o T ik, R MRS UM v ot oo < Euns cow 8 sl s w0 mivozs oot e | &
AT NOLYAA OHBI NG Bl R M30 3 WA LN L B et s .y Ao srows s s osesay N2
ONTEIWEa o iy I
. w IS LY SO TV LN GO B e s SR e e |8
? ¥ o st sommmaz Gt T e S GRS iy St S BN S s wananarlwicon auciaiivate | B
H i e s G S ST s S S ey N SRS, ool v s Tt e R
0 S0 NGRS ) o LSAR SO B0 L2 B8 v s e ST A o -
E'EEEE;SE!EE& Taan i 43 kL
3 S50 NG 3 LT N VN INa Sl S e 3 [
= ‘Mo LM SOV M TUZS NOUAMLINOD Tv e ) |
3
> IOUICE 62 ETEGNG Qe AV O BNV ]
AUV CoTR . §u§§l§lﬁ§b;§g§§§h-
gl & e PSRN | S SR |1
S| Ez§ s —— . nEm - O VALY LTI 1 T MO8 B W SR S o e o OO g
[Z] ma g .«Elznséﬁggl!l‘i!..ulmi!.ngn.ﬁ.sa.Quiuu._. ® OPMOTEREALIERSNOSERY L N LY LT QA AT 20 ORI o
3| Mge o
S| =3z 2
S| 2238
= Zc
o| o3 ;
e oo
g| 25z
SR yS—— T ——
S| g2 ® e ey o TS A R
m w g oY ey 32 P Y20 DNRLGILHOO 4L e SHUIPMLL GHY SYESY Can ) TIV 0 LN S M s s "HOLLVSE) ALVITIAVN Ol 310 000 LIGRFILIZE & SHOLYOLEO3 Il M G CWVA L WO CLYONDN SY Xl
& m T , EHPAOTION E318YEN WmLLNE HOUNIHINGSS GNY NORTH3 108 AMVIOMPTAL. Th 10 WADTOS B0 IO O o aaies 15 HRGRLL LTHNO Y THOKIA SoNPAVE B NO GALYCRP TV NGVl DHL B P 17 SIOM LT Lo T
LT SOAN 0 kI LS TN L 19358 LY UCLINAIES Y e Koz
& o N i FTVUELVIYMOGUOA TIV 0 TACHEM NOHLIM HITIY 51 ONLTAL AAIHINOLS 24 M SIN02S TSV TNV TV O GHY HOUIBALS00 40 ONA S8 1Y 9304 (o ST Bt (1 LI 11 “ALTE Y ML U QLY 40 BN NGO GRSV SHL SN W20 1 e B
oG oMoEEon ——e A, RANE L A2 CRTEIGH iy GAES LI 3 LIV ENLIFAL ‘ONLSTL FAIEA3 Ol WO D000 SO T s -y LS IO TR0 Y DRCYE Y R1TUNG SOV WYl LNRED TV S0 S B e 1 G RACAEOHML 1 U0 LS LB BLYLS MY X0 A0 UV, AL Bt T it ey
Y i - YA Y F TSR R TN 40 A AS ROLLLA IS GBSt e 3 o o LSO T el - - SOITLNGO AL KRG Z11A9 3 WOON 0 L VAN L S o PO
e 28 e (| e — —— . SR s e T T, see LR s mar s
L t oy Ao orous S b
wanin g s svia g SRR e n v e e s R b b e L IO e UL 341 NI SV L 2 o S ORI et T e s
& ——— Tamavaaane o A0 SHOLSINNGO URINDIY 7V
3133 [e— o | T TN AN LA 30V LS LK ML ) 03030 0, B R
3 HES & o U YO Y Y13 TRV HLM ZNYCHETSON M CHY BV 5100 M MO o e O Wi g ay
m H f e R i — s e Rigsensuaueiua srmar s sy asmon ST
., R — 0 43S0 AL VLSOV L MALSTLNS B St e L AChOL YT e
£ nowno o Tamn | e sconiss s LR e s e s anot sasta IO B8 oM L YO Y B 21 4L A BN Sy L Ry B ey I e a0 You AL M N Gy S o QAL
i H mn < N saumn B T e e A L 0TI Ol L BV PN CHY HOLYCHOM TV CLOWINO0 31 MOV THLLIN BN Crmaarr e o p e #E.jsgggﬁgun%jsggsﬂﬂoﬁ
i 3 - s TS E— (iR
- veramoiny | TR T T RN AT US40 G -t s YN AL R e Y B 1V OIS i Bnicnue
- - < o apusian o S s AL RN 4 1931Ch 1 B0 WYY B, UM B 3L e Y NN YU T S0 CUFS0) Bt LA SLTABYED M I e O S
H " oo | [T O e A TH D S LSS W RIS TN TVVSE 3 A 0 B T 4 A L T o WSO s S e A2 A 31 0isn NG S, T 2 NG LY T e a2 Y N GTR 20 1o
B e (= R sy T LNV NNIISS ool 2310 20 G Y ORI SR e e Sy G240 O TV 2 MY AL 0 Lk B AL S e L A SN SOl
WA » EEEIE!H—ERE‘ s !iiigsss‘gggigpz
¥ sm Inam AAAAAAS RO LRI T HO AT UV 2R LIV NS 20ROV CNIOHOMIINT Y Y LY R OH VR SEAR s iy pss 1y CTALO40v 1 TIOR8 41 20 ML ANy CMITIYAS OL OB
£ FR——— . ) " LA 20 oY D L AL ) Y L SO Ao 7 T oL ok
7 e = == ) Y L ST AL S0 e oo smiac o sonrmuaio T e e S b
5l Fy e s | el p—y - e e A T T o i
f T e et At g 3u awiawo U
| PR i oni i T TR Ny | i ot o s ivose rssoa s s v PR AT GO 3
nvacs A _—— N LA AR 5 Sopesd £ NOGT 2 SHOUYATY M3l 0L CRIOVA Mo\ Ehas) ‘TOMETIANS ey b IV WO YA Ot s o 4 P BRI NGO KAV EN TI VL0 O U0 XY Y ROV L L S S Ty '
= T FELT) OV STHONIY NPT 253 1WA (EISCniCd TIY
g e e ——
q EwooRENY M 40 1) —— e—— L1241 RN Y T s gy LA D o s N NSO Y00 310 L OALAACNOO 03 Y W) 300 50 b U SO Y20
u.. . Rl o WHEM | e e TR Bt e b ot ooy 1 :
Q0OM - BNGS —————p | ALNGONA ONY TNNO T "OMENd 1 40 ALy ML 2wrvena PRI ENCKLWR) TIV 227N
T TRaIs) PR T 0L B 0ROL Y NTEOHY ILVMOLR Y BAVHIYON 0 vy 41 OO G ey ) i b = o0 ™ ®
Do T o © T BN —_—Y— T T —
bR — e B — Jro. o o s P
o ] 0 0~ 3o0ead ey — ey ol e A Y ST TR S5 e A Ll A e e TN ALY LS LTI 3 GBI GIT A VNMCMA L, “BLSaEL S O S B T Mo,
el T © ° T O N8 T K3 8 O WAL | 1 ATRCMA BVl A oS Y S AL MO oy G WV LA NS TGS Srs s S POl By ———
LIl 5 Rl [ U X— e 3 4 6L 2TV 0 N AL T
NN Tomes @ OO | e T — sovmpenuon SO NOUOTHIENGS TVaa:
- .,._‘”,_ o e | e— A OGBS S aL e ey “caanoa sy um s ovenTOWOX 3 SO NOISNEIENGS TREND
H aaveos0a ™Y, . et ———
_IIT._I\ FwaNEy 01 29 04 MY BN L0 ON “SEAMILING CELLYSERS PHOUVITIM B LIS M VA S D P DT L ALTTRY L' SHOMLNOO T4 G LSRN 1553 Skl OV LAV 380 NIV 30 Ao 3
! o anng [ ] 2 N P L334 0L OL WG Y EIVAELNI MO0 OISO T
| : N
owus N N = P— N
e 1300 auorarvancns W mo VLSO
p— T AN et G5 O M SO T ¢
i R ———
| _ TS0 RNGUCHEX ERMIBHE Oy AHMIOGRR 34 1
|| _ | IO AZAuS




N¥ld 0S3 B NOILvNVvd3dd 31IS

SLIISNHOVSSYW 'I3dHSVYIN
SNYId ONLLLINY3d

avod HLNOWV4 056

on I on | ewximoam
D e =

a5

o enOg vy aEmmEnS

“au] 'dnoud vesm AejioH

e Ty Tyt

suosiAey

4333 0% = HONI

k]
WS OlHd

Ao 24 48 CoR

o = 0

1o

VS N b
s Sl r A \
: o NN e i
’ Y 4 /
. P, = LS, P =il
‘ il = P ] s
ST
CWAE S \ / J
. ] A1 !
. b g > J
X . - i

o w0 aanvywaa

Y BOOHLIY CAOMAY MBI MIDHRELLW 8,190 TMIND

NOLY0 QRACH: 99349 ¥ M 40 DB

a
DO AIOCIL TV WO LNGAISR LV IN0Y BAGRES 5

OUSOMLEN0D 113 O RV I

SHHYLITTION VUNRLCH QR NS AACPGRY Ol B30T v IVt
TV L33 DHOOVALL LICITID ANY OROTEOH AMVSEIN

U S0 MNEISNOMSIN U /2 TWALL 1AGWGE ONY 4N IS
40 TUIYD 241, 1 O O HOLLTHLLINOO GHRINQ S1ovil G Y
B CALAASHGO 3 AV STV NOUNLNGT3S TRTG %)

AV ORMIGRIIO Sy TGS

CFIY B TIY SEME OL L570Nd 1 20 NI AL, NS SN LD 40 NOLWNEIREIT Y 50 ST VIMMALS ‘St
SO NOUSTLINGD DU ORI AL CHY LGTNC) S8 Y008 43 L TR0t St by s TN
2P0 BHL TV IRV KUV DAV MO ALSNO TN Db

AL A LG T B L, I T YO V1 O At B A0 O o033 e
O S SR LG RV AR S O Tlieie
s G L ey e Sertetaius e s e G e et

y
e

/

o

s

2 &
Y U
! TG
N
~wa v
A% S e T
30VIdNI GENOQNYRY 2851 <~
] -

j / AnaNodwoRuOITS oMusna-
P R

= / LR e — R
P A By 9 By gy 3
SN L S Pl L /7 oo G bias
e ard ki
- s
S AN IR S A ;
\\ 7 ’ /4 \.\ o
" s 7 “ -
- e L L -
P
- \ P
.
s k4

orae
LRIV O ANVEREOR ¥ v OIS GIHIND 2L

™ BVIANBOON MG TR TOHANDUNMIINGS RO Liad

45 04 SNV NO GELLVODN] £ BLIE NOUDNMLENGE J01CM

OGO 40 RO BHL N A BHVIGIGLACO N
TUENAD U 45 FNVLTEIN TN NOLDIRILINOS L0t LRy

OV M YRty DO INTIOY B0 10010 T

“Sam
TIVAY SU/H0 0008 L5 7 TVEMYLS "2 LTS) Mg
OUINCO HOBOME 40 1334001 40 T newenan v havLNIY

1
\ 1
/4./.

R

b / ./{. 5

JA3 B e nows sy s anv oo
I0HLNOO Gl STWSYN darvaiD: HOUVLICTET e
G MYOMINGO NOHROMI Corv LNMITER T 10 Bacairevry

S0V NOWIAN| KNG 31 104 TS TRAORS

NOLLVNIRAAL, 40 UY0 341 0K YA € 40 Mvwiey

Y20 300174 30 LSV WO YLIEWNIO00 AL NI by

™ Aty OY “TBNOZI LU (HIYNDHA0 P AR GALTLNO0 LAY
IIULISEH HORCRY ADEIM NOLLYLNINTION T0LLNDO NN
LS AL 0TI IR AN ST T a0 U ‘SHOLLYVIOZ
V3 LM JHVERIOCON 1 S04 HL HOLMIRRAAL

8% Had

RO B 5 G0 NOUNRLEHOS AL YNGR 2

Tvog 0w
F5NVHINT NOILSNHLENCD 3NOLS

HoUYTVIS Ly
BRI QUNOHS T CIL MG S0 SHLINYIY WOLYTIVAGM Z50.00 0335 OV ITRUe Bl &
bl TYANOTINOH MILEXIV 13 58 AVIW ETION AL-HE WL BST E00% 904 ¢
SRRN DAL Abe DL TION G TTIOW DL WEITI LB GOHLLIVWELDVYIE 1SR 100 G 5
TOLLVONIINGI 2 RETIMLIVINNYIN UG OY MELIVA DIV ¢
LVINN 308 Y0NS W04 NNV Y 4020 LGOS 30 TR OV e 5
UICTIVAICE GRADRIGY 4O MAOSI 200 NI NYSREamY LSRR
~NOLV2IREYAS VDO 6 TIYLING WRELLVI TWHLYM Tiv 31 13WV B XRANOO HISE 4

AN awagsOd0sd
04 HONGHL

T (0TI AL MO daced
SAGITY T LVL AT ReRNIYRLY TV
HEIAG VISR 36 OL RGO TOULNO LNENG39 )

Wi ag00M;

Ason

OIONY LIOY00 VI HLIM GRTIS 29 04 YOO8 173 INMCRE

BMp'1S 1002 BumEICVedysel BUISRON BIGEPIOLY HYOS HO0ZI0Z02E0SI0UVH Y3 AQ 12120720 PRIULG 12720720 PoUIpOU J5e|




m - o 1334 W.-anhuz_ ]

~y S
] [ for ) cnanoa
S1V98 OHdvaie / \ T

\/..‘
brirt

o

NYd 3LIS TIVH3IA0
S113SNHOVSSY 'I3dHSYIW
SNY1d ONILLIWYSd
avoy HLNOWY4 056

il HTER
T
B| 88k
— i
o] 4
S
q : -
B i3 ) i N
K - ”M&WMMM@U:”/ ////., m
g avod 324000 // / ~ »
il N &
il R, S
i ] Ny s
|

£

<

&

&

12/20/20 ‘PSyipou 15e;

———

HYOd 1E002\0202\5199l0idvH  IQ AQ 12/20/20 :pa)

SNOH

B

[T AT




'H X0 A0 1220720 Pawpd 12120720 P

! / RS Y = . -
| |.| A D) [ i ) - _____\ ‘ 1333 02 = HONI .
7«/ ../\/I ! 1 \ g 00 )
.w.iss Ly e / / ] ] pr— — ]
\\»v ?. N / £1-0 335 @13 H \ [rm N LRC &
7 \ o \\\ \\\\ ) 2 1 ome e | /\ | MO ; — I TWOS OlHdvaD
~ e | T e < / [ P
HHYA/IV!I/I/H._/ ,,Jn»aﬁmzcﬁ ‘_ ~— \ ___
T b mea) fed ~~s ! ~- i —
w/ . \r/ Ay e i ~ \ ~ \ \ ___
- il { ~ ¢ Lo, ~ / | H
HTH T S, L bt P s ST T ~. | / /
st i - P S e - - s [ : I
m Wa ot t .
mm 9. iy iy, L] __ ,
: _ e : : I / J
.Wl .

SEEBEi

7,
/
74 e LR
/ 2% e S e, (G e 7 RSy [
. olvd & ] ot ", o I
wwwww w olve ] \ e tasw i e & Ay ssz00v _.Ir_
_.n.mmm P ~ 7 una % |
I \ ouvd 7 ~ UMD N on [
FLI e A \ — ?
" L/ S AN SN\ %
g L. /] D ) NN
s S $ ~ 3 «@&0
» # ~¢” tan) e&f
o - 7

eEa vn..ne &
e vaoe \\ \
..- BLINONGD-

e /2Emu ANOH DO

vt
-y

TV HEAINOR \ .

~ h : tan

Z3dAL rr!.(rff s FMMSSOND

y aal

] anviiom —rose
& Q3AIVOIONVH | \ R ™ L
J, —— / P A

L 5 rasu1 %

A ~TIvMm ervLSH :
A0k ot
L el o / . V . ANINNDITY OVOM S50UD

=
[4 ke (7] vl HLVMANOLS- .
e :______Q:_ \mr r_ﬂ N DN s g MO 000040 iau
TIvM

SNV ONILLINGId
QYO HLNOWV4 056
£
H
’./
o

(1) NVId LNOAVI3LIS
S113SNHOVSSYN ‘T3dHSYI

I e
F3 e b _xm‘o-sss
m el
x
£
@
3
£
i r
H
|
] E—
- m_ Qva BNNDADZY
%8 : .
P D Bp \\%. @ - v
ERREGE JNSaIoNa P ;
L EEE — [y & ;fﬂ.wwa
R E iveian N
b 3dAL 3
AV ,/,. ’
ANINIAVD L ”;
HOLyd X N
Aur 3
- _v/v
| N\

Jpoi 1se)

HYOd

Buisnoy

[T



L-D 133102= HONI b
P ooy o)
1oL | i1s00z — } _IIh]I._
YOI o or ® o o oz
E IWOS OIHdVED
7

3N A¥3dOHd

——

Bip"L5 12002BuMeIoaduaEIN BUISNOH SITRRINY HYOH LE00ZW0Z0ZRIAIaIdTH 10 4G V20RO PoLd | 2/70/20 ‘PO 15B|

(2) NI LNOAVI 3LIS
SLIISNHOVSSYW ‘SAdHSYIN
SNV ONILLINYZd
G0N HLNOWTV4 066

o8 DA

id Avas SevN

N
i
!
!

i
i
/
i
I
i
I
)
1
!
f
1
i
!
t
/
}
I
f
~~o | \. /
o T ~

~ ~~a
~ ~__ wﬂuEﬂ%
oxoe - / -
uz_xz.‘uunzmﬂzmmmx M/\ *
[ /
AL, Y




o « o
ITVIS JiHdVED

= p——

g (2) w1V
— e e o — —
M 5 {1} INrHOLYN

A / %
= m h \ : wz— b]
g€ N \ 5 1
\ \ o 3
2 S, e A
3 ASELL » vTUY 2,
¥ LUl TE WoLos J
m 4 ININID3S l_’

'3 . BB AN ZM |
A FvmsgavizeIs

B

281200 w21
Wb

o

#295VARIIEQ, . "
KT 800057 0
FTUMS G339

SGEELN0 ANI9
S0 VIAN0 AN B

SNVId ONILLIWY3d
avod HINOW TV 056

0UII-0SZ) SMINAS MOL - e N - - : )
T HaI08 . 3 - gy B \ SR

(1) Nv'id 3DYNIVA % DNIGvHD
SLLASNHOVSSYIN ‘I3dHSYIN

ATCTHI ANt ZL

Pk - - BVICN AN 2L
7 dbE < ogerada

acvevm Tk

|

2} 0910458-903
oA 008e-£29905 |
£9920 viv ropmpemg |
Yooy og

o

I
s
FUORDS PTICRILALLS SIS |
"] ‘dnoun uepim Aejsion,

o
pr—

B10"09 L E00RSBUIMRIGISedYSEY BUISNOH BI9BRIOEY HYOD 1E002\0Z0RKeIOINH %0 4Q LZ/Z00 PRUNT 12720720 PAUIPOW jse}




FW55 GLIGN
1133818 ¥3a000] ><>>Q<Omm2(|-.mnm._.<>m._wmw13m

Wvi3gdas
ANZNIAYS SOONIALS

AT_L

XV 5408 1E @ Y04
(X 34078 12 O 1no

B P L] A

£Xv) 36018120 110
v 300718 12 @ T4

- .’— —]

Zam

DZ .48 M

YNINN HsEZ0
N

/ / \\ @RI
\ PELOVES dwW
=~

—y

BT D) o
Bursnoy

SiGepIOY JO UoeArssaly
Byt
Ny

6 494m

muag o0y

¥0IZ0 i omsog

GaBam [ g

4
1
/g
t f
S
i
/ /

L vmy
5y

7
4

. § \
_—)f— l\% /!
. \ C =

8140 4

SNVId ONILLINY3d
avod HLNOWTv4 056

(2) Nvid 39YNIVHQ 8 ONIavED
SLIASNHIVSSYIN 'I3dHSYIN

¥ oy 09

e a)

orrupmzeng

“ou| “dncusy uapim AsjsioH
™
~
N

Ls
Y
AN
§ }
\ w
/
S /
1

wm
Lt
9520 v AopapeRs

wlnm
pe !

L

) P e I

7 [ T e e L
1 \./ - AVMTIHE AINIDUWE
s v [ )
A
\
!

FUTIRIARY
,

o e |

ZU-DSIRVA HId3a -
Ea R ary

"eeaoms oo 78

(2) INHOLVK
— e e e —)
() 3nnHouvw

COTANS on e

Smpa5 LoozisbupnesToadyse)y Sujenop) aiqepsagy HVOd 12002\0208\si0sloudvH 30 49 L2/20/20 Pauud 12720720 ‘Peyipott Jse




0l-0

1z © a!—i— 1002

Lod

00+

9°0 L33HS NO 30IAOHd SINSWNDITV INIYILNID
3HLNOdN 03SvE 34V NMOHS S3T1408d TIV 310N

084

& =ud :FWIS WILLHNTA
W02 = .t :FIWVIS TWANOZINOH
FNH0¥d QYOY SSOHD

00+€

05+0

12720120 ‘payipot jse)

g pawond Aaarg
b
|

ZEVEINO AN 2}
ZSVERN
w

19 49 12/20/20 Pauud

B

Wy LN R 24
WY NI AN 2L

Sy
1y

1ZNI A LZL
e

L

3did UMSE
9d 0P HOB 9

)

ot umg

i
bz AN 2L
yZaiy

OHY HYOd

|

T

&
Buisnoy|

=TT

S6EX
RATTA A

= S _lﬁalsse -

BLOEELNO AN
BOBZNL AN ZL

SvocAM.zy .|

ferazom
SN

A
e e

BEEL-EVAR A

—

&
wp'go 1

FH40Hd avOy SSOUD
SLI3ISNHOVSSVI ‘I3dHSYIN
SNYId ONILLINYId
avod HINOWTv4 056

Btono v




-2

2w

s

€002

-7

SRRz l21g) Aogy
Wi ey
s o) v
Bursnoy

SIGERRYY o UEATESEL]
ngpameny

o

(1) NvId ALFLN

SLLISNHOVSSYI ‘I3dHSYW

SNV1d ONILLIWY3d
avoy HINOWTv4 0S6

Pyoay

“au] ‘dnoss usniA Ae;Ri0H

{ - 20 N O .
i - . ! P
; {GUEENIDNE G Wi .
}, oo 001 mne) aous aun ¥ Vi~
HLW OUESS ¥2IVM SUSINDD 2 \\\\\\ P,
P . 7 ;

b7

s/
I P
{LORUSIO UILVM | . ‘

¢ TNV ‘dAL) 40MOTG .2

i (SHINIDNG W HLm
CEWEHOO 38 01 S1S) JOLE BEND
. LI 0URTS MEAVA DLISANCQ

SN "ANOHO NALLLM ATISHON
NVIHI ' 7 NOSUIANTH ' :A8 GIVRIOIHEY

VLva 1id IS31 708

V2IE0/20 *PaYIPoW 188

I\eadusEp BUISTOH SiGERIOMY HYOd LEO0R0Z0REREIRIIVH ¥4 49 L2/Z0/20 pejupd

NOLLYHOTHOOY NIDOU LN




(2) N ALILN
SLIISNHOVSSYIN ‘IIJHSYIN
SNYId ONILLINSTd

Qavod HINOWTVS 056

133402= HONI 4
oo%j1n)

T _Inﬂ
or @ a o o«

FIVOS DIHVED

eRrvHONaE

0wy 03 350vN

$8300V

ONIdIINISNOH

aV0od 34400

bz dn

—

TOH SIGRRI0LY HYO LEQOZ\0ZDR\ENSI0INH %4 4G 1 /20720 :pauLd 12/20/20 ‘papow 1se|

= —

i
00ZEBUImEIg\eedysEy Buis

BapLn LE




FAL) SHOLISOW HOTTO £ Y § NIIALRE DHLLWREL TV “NOUVOALA
HPY) OL BT 1Y G402 0 0L WAL BAd > T

ol vy
ony

SN LY

Y

L
e e [ o ol
o I_ \ 1 [} W ‘
IR BT e
\ .\.f‘,
\ / {

w
| 528
b3 om
| mEn
=] mg» -
g W M m \ \ N2 o,
2| bz <
ﬂ an S 4 4 A
A W o W_ S dang - o &
| EL 2 ; N4 Y
W c20 . - . . { > B . . " R e L]
2 GZ W [, . 3 = = = 34 [P o * HOA MM Y
9 e eno soonavar 3 — AT b - . S 2 e
o 'SIATVA GNY SONIL O . iw.wﬂzn.ﬁ! 1 | o = — (AL ONdId NIVASOHOI TIV HO e : \
< | e : = DNIND INDLS ARHENO FAUNCHY " - 4
¥ ™ | wj&r; ==t ITE.E E..I 5 = e _,____ 43 NOUVEVAZE M9
, | el NolO e [— | | Ny ;
b VA {GOHI NSRS SN
FeRorava ] 4 _ _ .@u e - — gy | TS il J N §<§u&»ﬂ>ﬂ:‘oﬂniiﬂa
! e < - = e WIUSAS 40 MOLICE
| 2 | _ . — = / " Lanaee o0 At
VO/SISOA MOID 0062 FWTI0A 2500 5] I \MH@.E AN — @020 / ~f. oo 5h 1NONY3E
< _ i = | B = \Z I NN HONR Y
. E farD 2 e — | | | == S “H e mewn TS bk
ST oMsog _ _ | = — T | [ Maunasianas wos 2 N ,f..,.l\, SNOUYAFTT
: B —_— — = | it /
T RS MO A smwosonusAs | _ e /R
e DGR NN RV 282000 WRAELYVY n 3 = I R — J/
IR au_i..né._.t.tu.w»i!wsnungi ' 5\ _ | | i — — % — i . 1 ey y
SRV S0HTNIR. L i ! Pl A, 3 % ————— s
o W RienET IOy Fht s ; == J-I|]||I.I»’l.|lyv, = —IN /=
NL, lmowvesc [ 7 [T e T ——— e ——— S S
B | /
w 40 ULV NIV 3004 [
IR QY MY 20 ‘ _ L o 220 X HTUU - ORINOR Y30 yL0L
\ f A9 920 WY UV FONPLIIOY RS2 O
1 EIIALYY 0 HIMN | | | i 2svo 108
40 UNSOLLI0 SHVITUMNSZ _ | W 7 ‘2L NOLLY T00M3a Nols 1
" LEIREIVISOHONTT SIONUL INOLS TINTHILSAS ONIOYT]
" 1 B3I TR Y ‘ |
i 1 OOV TRELYT NALEAS NOULSHOTEY DOS|
i / VINILUNO NEHSIG WILSAS ONHIVIT
o BNDYS oUW T P ol ffiu v
sy R o . S
. BT vy e : I -
vauvaoA
40 o _ . MOU N0 s Tun B
SNOILVIND TV NOLLABIHLSIO THNSSTND ' |

—

—
BMO'AMM 4002\ BUIMEIC\dYSE BUEROH oIgepiody HYOd 120020202\810300IdvH 9 4 LZ/20/20 POIIMD 12736710 PoLpOw [




-0

e

—N_Bwl—n——gn

L2/10720 ‘Poutpow jse|

—_— —

——
SIGEPIONY HYO 18007\0202s199(0idvH %9 40 12/20/20 pajund

-y

U 40 2 MO BU MR 0} L1 b+ z
IV DL CETNGLA 39 0 003 del D34 ¢
MOST3 45 JOL 434 GATIRAI T84 Z0N Wt

[2eE WY 0L O3 “LvTvaS i a0

LA 10 35 1 Q0! Bk S 4
_ Wamanos VS dOL ALVRIELTY

— —

6mp30 LEooZsBumMEIqeadysEy BuisnoH

——

SNY1d ONILLINYAd
avod HLNOWTv4 056

(1) STv130 NOLLOAYISNOD
SLIISNHOVSSVIN ‘33dHSYIN

=y
-

o1
a3 Y 4 VLA 310 341 3L OFTTY LI MOHL e WIS ¥ 0] UL
O EHION 00 SITIVLIN ¥ 0 TANMIIED 58 ThHHS 24k HICINDSNON MM B sty 2

‘HoULVaNOa S
NI VM 25D (T 25 B ONI0S v TNER BHREY

Wv130 339
OO AW L Lo O 2evivon TR
: 4

I

=
A

i d e H.[M-]T._
1
e |

p ! ] |
e E— ™ =
[ i i\
. 5 S 7] '
X = T : i3
g g = . = . i
T ] 5 = — e ENDNNOMD = =
! i1 m - | Hy v v e
i :
] (TR TR i e ]
R an i I S T
Ila SCEWBTEINS e e A
[ | ‘Hn-!:..!d_.-._:lxﬂ:ﬁnn.jh
L3N0V ZUTONOD LNGIE2 2O HLIIO L) OHY L —_— il AL
ormem

3004 1) TV 429 38 6L AU VUO Grew st .u..ﬁl:.!(a_! s {4
U NN GO 3 o S
Jou svoues sremsramm a0 v [T _ E FEnr—

i

: iy I Sapims
=

(| [ = e : g

[ [rmmemSstar sk o

o

DU TINI UL NOS D028 Y
STTVASH B 0L Gz IO AT 2 e
“onayo
G2 H MO BN 36 01 NGLGS TV L
B




———

o
TIVA ENIRIVLEH 307708 v
u!..gu.aﬂzi‘mﬂﬂan Tﬁﬁzﬂl‘ﬁ\.ﬁ

‘PaLIpow i)

ORI S ETVRS £TWASY CAD0N U2 MU Tt v 30 <
=+ ANV LNIIGA Y AN 4010 My (VL] INGREA¥d TR0 NOUIV OO0 Wbt ey
W NTEUTNOD Ldas 20
TS SO INITCIAYA OUAIA CHLLSIXE 32 SEI00 ERIVVAM BHL OMITIA T O hOde.

u
U] dnolgy Uepi Astsiod
40 PapoL hamng

SO0D0ZOT0BluVH 1A A9 12/20/20 peud 12407z,

E

il

43738

i g8
1

g
e

M0 LeooZSDuMEINGadUSEN BUISOH BITERIONY HYOS |

SNYId ONILLIWNIY
avod HLNOWvd 056

Twvos ot som

(2) STV.130 NOLLONYLSNOD
SLIISNHOVSSYIN 'IIJHSYIN

TVEGYVIND VIBALL
0oL 10N
HlV, 0 SNOLS
4300 SMG 2L IOV CNALG 01 MO0 TIWNO CALNCD 'S
SV HLLEV ONY Y PLLSY CHM VI TS SETIMYLR 50 GRIPMIVD.
3440 10H 73 QL SAIAETS “HOLLSTNOO NBHS YA QY LT LI 5100 WY1 FUOHONTY s v

/ALEO 1Y SOVW 24 OL IV SIS T T
36NN 3LYIML ST 39 0L FIVN QY (50 T
TOLVITOMNS TNLIGOV LD INOLYSLIOMS 239 't

e

. g
*ou] ‘drioss uenim Aojsioq

I [y
-
~m

#5704,
9520 W ‘eyepum
v2 &inen o

-
o

3]
ey
suvpmpos

s B
v 9 X
> B
21 e |
N e
. »
3

== w52 sl 235 £ acom 2 s

- FTv23 Ou LoN
' m €3S GNPRIVA QUYONVIE ¥ G3davoranvh
. ) o,
1 e g T
T .
PIBTD e S A B hsiad I R X 3
m— A i s i - oo Tvmom = . r— —r
f 1T R | acumfizrioaci o omie il B~ LS SR S 1 e, S ROE S | [+
| 3! Tn azncaey WV BTy || NS 503 N YR _— R
L LE gomcn ) i (] e
2 _ | gl® . Pl Lo 106 N30 i Sh g _.’.| i
M RRRE i s L3 g i e f—F
- . | . T30 e B0
i sz T\ SRy, i
I} Gahvd VI L OL MIONCO QL D 1 Ty
_ — | 1 A0 B Can LNV O AU ol
o bl 4 b : _
_ — ST =
ftor] L . £ I . T —
Eetnled E ]
| oty g A _ N N, ;oIS
i | ol e i | s . Sem—pey
| — = = - e ]
L] g!!'.\ﬁ .
003 I ey e e oo
b g o Tz . AU & s e o Tl i ¥
NS Bt R st
o S o oy




TvosoLion

“ -
sloidvH 3% Aq 1272070 Pejund L2/L0/20 :payIpoLL 1se)

mF - o WVTISIHD A . ST K0d MOTIV QUL LTIDHD O0 ONY WIHAIDOX LHOL NP S0 LN % S
memieey PR B i S e ST it S 03 H FONFHI 3did I9YNVaa Fa0r
Y YLt L ST Y LA X WS B N L D A Y U %
1z 0 81 | te00z TSRS L LIS MG MO A6 12 S0/ ¥ HALLR i LA 40 0% O A i, LU B S e s ae i IS om0 w2 ¢ 2oram
-l i = i 01 2l
]
B R i oL
1 v MRV HO INTOULAYE B ‘DHIAYS ONY DHICVID LTI TWL AMOTIOS L
TN MOY QSACITZY ONY i DAL A0 QRO WEA00. W CEZMAWANS Ty SOLLONOS
ANTWANCA 03NCRidV ABYUOMTLL WD D03 SIGULY AV SRIVON) AN SNOMYA MG
N GNP ORIV S ML LBOP S¥ TIm Bv VLSV ONY QUHSYY Mica. A 0 BHLA0
AN CSOONIYLIG) I ¥ dO HOLLOA 2L M .
NN GLIROMOG] OO0V 40901 L L OO Sk 4L o oy
PO RV RGO B 52 Vs Wt o O
0 Kl OV U a3 S LB Sty o aos
i, R ey s i e s okt won
T SR BV SR Bt o 506
i oo L L O smansi G (=L
ol ; DR HUG L3 §1 el FCH ¥ WM MACO MRS L L
pr—— 5 oI
VYNOLSEE ] - svaa e
- 1= & vROLSEE sy nzuw HouDEII0D
[rgEeEs e o o [P AEY e | s B S e e
8 = w0 Averzomy =3 DU INOS i LMD | 1 ey Bodzs D UNANIAYE O GH 08 1O 1k ), i)
12885 AR 20 D GVl 2™ e o =1 UnanGavd RO 4 i PETIALILO CRLNVOOROD
m m 2 Cavimas) twv130389) ourd 301 s Gtz o1 -2 Y
g ML v s v — — e =i L camoor o oo O oy
B W 2 = = 0L VROl ROGIR EVRIY
8 . NS O CIMYAQY A8 G3uAce 3
mm 3 oo e
9 AVEIHOS INSHIAZE
5 DTN LHIN 1030 MO SNOLVAT I Y DHIGYED SO B0 VYW 235 5
= ;iéigﬁsggsséi "
oooooo _
‘— nooooo] M AT 3001 NS YoM R S LA e A
| [lE2eBed] 1 BBON0D LN 0 G HLARG 2 ONY 2K 23 TS L289 30 O Biias v sy 4
Va0 oty
I EITETR SR P ——
SOOI 70 VNS SIS 210 2055 B 4 TR0 Soeevs B e @
s 7 CELLL .s..!n!ﬁ!llﬁ-ﬁﬂ.:g
s L AR 0K} e Sestes 1S TG00
3§rga’ ' -
L4+ —
mn F3 M 1010 Y XTBG ENOUINR i TIV
H BV DbVl
3 MBS )
| o

needysep Buisnoy

ER SNV S T A BT T S b S

SR L 4 L L S NS I B s O A A

o N < . L . .__ 3 1. " . ; -
8| & el v AT SIS ISASASASAS ST TATIS) ATASATATAS - —
2.8 U e R B e H R R S R iRHARRERHE R
g RS : Yistals RASARREES S e R AT A
S| mg2 Y .
= < % o
4| €= | EOITT
| »z2
Z|l 0o m e
o] W nI
3| E28 [ommzte TTIIT \ sy, eewdmsas/ | ERee el ) 00
> c =0 AMMROS IO
|l 95>
7] m =} w0 00 0w
NVTdTHTHONGML 381 WL vANUOLE GIONVHRE
8| a FoNGIDE [ —— aars: tarones
Y B B L S LT O V0 AR RIS A S, L o w4 1 LISt ST 5
P '
PO .o .
eSS
o - me
f s oamouaci TG
m TEAVNE 4O B30 Hi08 T v
] Snivep v s s om0 as00> oS (5 W
| IRl : o S
B i Saroct et S My "
el TR | A
i e ba e e, i ) 1
f o S RER =l Bt S I SH S
£ N T e | B |
— L 40 30V L ML BTRTIS SOV BV i s o ¥ STHONd
i RSN | - T _ el e A
- ovina g TR —— SRS — -
i R o | ol | B e T G
e wisme . O s g
T T o - f g
P ., g L e
A - L o Wl
i = et
B 0 Ghvacaamou a9 S 34 s e s oSS
O 20 The& SLIN RIFL
m AL R 30 OM I 0 0 G s
LSRR R Tt L 3 Se oty
- e e AR e SR e 24 S el et
o bt o G D v Sl
| et
i 18— ;vmanne UL B4 20NITY TTION LYHL TYMELYN ANV 40 DV $F003 ALV WO SormL 1o
i EE T o
: e o A L R s o
B praamy MO SR QnUTY ONALTA DO -a:gl!!.-.:odh.ﬂgg \
T .
EAR

HYOd

[ZEELT




20 010 AIVINOR A0V "V UL ML AN AL B
00 CUABOY 8 SO NOUKALINOR SOOI 0L TSNS SN BB bt o A et

'
SRV HO GRLOER 3V AV TAYID VR TSN T

oI ol L
30 3O 2L T AT YT MOHY KTEVA NOUVARER0 ‘CHvL0 51k W ORLVIRS By

NN 3L GRSV TAYMO BOYI ‘BDHMYECINO GaLVIRH) ¥ T3AMD VHLIoN) .
40 <L N0 JRIYA 2L MY TIAVM ‘el 22 1O-03 HON. CHATION) WIVERANN THVaR 1

1V LTy

8 TEBOUNIO B M G2 1Y HTAO A8 NOLLYAYOKS 1L CHETTy Oy (s I1 TIVASHG

A povasg daamg
:
|

MO NOUOMRALENGD 2LIS OHMQ MO0 NOLLVAVIIE 4L ONOTY LY NP JNFRGER TAGON
‘ENUNGRUNCD B4 HHLIA $Y2UY GRRMLET] 1oV TUNN Y3 NOUNLIWOR 34 LT3 LON 00 'Y

Sl ENCUVIGIO DT 35341 2ETU0SANS 5O Wdckdal MO TaE) Y VHENS WO IS0

-

.......r.. b M THOVL MCERIYN KL LN 21 4O 287 SRAL B2 RN HLM NSO LHOM 2O 1IN0
e wme _. xonie |, TSXMUDNOTUEMIYIE Y ML ST XML Xk ATIO 250 ARIYDD ¥ DN ALYV B T o
3 @ al Tk SRS PG o) ]

“2u] "dnouD wa, AojsioH
i3
i
Buishoif eiqepioy HyOd 1E00N0ZOSOR(OUH %9 AQ 1272020 :Dequpd LZ710/20 ‘Poyipall isey

] E]
T H
1ESES R £
3 v e T—_ Twanouswres
3tegs’ : AT S,
] m is g TR S
833 NN 08 LSO NU NI N7 Tstey
m gg RS GavDRa 7Y O O NN VD MO 1L 30 3L I OO ot s Loy
& e TS A el 20 KR TR A s ML s i Fa
3 — . LR YT BOVUCLS DOV VUL ¥ G20 S v e S a2
a 4 oo ey P0G VUGN 40,1004 v LT O TRUNEWS MLz
b LAV MU DO TGN CHAIY YEN AL 06 Bt B e 0
TR W U L A W 1 TONMYI AL Ml NI vt
e ouson e ALV A OS C BAAVORE D
i [ ErE ETLERE] SRS ecaca o O s mucuyon
T " TNV UTIO Avat 00 3128 8 300 HLYE 10051 0O VBN
i 14 UV Y MO UBNO MO 5 1004 VIO 000} QL COU QLN L) S v s AR RA SV Pk s et s
I B LA N3 L2 e TR0 L0k SR L LY NI MG YD Y S OO B R 21t s R T 5
- v v sy % NN ¢ S TS ) B o s e aviowagen | 3
o o I v
[o] m M oV v | &
4 muu EVRSART 1 VAP NOLNLIHON G350 3L D Y ANTD m
gl 3® P — U0 S T s G arars | B
| B35 S e R
o Sy 2 by ?
c FPS M prigrinniioy
el == vamtaToy |2
4| 4= o] W= T O
3| 5z0 FEwIITE T o e e —
b3 b7 Zc LML SO0 e oMLY 2110 IREY v nowezwon Y "SHOH I S OULVAYIX3 O S0 IR LAY ) 25V NOUVAYDRA A
o > 2] w_ QLTUBRIH 1499 Ly14 SV WO FIVRGUWY LD Ay 0L LO G X Ly 3 0. b o
E oY e o 2 wmoa
-2 v camn s ORI LY SR e s s [ i sS4 o vt ssor s
2| €20 : N0 RO oA 0L VIS TV J08 3L LDV 5112530 AN TGO YAV Gl A o)
= 7P VD341 A3 OOV B TTCHE DNLTAL TIV “AMVERZO04 DY N SHL LM O B f s M
a L1 L EV L BT 4L TR W YL L Ml Wt
» m wrves ou s TSI L o ‘aurn rames
_
> ]
w T Arven WeaEom
wees St
"unay o Tow VRIS
UMD TSI TR TR TSRS WIS e HUTR i s DA
LIV TR A e TS e e S T ST O ST
) Qe Vi KT S "SONAY IS MO CRAVORIN SV MALY) HOVWe TTvLSHE T2
oo P T
IR T e iy
w H 08 A0 VLDV U0 Rl Vs Aan TR T
a - WO LRI IS0 TN O IR TEC TIRRNT sousmiat NG CAYO0M G SLontria Tuuot oo
Bl dEesisl = — o L i v M e B i S A, SO £ S s Woawt
HH ez e e LT Ty I oo
1 Wm DBy Mo _ E SSTOUSTRR 1) ALY B GUNACSNY X1V HOR 1L L 108 IOUSELLIUION QRase s w21
e = e
o g | : SOULVOLITZHS WIRHIYA 2y s vawv svitir ccnea 10 ot s 300 oatavos e oy
# 2D auon HOLIINGO HIGUIVSUYS TRV NVITYD ¥ Wl 21 L 0kd 3L SV Y SICBGEENDA SORTMYLAL N3 GO BY WY TAAD Vo Thvan 51
£ 2 sy oo LN o AU MM R AL 31 PR 18 o e S a0 R TR RGN ST T O
i |m_ ¥ ey ﬁ LSS B TH 350481 XA ONY SAOHDY W ML NIV Y RS T O TR BT U oA ND LSO T NVKA TG
P L TIvieN €
]
LD bt
— QInOHS S O r
s - BETSUE T IR T
: ™ Searvs My U L 4
5

Sgyeono)

s o o OliGuss AWM IV NOUIGION BLKGHIM YIS Y S00va UAI 0 ALY TRA I B s B

VA NowaIzos

D UL WOR AVORY WSIWIRIOLO LA 01 FIOUINGD INIMTIS CHY NOCH VYO Teisre 2
(VYLD CPMY C20VAD 49 BAVH Sy Tovnviaa

(OMUNSIILIER: 3L NHIM TYANY CRALSIO TIV TN VWY NOLILTION 3L LRILSHGD L000 00 '8

- R

Fourmumon
B rowamon a wms svmmos venmy v Mo nEuvme e v
DL ISLVSO UOTD RYHL 65 40 BCLOW b ¥ BAYH Y !
oM YO8UOL S3384 DOIXCH 20 Sl B8 O Y O U0 LIV BAMIC S S o W v [
e Tl Sl U RO UL H21013 I00Y) 0T M 0 T 00, BB B Ty — MOLTAYOIE v L SON £ LS SO 0D T
L S e oYL S T TR TS MM SISO 7 e enaonan DTS LM 434079 33 v VI GRS e T s 3
> — p T Ty S 1
MR A CRNY3 ORI G it T 10 LORRIGS 0 TeALRLTE Pt B, s vy € . o i e :
s LI Lo a0 Y SO IR D L S AR RS e S
ARy 0 X0t oL 221 K300 WA Y NGNS 30 0L 93VA1D NGO Bl vy 2




8L-0

128 01 10N Tvos oL 10n ! T oL 1o
W13 L¥0d HONI 0k HOAIWHOLE UVLIA TTOLINVIN MOY HOLVIOST HO3LNHGIS !REgiwonﬂhﬂﬁ V130 I04INVIN sav
HIAWYH: 40 ¥36) 2 gz_nﬁﬁ—b—w huﬂlEOkss—PUN&mSL M . 'A3MINO3Y 5) KaALAvaY
oHova Fioaw ) f ;
ol iﬁﬂzuﬂobﬂd-wnenhnﬂtsngﬂa t sazanvHO .wJﬂzV T Bl HADOPS Q1 DRLYDNH00 ¥ 'Sl LTINI 24 H0J ‘¥ GNA HL
M0Y mHOLYIOR /
HoRLROLe . [N .
.ﬂ BMNZHID
3 — SSTWN ANO
ﬂ/x/ IBHVHO DML
LS4k N3N
GELYD0T3a
/ QL IMWGEL09

. SWOU LTI HEEHVHO TIV LY NDLLOZLONA
NG N T HNOOS MO INOLE NOLIVINNGL IN0
S EANOREN FILLALOIO NIAOW | SEVIO0 G521 OLHSYY

TIOIIMOHING

£0020202EI0laH %0 40 L2200 PRV 12710720 Pegipowl 1587

o~ |
—

SNOLLYOII93dS TYIINHIAL 056-05
fer WINON Y SNOISNIWI THY 0N
o “WIAT] SUS BNILLE IHL LVHL OS BB ZIN

LT BRUND DUANCO T VLR [p el E TYRIEALYA TID(IY ko ol ST
SO B 8 Jwurs VA D 20 WAL 24 3L uod .

NSk HOMNS Ein SeaLr 5 S TR Sy 3
0 5365 11 40 OB 0o B TN > ISR } v 31 90 319G SIS el
A0G T L iy L 0¥ N SHL 30 WOLLOH 31 HLWA oM Bl BNLE BHL 90, SORUN0 3L 1

i vi PN VAL 2 A0S ipow cau HONE o¥D ON3 20 MIOLLOB LY (301 Si5v 82} 30301608 SHL HOA L33 ‘SENIE TIV

s
O OF300HI 4N 1A 419 O CEEDCRA B CllE MACRY 0 1Y IS8 6
T

DIHALID A VS (00 O LY VIS WSO MY _H.n.:. = TP
2 B =3

] M

=
1eITeadysei BUISNOH BIGERIONY HYO L

] z ;
e
¥ ¥ ~De HUMA QN 54vD ONE 03609 3tk
f ]
3 ..—. SUZEANN LUV 03 ¥ GNT 40 JOL LY JENLS BY+3bd
. HLW DNINS SEZENNN
1V4 504 dvD WOLIOR 1¥ 5OnE Bva-3ud El
g| & = - - T o = [ = e e - 01 w0030 H
Zz » © o s | an an » 3 . - » . ﬁ..“: ®  fasemd rn BUSANYHA NIMALIG ONY MO8 SA0BY (Wl 751} 3 STANSSY. m
AELE N o Ton = R T T T e R e . . - g
I— a e -~ uwwol
- | o | & N w = o
M ﬂ m .V_._ r - Lotedf i = = = - it . Woo  maEn Ly ovous ety m
- 3 wit | oz | ww | we o " a | a8 | em | & |ow B famnd o i
2] b= g $7vL30 TVOINHO31 HOFIWEO1S - T WAL QO X W PS8) 'SP 00 X OE {HLDNT O TVISN X W i W) 3218
3| £d= i LT T PR 1 I I A T A A I oadt Ao
ol 223 | J e | wun i useryc| vei s wrene wngo| e
° SLIS ONU LI SHL VL OF BNLS 211 SHL MOTIE WONS CIAONIY Do (o masnl o | S .Eﬂ.,iil_ulsu_-!i o | 23| won | wmwn |ou | S| au | agll | (S | wenn
m M“w P 36 TINOHS WLV TILDOVE 62') ATALVYINONGY cvD anS 3HL Py | e | oo | maluos o e [P0 STEE Soin | B | et |somoume| Faun VIS | s
£ [7] = 20 HOLLOE 242 MO B3N BNLE 57 FHL BIZI09.405 BHL MO LR LLATn e —ere—s - T e yog) s ey
fl @pz - Y02 408 R, 1¥ OIS LIVINGO NN S S - B 1% i
TYHOLLICAY 803 '0vD QNS SH1 50 WGLLOS FHL HUM HEM i
E m W nuw S) BNLE ML 30 ¥32NYIC JAIRLIC BHL LVHL HINS dvD ONE 40 ﬁ {una 503) i g6g)
= B = b4 v -y WOLLOG LV U30V1d 3V B1Z3d 302208 FHL B0 1323 ‘SALS 1TY r e
0 m “g TYHINON T ENOISNSNIO TIV TLON
o [Ty  o— T TTry T3 = (HOLLYENHH00 TTVNS HIA)
8| 3 —= = = = — spuYong TS )
- =TT T Ty frry
ﬂ!u! - = oy ey
3 T S—— = ey aa o
C o — - (N T — —) ALLE - i
- e T —— Frry
[Ty - - BT S— —
r— - [ S meoam v s
X & KT S SO Y — O — — it
gl i g S 7 S S o—— T e e !
f e | == = Moty
§| ghesaks = e — ——— i S—— (e c12) 59
L] umm M L. HUM BNICN3 SUIENN L1V HO4 D ONS 50 S0L LV SAMIE —
“ m 3 = IOLLOE 1V S3NLE
wn m. 9152 LHOEM 200 ¥ ODOY QL WL HOS ALY,
£ 13RO 3OVHOLS WtV SHOUYOLIE 242 ET T O K3 VY 000 TVO0TMA HOLLOMMLIGD 21 40 254d T Ch
i m.d YSUROURTIS _(HIONT) OFTIIENI X XM 28 RS 231084 L SR ok LIRS O NSO L S L Srd 0. '8
5 u won B O0 i
[+ a HOWOTM SHL. il DAL MOV K81 TMOHLTY) LM OL ) KIS T BN QAN L Ve e
f e E!ﬁgijweﬂi!i:uh.ﬁsguogiawﬁ!.ﬁﬁgﬂ.
‘DOUROLY T30 LWL SN ONMUNAS MO TUISH N ML IVALNGE, HOALIGIOLS A
- (NOUYONHOD TIVHE HIAD). ST LIOUHLA MO0 0 A 40 034K 30,40 20 I HELLDNGD TALISEI RIS IV TIVIVAY OSTY 3 HOUMWTHOa PO TANGD 20 0o G o e
m 2L HIBNVHO LN VIHING VUMD ASYEEIAN MUK S30VE00 TIMACOAL DN B3R 051 e o Gy v TR TEHLCIO 40 XLV A0 GHOLLONML S0 HOLLY TV SS03UMOLS L MaT L e 3
] e R ——
wonoman LD RS AL KMOGRRTROEND L
H
2o s e et MU, NCKLVTIVI S 6020000013 SO NOISHIA LIEDLNT 1SOW L
7 i v a0 B T 50 tovonco auvu enane FOU WY T Tl IRV 8 SNOUMTLIN MOTICH L4 KELIAG GHTOUY ORI EHOM S0 NEINGSS I s
" o camusu.rae —] pron— e e
I LMGd NOLLD3SNI MO — Lyl
B S unxuisxua..wc@x iii 00 R QLN T o, ol "
s —| e, s ] s o
i Iﬂl AUDROV TRIT0MS $O# ARSI e 1301025052 e VRV 39VE6NS LAY L fl.:s-!ﬁgllliﬂuiﬂu.?xgi..ﬁuﬁieg{g_Sas.g
ALVRl tsa crw Wclin v Tew - St e TR 3 T A0 BV ot S e i 3 it s
q x B G Yoiooue v 1LY OB 113 AN R UNCO TV NNF30 GRS H EALLAS Uod IRt iy ¢
S| e s .
TR GITIOND e ks Wb £ IR AL NOU Wi G 40 o0 Y AN CLL NGO WOELMANL M LISA 160 MLV SN RN
e o e iin TVRECAL VOL MYdet G2 TR L TIYD HOUSIIAISHO SUBLEAS Sty DN AUt Sy
O TVRO P VT 1t L0 201 VMU0 OHITIYL 8 2l IO Y WAL 18 e
B v i = o v e e et 1L o T e ]
A SRRt L e s 9MINGD B OTLNG) ENTIYLM L BLLVT TGO NOLY T80 E a0 B s Rl W
% o SNOULYORISSVS LY Sl LRI O 431 01 SRV B O Aol ot

EI16N Tvaanas HO3IREOIS




(1 NV1d 3dVOSANYT TWNL43ONOD_ _ :,
3|
SLIASNHOVSSYW ‘I3dHSYIN g=un
SNY1d ONILLINN3d 1S
QvOY HINOWTVA 056 g i
b
1
. oy
Por Dby
88 M .
SRR RIAE
TN 8 &
AN .
b :

v,
vy

e,

Y Y """""‘"\v—\.'\\

Y
=

0
Quereas perthis

'§-r\§§

Ompv




02-v1
1z R oz | ez
e

]

i
£

]
!

iy

(2) Nv'Id 3dvOSaNYT TYN1430N0D

SLIISNHOVSSYW ‘I3dHSYIN
SNYId ONLLLINSId

Qvod HLNOWIVS 056

133402 = HONI &
oy
] 4 o o ¢ ®
VIS JHIVHO

20
==

| T = iy

am
e

WNIN Hvuga0
o
"G4 HLAGTVS D00k
VZ107 €8 dvii

BMD'Y 100215 EUIMEIeOYSEYY BUISNOH OIERi0LY HVOH |E002\0Z0TSIdvH 3 49 1272000 Paud 2710720 :payIpow 158

Q556 TELHOM T -
(RN

12) WL
m— e e e S o—

[T

PVAVIS SEVH

/




IRSTETR
VIS0 BHDVES DNIN i

TIvG 1008 20 VWD
YRV IALISNIS NIZOMUN ¥ NIHLUA §1 2015 2

UIAVED ¥ INOUIAIN
ONLNVI 3Ly "z
INILL B0 SRILE LNV SHL ONNOHY HIINW OO
4 . I - 2 ¥, BO T LON 00 HOWIE 30 SIONI -2 AEITH OL S0 TTv ‘FSUMIHLD
o i L 2 - . oMMV TV HO M 1T
..... i - h & .
BLNYLI 3HL 90U 5OVTS ONY SOVL NV TIY BAOWSN ‘0

WALV NIVLSY 0L K0S
»OLZY UYIUD B

oy 3808
G350 BL00K ON KL NV 100N 03TV 4O GRUSINAL ON ML ST
ANYV1d "SIV LO0H AL 3HL NGOG OL HINONS JZ30 ONY HONONZ
30201 5TTOH ONLINYIH 8 "TIONY NY LV.LON OHY LHERIAN INYd ‘060 ‘21

TICL MWL
TG AW

e
QUN) HLMOKD LOOM SHYMLIC ALOWONMA OLL SNUNVG THOL30 SLO0H Il

SHO3S U0 NISOTTONY LOd SHLINCHS INYId ZHL AONTH BINYI 03110 BL

ONLLLSS TU0LI8 AN J1 'SLATVG
SAONR O GHY
nﬁcnuowb-:n&w—w:nﬁmuigémgtﬁ!:-g._ﬂ-m.

'ENOIO3ASNI aTald

ANY SHING2HIE 0L HOME TINVADY N} SEIICH U 40 NIYMN ¥ L¥ 10LLN MY

SdVOSOAYY 3L AJUON "BNINY I DL 307d LI2) (HOUV SIVOSONY AR
O31053A THid 36 0L 34¥ BNOLYDOT DNINVII TVILLDY GNY LN0AVT IhYia TIY ‘14

“SHOLLVOIIDZAS ONY S310M IHL URd SVAXY
GS5040kd TIY. )

0I0M SVISAN VIV

HOJ ALINIAISNOKG3Y BINNSSY HOLOVMINGD B4vOSONY 4L NY ‘GALNYIL

36 0. SY2Y 2VA0BNS 40 SONVLIZ00Y S21VII0N) XelOM 40 INIHIONSYRIDS

Basa 193uMO0NI
"DNIGVHD AN LHOJTH

-

SVEUY TI¥ LO34SN) 24

64077 L E00ZSOUMEIC\RBOYSEI GUISNDH BIAEPIOY HYOd VEOOADZODNSIBIOINA X Ad 12720720 ‘Petuud  L2/b0/z0 palipow 158

'HDISH ONIINYRE QHVANVLS
o anv ™
J0OTSId I3UNVIVAD SHL
40 LN2IXIONIINOD 34, SNV QORI 3ONVNILNIVIY TYLLIN) ONY NOLLYTIVLEN!
30 0Nz 3HL EAHE) 03T HHOO TV,

0 AU¥0 3L ‘GORIS0 AINVIRIYM HOJ TVNSTUN ENOLLGNOD
HINLYAM TYINHONTY MO 'LINAMO AG IENTY MO LOTIDIN "BONVNZLNM
UMDY 40 HIV) W02 ONLLUIN 103430 HOS L4ITXT HLMOND

OnNY SNV 1d 53341 104,

g ONV LNV
SUNENS 0L 3IMINDZX 3B AYW HOIHAL BNIILYM ONY Z0NVNIIN Y
TYNOLLOGY ANV 30 20 ALTTIEISN
1.L1 GNY BOLOVINOD 3L 30 %80 3908 LY NZHVLMEANN £1 S31v0 SNLLNY A
OSONIH4IN JA0BY IHL WO NOLLVIAI] ANY ZHN IV INSHSTIBVIST
Q232 S5V bO LNV
“SONUNYId NO 3HL| K
" VHL MIDMYT LON ONV £ 310348 AON T,

1K usr 30 30
SORINCND TIVIHS OLNI SHYI ONLLNY o 3HL MO QELLVOION) SY LNvd AWOANV .

SNYId SNILLINYAY
QY0d HLNOWIV4 056

SVL3Q ? SALON ONIINVId
S1IISNHOVSSYI ‘I3dHSYIN

'EI549 INVE IHL 0 VIV FDWVIINYL. v St vaonaLIEs
S5 MIBNZADN (U §1 HIOWALITS STVINNGMDG
TSN EOAVTINGG 5L ¥2ANAAON 0L 61 ¥IBWALZS NAIYDHIND
£ ¥IBWIAON 0L 91 HISWELY3S ‘SNONQIIZA Tvd
SNOBYIS DNLLNYd GHONINNOD 3 3HL
nggggggu_ﬂxgwmﬂ;gﬁyg + 3N 0L 91 kv “BHIACDANNOYS
T - h “VHOLLIOGY 'SLVISIH NOLYNINSZD 1938 3H). O LSION ALINALEISNOD + 3000 O 51 Tidy STYNNEN3A
i ] w“ CBNIVINIY 26 LENM Y3 SHL “Bv3iv G30339 DNRIELLYA 504 0381 58 Thets S5 3OS 0L L Tady NITUOUTAY
a2 gggsgﬁihgg(ﬁngg $HINAT OL b Wi HSB_QUD ONIRidS
= LON SINLLBAS NOUVORRIINY 4 ‘DNIRELYM ONRIG CILVENLYE LON 1 TONLNYI 04 SNOVAE '8
S g NI 3L LYHL 3UNSNG OL NaDIvA 30 OWIOKS IHvd W30S A TvE OZUENM
] 85 8 0RO SHAAY) 030380HAAH HOVBNY D335 AW 3HL NANIN Y 0¥ '© ...Ea:z(nua HORd T
W mm m QEHSMEViSI 3HL WZFUZE:EW.—SESBQ._WEEESE "LoNHiSd ENOLLIGNOO
E Ol IUSHAV T/ HENO ONY 1 HIHLVIM 0AUEYIIN0) A D0Hd
a 3 wz.u._(._D.— OHLLINM z_agsogn ONY ININIUINOIY BTOIIS INYId NOEN aasve N ARUTVAH Nvwa
VIV LWVd O TWWHHOS ONDIALWM LUVIHCOMNAY MY 3 K
L H e . v ONY GIUILVA ‘OINIINAY ATHIAON SOV ATHL. SHASNI OL ALMIISNOGSIE
-— s HINN NSawL3E SHOLOVEINGO ML 51 1) ‘ONLINYIA OL HORID LIS ML 1V O3HOUS
q. i NGLLLSA ANV ¥id. meWK!gl_gueE:vszzE;gd(;z_ L
E H B o S TILEAS 100U 0340 TIAM Y SAVH ONY ‘IVANYY
f FHVD LAk M3 !
YO $DO3 FLS3d ONV 'SLOAEN] “FEVASIN S0 ATk ‘SLNVIL NMOHS AMIBENN
—1 TICABANITVR Eémw:gsg—gF(ﬁsﬂngLD:gOd
3HL NI 3S0HL OL SINVId 6
w‘ 'SNOLLYDI413dS
M nsgmx.—‘mhnmz(hg).ﬁm%.—gsggu g_§(§n<w&g§g§¢q!2a_!u!(m?—
" 130 ATSAIREIINT ‘NAZOMS ! FCVHOBNE HL 41 DGO OVEAS LON 0O r A8 GSHENBN 'NOLLIGS 1S2UY] . RIOLE ANISHIN 0d QHVONY.LS NVONIWY.
VOS2 /ENY 30 SLNSNIHINDIN 318D ddY. HIM ANOT OLEINYId TIV ¥
“NOLYION A8 240 MY OL ISOLI] ATIVET] ANY H3LLWW
i e SHOINVILG UZHLO ONY HSIBENA “8LO0N '$HOLLS HON| b N 39HY NOLLVTIVASN| 0L 30J6d LOALIHIMY
m N mgngslsgghﬁahn(g 03500 LEIDOTONE AB Q3A0HAIY 38 LS NOLLITTIS NOLMLUSENS
N ghngmamtbgnsﬂuohsémsgglog € ANV M.ﬂggggZank.QWﬁmmmE(sgwﬁw
.« “f mEz_gngggsgvﬁsgKd?;:z,nsx»il:u T
BNV
w = 3HL NI MIN “RLIS 1D 0N 0L AMZAMNI0 0L O
il HLM Q30738 ONY WPOT ALTVAD 218 ANV HIM LST1 LNVl ¥ ONIGTIONI
— _ LSV (NI OL LHINOYE 36 0L g:éﬁwlmwﬁzvnwn_gnﬁggimaWDﬁg GIYINDIY
_ “ VL SYENY TV T T v Qt Liweng
“AGNIOV ENLLSIL SHL
A8 G3LO3HI0 BV 102401 TFUDIOOLS ONV VO SHL NI S3(ONZI0L30 19300

2
LV ORUINDaM -
A SAVIBNY 3HL 0L ONLUEM NI LINGNS HHOM
HLUM SL¥1631 LS3L HIINIONS ONY LTLLOEY SavOBONYIIHL Of SVISONY ANY 0 JHINZONZAIN0D JHL O HORLJ SININELICEN JavISaNY)
Lwans N GEEINOS NV ik LOSNOYd IHE MINTY A HONONOHL “ATHO
AHOIWHOSYTENULSAL ¥ (1 YOSS0L FHL 40 Tk “ B3N o +

HION BAKETE WaaiaD “FICN SN VIS

"HIMOND EEVHD ONY LNV Td ALONON OL SINEALVIML




L

BULDING A SECOND FLOOR PLAN

2BEDROOM

7

T
|
L

250

i
5 3K
i

A

jat

1

o

| = A

2 BEDROOM

N

BULLDING A GARDEN FLOOR PLAN

2 2| PRESERVATION OF AFFORDABLE HOUSING (POAH) 3| 8|0ATE: PURPOSE: —_

2 o 3|e | TISE DESIGN ASSOCIATES
E ] z| 950 FALMOUTH ROAD 2 "‘HE SCHEVATIC DESIG SMISSION Architecturs  Site Planning  Project Management

H 2| AFFORDABLE HOUSING PLAN 5| 2 [05.08.2020] o suBMISSION
—_n F 3 | MASHPEE, MA 02649 g
a #% | DRAWING TFTLE: S 1075 i Street
=) 2nd Floor

BUILDING A FLOOR PLANS } West Newlon, Massachusetts 02465
{617) 581 . 6601




2 =) TS
NV1d HOOT7d LoEld @ oNiging

o-— o~ "o —714g

o= =W TN

NV 1d HOO0T4 aNO23S &4 oNIaing

|
\
|

1
J
[of @ | I

B 0 IS
L =i B |
: AN G

o
/Ao HOH G

!

S R | PRESERVATION OF AFFORDABLE HOUSING (POAH) 3|@[DATE|PURPOSE:

g 2 38 { TISE DESIGN ASSOCIATES

E &| 950 FALMOUTH ROAD 5 05.08.2020, SCHEMATIC DESIGN SUBMISSION prohfectre it Planing  Project Management
b ] i’ AFFORDABLE HOUSING PLAN ® E {5-0E,2G20DHCD SLPMHSSION
o o |_MASHPEE Ma 02648 115

# | DRAWING TITLE: ) 1075 Street
a o 2nd Floor
= BUILDING B FLOOR PLANS — West Newton, Massachusetts 02465
(617} 581 6601




BULDING B ATTIC PLAN

XTal SRV WOINYHIA

BUILDING A ATTIC PLAN

XiWad FTIDY TWINVHIRA
CAPHI VIO SXE -

SCALE: /8" e I' - O°

“# BNIMYEA

ANV

NOILVMLSIDAY

950 FALMOUTH ROAD

AFFORDABLE HOUSING PLAN
MASHPEE, MA 02649

DRAWING TITLE:

TISE DESIGN ASSOCIATES §

PRESERVATION OF AFFORDABLE HOUSING (POAH) ;] E DATE: |PuRPOSE: i

2
] 05.08.2020| SCHEMATIC DESIGN SUBMISSION .

o t Architecture Site Pi
3| 7/05.08.2020, DHOD SUBMISSION chtec Tenring
N ] —

o 1075 Street

fi 2nd Floor

BUILDING B&B ATTIC PLANS

—

West Newtan, Massachusetts 02465
(617) 581. 6601

Project Managernent |8




O = = TS

NVId 2004 LSald 2 oNIaing

W2 =\l = @) TS

NVTd AOOTTd ANOD23S 2 oNIagiing

€LY

# ONIMYEQ

‘NOULVALSIDIN

PRESERVATION OF AFFORDABLE HOUSING (POAH) % & |DATE: PURPOSE: TISE DESIGN ASSOCIATES
950 FALMOUTH ROAD gl gs.@.zozq:_SCHEMAﬂc DESIGH S)MSSIOH -| Architecture  Site Planning Project Management
AFFORDABLE HOUSING PLAN ;‘ Z 05.08,2020° DHCD SUBMISSION 3
MASHPEE, MA 02649 9
DRAWING TITLE: g ;OZSF ] ington Strest
nd Floor
BUILDING C FLOOR PLANS West Newton, Massachusetts 02465

(617) 581. 6601




%L
RS
==
-

%
b .

oA &

hin S 1

&,

4

ELEVATION

EADE A\ o s W

TYPICAL WALL SECTION DTLS

SCALE, B/4" = I' - O°

{sem ALSO A21)

| B=0" FREFINISHED PIEER CEMENT CLAD

ELEVATION SRImesy

SCALE I n -

SCAE 1 =

®
£
£
©
@]
@
@
«
=
g
7
w
6
g
0
TA

Site Planning Project Management £

West Newlon, Massachusetts 02465

1075 Washington Street
(617) 581. 5501

2nd Floor

=

STADING A PETAL REFTE

PURPOSE;

ELEVATION

1L 90" PREFINISHED FHEER, CEMENT CLALY

2020| SCHEMATIC DESIGN

05.08.2020| DHCD SUBMISSION

DATE:
05.

F1E
£ 2 [05.08,
5|0
w5
iz
E
]

PRIVAGY FENGE, TYP,

SGALE: I/8" = I'= O

e

—_ %2

~ PREFINSHED PIBER

§

¥

L3

BUILDING A ELEVATIONS & SECTION,
TYPICAL WALL SECTION DTLS

PRESERVATION OF AFFORDABLE HOUSING (POAH)
950 FALMOUTH ROAD
AFFORDABLE HOUSING PLAN
MASHPEE, MA 02649

DRAWING TITLE:

§

REGISTRATION:

ELEVATION

DRAWING #:

A2.0




@w g
w g
E 5
L5
O3
O e
< g
N.m £
gz § £
e — RN
L& =2
80" PREFINSHED FEER B e £°
/ALIMING INSULATED CEMENT CLAD PRIVACY Em MMM
PANEL. xmrm<)|ﬂ_nuz FENCE, TYP. 7] £ :Inw.Nx.a
SCALE /e = I'- 07 ﬂm WN%”

05.06.2020] SCHEMATIC DESIGN SUBMISSION.

05.08.2020¢| DHED SUBMISSION

| PREFINISHED FIBER CEMENT LAP SIDINS 4 TO
| PEATHER, TP, ——— —
STANDING SEAM METAL ROCFING -

:
G

ALE; AS NOTED

PROJECT#: 3

Ly

B2
o
7

F AFFORDAB._E HOUSING (POAH)

4
o
950 FALMOUTH ROAD
AFFORDABLE HOUSING PLAN

02648

=

Vil
:
j

SHPEE, MA

lI!':_AWING TITLE:
BUILDING B ELEVATIONS & SECTION,
TYPICAL WALL SECTION DTLS

/il

1

L5
) off

g - /\ et - __\A.. R N m H ; l“l.

| REGISTRATION:

YRl
e Y
@\lk & , m o
3

Jmn

il

|

i T T —

T ExromeD concreme, TYm,

BUILDING SECTION ELEVATION ) ELEVATION

2R E
e A2.1

DRAWING #:




NOILV AT

\
“— SNILOOH WITN WYES SNIaNYIS

T SNV REEA OIS

NOILY AT T
Z

e naA 3san SoNUNGD

=T

L
4
B

Q

Z

LEATVRG ——| SN X0% +

“# ONIMVIA
*NOLLYHLSIOIH

v

BUILDING C ELEVATIONS

TISE DESIGN ASSOCIATES

Site Planning Preject Management

PRESERVATION OF AFFORDABLE HOUSING (POAH) % 8 DATE: | PURPOSE:

950 FALMOUTH ROAD g Eos.os,zuzo]scnwmc DESIGH SUBMISSION |\ oo o

AFFORDABLE HOUSING PLAN & | & |05.06.2020, DHGD SUBMISSION

MASHPEE, MA 02649 g

DRAWING TITLE: = 1075 i
2nd Floor

West Newton, Massachusetts 02465

617) 581. 6601

HY

NOILY AT

T ¥
\
ALMHYEM

Gl NS eV e s SN
=
[ |

aoray —

el
T PNIGEYT? WA FHOUE ——— —-"".L'_'—,'_'J.

AL 'SONHE LY L | ke
‘AL UNGA 3 SIONLINGD — 4




Document Path: H:\Projects\2020\20031 POAH Affordable Housing Mashpee\GIS\Maps\USGS_Locus.mxd

*2016 NAIP imagery service

Legend
G Subject Property

|:, Parcels

1" = 400 feet

Horsley Witten Group 7
Sustainable Environmental Solutions ||| '
rmminas LS

USGS Locus
Phase | Environmental
Site Assessment
950 Falmouth Road
Mashpee, MA

Date: 9/8/2020 Figure 1

*Bureau of Geographic Information (MassGIS), Commonwealth of Massachusetts, Executive Office of Technology and Security Services




DOVERIROAD =

Document Path: H:\Projects\2020\20031 POAH Affordable Housing Mashpee\GIS\Maps\Aerial.mxd

*2016 NAIP imagery service .
Legend Horsley Witten Group

Suslainable Environmental Solution:
5 Rowe BA » P 1. Bancuszn, #a 0254,

ﬂ Subject Property S —

(j Parcels Aerial Photo
Phase | Environmental
Site Assessment
0 950 Falmouth Road

e Mashpee, MA
17 =800 feet

*Bureau of Geographic Information (MassGIS), Commonwealth of Massachusetts, Executive Office of Technology and Security Services




DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

This Development Agreement (this “Agreement”) is made as of this_2nd__day of
_February_, 2020, by and between Preservation of Affordable Housing LLC, a Massachusetts
limited liability company, having a place of business at 40 Court Street, Suite 700, Boston, MA
02108 (“POAH”) and Housing Assistance Corporation, a Massachusetts nonprofit corporation,
having a place of business at-460 West Main Street, Hyannis, MA 02601 (“HAC,” and jointly
with POAH, the “Developer”) and the Town of Mashpee Affordable Housing Trust, a body
politic and agency of the Town of Mashpee, Barnstable County, Massachusetts created in
accordance with the provisions of M.G.L. c. 44, §55C, having a place of business at 16 Great

Neck Road North, Mashpee, MA 02649 (“Town”).

Recitals

A. Town is the owner in fee simple of certain property containing approximately 13
acres at 950 Falmouth Road, Mashpee, MA (“Property”). Town has determined that there isa
need for affordable rental housing in the Town of Mashpee. Town has determined that it can
best accomplish this purpose by disposing of the Property to a private developer to develop,
construct and operate such housing and to have all of the benefits and burdens of ownership
while Town has regulatory oversight via a long-term ground lease to ensure to that the
affordability requirements are satisfied.

. B. On or about February 20, 2019, Town issued a request for proposals in connection
with the contemplated development, construction and operation of a maximum of sixty-nine (69)
units of affordable rental housing on the Property.. On or about April 23, 2019, Developer
submitted a proposal (the “Proposal”) to develop, construct and operate 39 residential units on
the Property as generally described in the Proposal which is attached as Exhibit A and
‘incorporated herein by reference and otherwise in accordance with this Agreement (the
“Project”). On or about December 4, 2019, Town designated Developer as the developer for the
Project. .

C. Town and Developer desire to enter into an agreement pursuant to which
Developer will develop, construct and operate the Project on a portion of the Property, such
portion to be determined by the parties in accordance with this Agreement as set forth below.

‘ Agreement
_ NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises, and for other good and
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties
hereto agree as follows: -

Article 1, Site Control; Ground Lease: Developer Fee, Etc.

1.1 Determination of Project Site. The parties agree that the Project shall be located on
the Property with exact boundaries as delineated in the property site plan (and/or) survey
attached hereto as Exhibit B (the “Project Site”). ' '

1.2 Ground Lease of Project Site. After the Project Site has been determined, and at such
time as Developer is ready to close on its construction financing for development of the Project,
Town and a single purpose entity formed by Developer (the “Project Owner”) shall enter into a
mutually agreeable ground lease (“Ground Lease”), pursuant to which Town will lease the
Project Site to the Project Owner for a term of ninety-nine (99) years and otherwise on terms

KH 557741.3.



consistent with this Agreement. The Ground Lease shall be on a “triple net” basis, with all costs
and expenses, including taxes and insurance, paid by tenant and shall be such commercially
reasonable form with such provisions as are reasonably required by the Project Owner’s
mortgage lenders, If and when executed, the Ground Lease shall supersede this Agreement in its
entirety.

1.3 Developer Right of Entry. Town grants to Developer, its agents, employees,
subcontractors, and their agents and employees, a license to enter onto the Property for the
purpose of investigating site conditions including, without limitation, surveying, conducting soil
tests or borings, and conducting other investigations or engineering tests. Any such entry shall
be done at Developer’s sole cost and expense, and at Developer’s sole risk. Developer agrees to
indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Town and its employees and agents, from and against any
cost, expense, claim or liability arising from any such entry onto the Property by Developer, its .
agents, employees or subcontractors. Developer shall cause its hazard and liability insurance
~ coverages to include the Town, its employees and agents, as additional insureds for claims

caused in whole or in part by the Developer’s negligent acts or omissions during the Developer’s
investigation of site conditions including, without limitation, surveying, conducting soil tests or
borings, and conducting other investigations or engineering tests. Developer agrees that it shall
conduct all such tests and investigations in a manner which will cause as little damage as
possible to the Property, and in the event of any such damage, shall promptly repair and restore
the same at its sole cost and expense. Developer agrees further that all such tests and
investigations will be conducted in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations, with due
respect for the privacy and safety of residents of the Property, and consistent with any applicable .
notice provisions of Town’s leases with residents of the Property.

1.4 Developer Fee and Overhead. Developer shall be entitled to receive a developer fee
and reinibursement for developer overhead in connection with the Project in such amounts and
paid on such schedules as approved by the Department of Housing and Community
Development. In no event shall payment of any part of such amounts be an obligation of Town.

1.5 Property Management of Completed Project. An affiliate of POAH, POAH
Communities LLC (the “Manager”), shall be the property manager of the completed Project.
The Project Owner and the Manager shall enter into a standard form residential management
agreement, including standard performance and termination provisions, for an initial term of one
(1) year. Town acknowledges that the parties providing Project financing may require a specific
form of management agreement, and if such a form is not required, the Manager and Project
Owner would use.a form that is standard for Manager.

1.6 Town CPA Project Financing. Town shall support the Developer’s request to secure
a grant of $300,000 for the Prq;ect which grant shall be funded through Community
Preservation Act funds.

Article 2. Development of Project; Affordability; Term of Agreement.

2.1 The Project. Subject to the Requirements (defined below), Developer shall have
responsibility for all aspects of the design, development, construction and operation of the
Project.

2.2 Affordability. All of the dwelling units at the Project shall be affordable to
households earning 80% of or less of the median family income for the Town of Barnstable
Standard Metropolitan Statistical Area, adjusted for family size. Developer shall endeavor, to the

KH 557741.3.




greatest extent feasible, to develop a unit mix consistent with the proposed unit mix summarized
in the chart on Page 22 of its Proposal, which is attached as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by

reference, and otherwise in accordance with DHCD’s Qualified Allocation Plan, lender and
investor requirements and in accordance with all applicable state and local laws,

A 2,3 Development Costs. It is understood and agreed that Developer shall receive the
Project Site in an “as is” condition and shall bear all costs associated with the Project as
contemplated hereunder. Town will pay its own legal fees in connection with preparation and
negotiation of this Agreement and the Ground Lease. :

2.4 Term of Agréement. In the event that the Developer has not closed on its
construction financing for development of the Project by February 28, 2023, this Agreement
shall automatically be extended for a period not to exceed ninety (90) days without notice; and
provided further, at the expiration of said ninety (90) day period, this Agreement may be
extended by written notice of either party until such date Develaper closes on its construction
financing, in such party’s sole discretion. In the event Developer’s construction financing is not
obtained within the time periods set forth in this paragraph, this Agreement shall terminate,
unless further extended by the parties. ' '

Article 3. Resgectiiie'ResQonsibilities of Parties.

3.1 Responsibilities of Developer. All aspects of the development of the Projectas a
financially feasible project shall be the sole responsibility of Developer, it being understood that
Developer shall only be responsible for the construction and operation of the Project to the extent
. Developer timely receives all funding, permits and approvals contemplated in the Proposal or
this Agreement or otheérwise necessary for the Project. Specific Developer responsibilitiés

include, without limitation, the following:

(a) Developer shall provide Town on a timely basis with all information with regard to
Developer’s activities which Town reasonably requests.

(b) Developer shall select, coordinate, direct and manage the Project development and
construction teams identified in the Proposal, Upon request, Developer shall provide Town with
copies of the contracts with the development and construction teams, -

(c) Developer shall apply for, secure, and enter into all necessary Project financing and
subsidy arrangements. Developer shall keep Town reasonably informed of all applications for
government assistance and public or private financing with respeet to the Project and upon
request shall provide Town with copies of formal submissions, C

~ (d) Developer shall obtain hazard and liabiiity insurance reasonably satisfactory to Town.

(e) Developer shall use commercially reasonable efforts to adhere to the Project
Development Schedule attached as Exhibit C.

® Developer shall comply with éll‘ the Requirements (defined below), and shall obtain
all necessary governmental consents and approvals, including a comprehensive permit pursuant
to M.G.L. Ch. 40B, a building permit and other permits. '

(g) Developer shall prepare and carry out a marketing/lottery plan for the marketing of
the dwelling units at the Project and submit the same to Town for review.

() Developer shall manage and supervise the construction of the Project in accordance
with the terms of the Ground Lease.

KH 557741.3.



(i) Developer shall pay to the Town a one-time capitalized $25,000.00 Ground Lease
payment at the time of execution of the Ground Lease in accordance with the terms of the
Ground Lease.

3.2 Responsibilities of Town. The following matters shall be the primary responsibility
of Town: .

-(a) Town shall promptly and without undue delay review any matter submitted to it for
review or approval and advise Developer of its approval or denial, and (as appropriate) its
reasons for denial.

(b) Town shall provide reasonable support for the Project with local, state, and Federal
agencies, lenders, and other applicable parties. Town shall provide reasonable assistance
requested by Developer in obtaining licenses, approvals, clearances, the comprehensive permit
and other permits, or other cooperation from local, state, and Federal agencies and officials and
from local governing bodies, including with respect to the approval of the Project by the
Department of Housing and Community Development pursuant to 760 CMR 4.12, Town will
cooperate with Developer in the event it pursues any real estate tax exemptions and abatements
that may be available for the Project in accordance with applicable provisions of law.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, all reasonable support and cooperation from the Town shall be at
no expense to the Town and shall be done at Developer’s sole cost and expense,

3.3 Responsibilities of Both Parties.

(2) If resources anticipated by the parties for the Project become unavailable, or for any
reason the Project ceases to be feasible, including, without limitation, due to engineering
constraints of the Property, Town will work with Developer, both in good faith, to develop and
agree to changes or alternate plans which accomplish the original goals set forth in this
Agreement to the maximum extent possible given available resources. Such changes may include
a reduction in the number of the units in the Project or a change in affordability levels. In the
event that the parties, exercising good faith, are either unable to identify feasible changes or
alternate plans or to agree upon proposed changes or alternate plans within six (6) months after
the need for changes or alternate plans has been identified, either party may terminate this
Agreement upon written notice to the other party.

Article 4, Design Review: Project Development Schedule; Project Budget.

4,1 Design Review. The development and construction of the Project is subject to such
site plans, concept plans, plans and specifications, and the like, as may be approved pursuant to
this Agreement by the parties (“Approved Plans*) and all applicable Town of Mashpee bylaws ,
regulations and processes (“Local Ordinances™) (the Approved Plans and Local Ordinances,
collectively, the “Requirements™).

4.2 Project Development Schedule. Attached hereto as Exhibit C is the Project
Development Schedule, including proposed dates for performance of certain milestones.

Article 5, Default: Remedies.

5.1 Default by Developer. The occurrence of any of the following events shall constitute
an event of default (“Event of Default”) under this Agreement by Developer:

KH 557741.3.




5.1.1 If Developer fails to diligently prosecute the development and construction of the
Project in accordance with this Agreement or to observe or perform in any material respect any
covenant, condition, agreement or obligation hereunder and shall fail to cure, correct or remedy -
such failure within thirty (30) days after the receipt of a written notice thereof, unless such
failure cannot be cured by the payment of money available to the Project and cannot with due
diligence be cured within a period of thirty (30) days, in which case such failure shall not be
deemed to continue if Developer proceeds promptly and with due diligence to cure the failure
and diligently completes the curirig thereof, but in no event shall such extended cure period
extend beyond ninety (90) days;

_ 5.1.2 If Developer shall be adjudicated bankrupt or be declared insolvent under the
federal bankruptcy code or any other federal or state law (as now or hereafter in effect) relating
to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, winding up or adjustment of debts (hereinafter
collectively “Bankruptcy Laws”) or if Developer shall (a) apply for or consent to the
appointment of; or the taking of possession by, or any receiver, custodian, trustee, United States
Trustee, or liquidator (or other similar official) of Developer or of any substantial portion of
Developer’s property, or (b) genetally not pay its debts as they become due, admit in writing its
inability to pay its debts generally as they become due, or (c) make a general assignment for the
benefit of its creditors, or (d) file a petition comrhencing a voluntary case of seeking to take :
advantage of any Bankruptcy Law; or '

:5.1.3 If an order for relief against Developer shall be entered in any involuntary case
under the any Bankruptcy Law, or if the petition commencing an involuntary case against
Developer or proposing reorganization of Developer under any Bankruptcy Law shall be filed in
and approved by any court of competent jurisdiction and not be discharged or-denied Wwithin sixty
(60) days after filing, or if a proceeding or case shall commence in any court of competent
jurisdiction seeking aid or liquidation, the organization, dissolution, winding up or adjustment of
debts of Developer, or the appointment of a receiver, custodian, trustee, United States Trustee, or
liquidator or (other similar official) of Developer or of any substantial portion of Developer’s
property, or any similar relief as to Developer pursuant to any Bankruptcy Law, and any such
proceeding or case shall continue undismissed, or an order, judgment or decree approving any or
ordering any of the foregoing shall be entered and continued unstayed and in effect for thirty (30)
days.” :

5.2 Remedies for Town. Ifthere is an Event of Default by Developer, Town may, in

addition to any and all other remedies available to it at law or in equity terminate this Agreement
upon written notice to Developer.

5.3 Default by Town. The occurrence of any of the following events shall constitute an
Event of Default by Town hereunder:

5.3.1 If Town fails in any material respect to observe or perform any covenant, condition,
agreement or obligation hereunder, and shall fail to cure, correct or remedy such material defaulit
within thirty (30) days after the receipt of written notice thereof, unless such failure cannot be
cured by the payment of money and cannot with due diligence be cured within a period of thirty
(30) days, in which case such failure shall not be deemed to continue if the Town proceeds
promptly and with due diligence to cure the failure and diligently completes the curing thereof,
but in no event shall such extended cure period extend beyond ninety (90) days;

© 5.3.2 If Town shall be adjudicated bankrupt or be declared insolvent under any
Bankruptcy Laws or if Town shall (a) apply for or consent to the appointment of, or the taking of

KH 557741.3.



possession by, or any receiver, custodxan, trustee, United States Trustee, or liquidator (or other
‘similar official) of Town or of any substantial portion-of Town’s property, or (b) generally not
pay its debts as they become due, admit in writing its inability to pay its debts generally as they
become due, or (¢) make a general assignment for the benefit of its creditors, or (d) file a petition
commeéncing a voluntary case or seeking to take advantage of any Bankruptcy Law; or

. 5.3.3 If an order for relief against Town shall be entered in any mvoluntary case under
any Bankruptcy Law, or if the petition commencing an involuntary case against Town or
proposing reorganization of Town under any Bankruptcy Law shall be filed in and approved by
any court of competent jurisdiction and not be discharged or denied within sixty (60) days after
filing, or if a proceeding or case shall commence in any- court of competent jurisdiction seeking
aid or liquidation, the orgamzatlon dissolution, winding up or adjustment of debts of Town, or
the appointment of a receiver, custodian, trustee, United States Trustee, or hquldator or (other
similar official) of Town or of any substantial portion of Town’s property, or any similar relief as
to Town pursuant to any Bankruptcy Law, and any such proceeding or case shall continue
undismissed, or an order, judgment or decree approving any or ordering any of the foregoing
shall be entered arid continued unstayed and in effect for thirty (30) days.

5.4 Remedies for Developer. If there is an Event of. Default by Town, Developer may, in
addition to any and all other remedies available to it at law or in equity terminate this Agreement
upon written notice to Tc_)wn

Article 6. Miscellaneous.

6.1 Integration. This Agreement expresses the entire agreement of the parties and
supersedes and replaces any prior agreements of the parties, written or oral.

6.2 Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be construed under the laws of the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts.

6.3 Amendment. This Agreement may be amended only by a written 1nstrument
executed by the party to be charged therewith,

6.4 Notices. Whenever, by the terms of'this Agreement, notice or any other
communication shall or may be given, such notice or communication shall be in writing and shall
be deemed given upon the earlier of (i) actual receipt by the party to whom addressed or by such
party’s agent or employee, (ii) two business days after being deposited in the U.S. mail,
registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, or (iii) one business day after being delivered to a
. so-called “overnight” mail service with 1-day service, in any event addressed as follows:

If to Town, to: Town of Mashpee Affordable Housing
Trust
16 Great Neck Road North
Mashpee, MA 02649
Attn: ‘Rodney C. Collms, Town
Manager

and a copy to: Town Counsel

KH557741.3.



Ifto Developer, to: : : ¢/o Preservation of Affordable Housing,
Inc.,
40 Court Street, Suite 700
Boston, MA 02108 - -
Atin: Cory Fellows, Vice President of
Real Estate Development (with a copy to
attn of General Counsel) ‘

and a copy to: Daniel M. Rosen
N Klein Hornig LLP
101 Arch Street, Suite 1101
Boston, MA 02110

6.5 Approvals and Consents. Where the approval or consent of either party is required,
such approval or consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. All
approvals and consents shall be requested and provided in writing, -Any denial 6f an approval or
consent shall be in writing and shall contain a clear and full statement of the reasons for the
denial.- Unless otherwise specifically provided in this Agreement, if approval or consent is
requested pursuant to the notice procedures set forth in this Agreement and if no response is
received within twenty-one (21) days of the notice, the approval or consent shall be conclusively
deemed granted.

6.6 Reliance by Developet. Town acknowledges that Developer intends to rely on this
Agreement and further agrees Developer may rely on this Agreement to establish to third parties
that it has site control of the Project Site in order to qualify for financing and obtain other
approvals for the Project,

6.7 Prohibition on Assignment. This Agreement may not be assigned or transferred by
Developer without the written consent of Town. Notwithstanding the foregoing, for the purposes
of this Agreement, “Developer” shall refer variously to Preservation of Affordable Housing; Inc.,
Housing Assistance Corporation and, as the context dictates, any an entity which either directly
or indirectly controls, is controlled by or is under common control with Preservation of
Affordable Housing, Inc., which Preservation of Affordable Housing, Inc. may organize to
accomplish its obligations hereunder. :

[signature pége follows]

KH 557741.3.



~IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the patties have execuited and delivered this Agreement undet
§eal as of the date‘and year first written dbove,

List of Exhibits:

Exhibit A
Exhibit B
Exhibit C

KH-557741.3.

Proposal
Site Plan (and/or) Survey |

Preservation of Affordable Housing LLC

By: Preservation of Affordable Housing, Inc., its.
‘manager

orn¥fein, Chief Executive Officer

Housing Assistance Corporation.

By , e o=

"Alisa M, Galazzi, Chief Executive Officer

Town of Mashpee Affordable Housing Trust

ANV Y )

' RODNEY C, COLLINS
Town Manager

Draft Project Developtent Schedule



Exhibii &
Bropesal

KH 37415,






[Exhibit-C
Dra& Project Develo pment Scheduile:

» Q12020
= Exécuté DBvélopmentAgréement bétween POAHRACHRY TowH of-Mashpee
= Zoning (40B) kickoff meeting with Town
# Prepare site survey

> 02 3020

- Apply for Project Eligibility | I.ette’r (PEL) for 408
» 032020 |

- Eomplete40B zoningprocess

Dfinangiiigpresapplication
D financing full application’

D financing awards-announced’

tion stark (if Funded in DHCD round; if not, resapply)

= Construction completion, lease=up {if funded'in DCHD Founhd)

KHIST43,






Town of Mashpee

16 Great Neck Road North
Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649

MASHPEE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

DECISION ON PETITION FOR COMPREHENSIVE PERMIT
MGL c.40B, §520-23 and 760 CMR 56.00 i

PETITIONER: Preservation of Affordable Housing LLC:

PROPERTY: 950 Falmouth Road (Route 28), Mashpee, MA 02649

Parcel A: Assessing Parce] 93-6-0
Parce! B: Assessing Parcel 93-7-0 i
Parcel C: Assessing Parcel 94-7-0

PROJECT: 950 Falmouth Road Affordable Housing Development

DECISION FILED

CP-2020-46

WITH TOWN CLERK:  February 22, 2021

On February 2, 2021, upon a motion duly made by Board Member Scott Goldstein and seconded by
Board Member James Gould, the Mashpee Zoning Board of Appeals (“ZBA” or “Board”) voted (5-0) to
grant this comprehensive permit under MGL ¢.40B, §§20-23 and 760 CMR 56.00 with the ﬁndlngs
determinations, conditions and waivers set forth below:

A.

PROCEDURAL HISTORY AND JURISDICTIONAL FINDINGS AND DELIBERATIONS:

On October 13, 2020, a petition for a Comprehensive Permit under MGL c.40B ("Petltnon”) to
construct 39 affordable rental units (“Project”) at property at 950 Falmouth Road (Route 28)
(“Property”) was duly filed by Petitioner Preservation of Affordable Housing LLC ("Petltloner")
with the Town Clerk and was duly received on October 13 2020 by the Board.

The Petition includes: é

(i) The September 28, 2020 Project Eligibility Letter issued for the Project by tHe
Department of Housing and Community Development (“DHCD”), under the vLow Income
Housing Tax Credit Program;

(i) Civil engineering plans, which are entitled “950 Falmouth Road Permitting FTIans
Mashpee, Massachusetts” and are dated October 2020, as revised through February
2021, and as prepared by Horsley Witten and consisting of 21 sheets; and lighting plans,
consisting of three sheets; and architectural materials prepared by Tise Design Assoc,
Inc., consisting of 10 sheets and dated May 8, 2020 (collectively, “Plans”); and

{iil) An October 9, 2020 waiver request, as revised and detailed in this decision (”Waivers").

The Board duly and timely distributed the Petition to all Town boards, officials, com'mlssmns and
districts (“Local Boards”) as required under 760 CMR 56.05(3). -



A TRUE COPY, ATTEST

1 HEREBY CERTIFY THAT NO NOTICE OF

APPEATL HAS BEEN RECEIVED BY| THIS OFFICE
DURING THE TWENTY DAYS FOLLOWING
RECEIPT AND RECORDING OF NOTICE FROM
THE APPEALS BOARD OF APPFROVAL OF THE
ATTACHED DOCUMENT.

TOWN CLERK.

Shavel 16 2o%
DATE OF CERTIFICATION '



10.

11.

12.

The Board scheduled and duly and timely provided notice of the November 18, 2020 opening of
the public hearing on the Petition (“Public Hearing”) as required under MGL c.40B, §21 and MGL
c.40A, §11; and the Board also duly posted each session of the Public Hearing.

On November 18, 2020, the Public Hearing timely opened (the opening was timely by operation
of the provisions of St. 2020, ¢.53 and by an extension of the thirty day period to open the

hearing provided by Petitioner); and the Public Hearing continued on January 13, 2021, January
27,2021 and February 2, 2021. i

On February 2, 2021, the Board voted 5-0 to close the Public Hearing and began the deliberative
period. ;
l

The following Board Members were present for the public hearing sessions and dehberated on
the Petition: !
i
Chairman Jonathan D. Furbush |
Vice Chairman William A, Blaisdell |
Member Scott Goldstein |

Member Norman J. Gould |

Associate Member George Ganzenmuller j

|

During the Public Hearing, the Board received and took into consideration all of the/ comments
and correspondence received from the Local Boards and from abutters and from th;e Petitioner.

!
On May 1, 2017, the Mashpee Town Meeting voted to transfer the Property (owned by the
Town) to the Mashpee Affordable Housing Trust (“MAHT”) for purpose of developing affordable
housing; and, thereafter, MAHT and the Petitioner entered into a development agreement to
allow the Petitioner to F le the instant Petition and develop the Property for aﬁordable rental
housing. - :
The PEL issued by DHCD contains all of the findings required under 760 CMR 56. 04(4) and, asa
result, the Petition satisfies all jurisdictional requirements and is eligible to apply for and receive
a comprehensive permit.

As of the date of receipt of the Petition, the Town of Mashpee (“Town”) had not a&hieved the
10% affordable housing threshold identified in MGL c.40B, §20 or any other “safe Harbor” under
MGL ¢.40B or 760 CMR 56.00 and the Board found that the Town has a critical, unrfnet need for
affordable rental housing. . ' i
The Petition satisfies all jurisdictionhal requirements to receive a comprehensive pe:S'mit.

|
The Project, as set forth in the Plans and with the Waivers granted herein and the Fonditions set
forth herein, is Consistent with Local Needs as required under 760 CMR 56.05(4) ahd there are
no Local Concerns created by the Project. )

PROPERTY AND PROJECT DESCRIPTION FINDINGS A’ND DELIBERATIONS:




10.

11.

The Property is owned and in the custody and control of MAHT and, pursuantto a development
agreement, a long-term ground lease will be executed by and between MAHT and thc? Petitioner
to allow the Petitioner to develop the Property for affordable housing.

i
|
¢

The Petitioner provided the Board with a copy of its development agreement with MAHT
regarding the Property and copies of the deeds held by MAHT for the Property.

The Property is vacant and consists of approximately 12.83 acres of land on three patcels which
are identified on the Mashpee Assessing Maps as follows:

Parcel A: Assessing Parcel 93-6-0 (2.49 acres)
Parcel B: Assessing Parcel 93-7-0 (3.26 acres)
Parcel C: Assessing Parcel 94-7-0 (7.08 acres)

The Project will have 39 residential rental affordable units, with a total of 68 bedrooms, with all
of the units located on Parcel A. The wastewater treatment infrastructure for the Project will be
located on Parcel B and Parcel C shall remain as open space.

The Property is located in an R-3 Zoning District and portion of Parcel C is located in the
Groundwater Protection District; however, Parcel C will remain as open space.

The Property is located on either side of Cross Street, a 40-foot wide private way approved as
part of an eight-lot subdivision known as “Massasoit Crossing” and which recently was renamed
as Cooper Street by the Planning Board.

The Project is shown on the Plans and will consist of three buildings as follows:

Building A will be two-story apartment building, with twelve rental units, with ten 1-bedroom
units and two 2-bedroom units.

Building B will be a three-story apartment building, with 23 rental units, with four 1-bedroom
units and nineteen 2-bedroom units.

Building C will be a two-story townhouse quadplex, with four 3-bedroom rental units.

The Petitioner will construct the portion of Cooper Street {f/k/a Cross Street) as shown on the
Plang, to provide access to the Project.

The Project will include 59 parking spaces as shown on the Plans.

The paralle! parking spaces shown on the Plans are allowed to be 23’ in length, rather than 24’ in
lengthy, in accordance with the provisions of ZBL §174-38, because the Project will not have
high parking turnover or a large proportion of large vehicles, thus making 23’ feet of length
appropriate.

The on-street parking spaces.shown on the Plans are an appropriate afternative location to
placing them on Parcel A as the on street jocation will substantially reduce impacts on natural



12.

14,

13.

15.

resources that would occur if the spaces were placed on Parcel B.and the on street parking
spaces will improve public safety within the meaning of ZBL §174-37 by providing lmporta nt
parking for the Project and the Board notes that no special permit rehef is reguired for this by
operation of 760 CMR 56.05(7). |

The Project complies with the requirements of the Massachusetts Fire Code, as confirmed by
the Mashpee Fire Departmerit.

The Project will be supplied with water by the Mashpee Water District and the necessary
connection permit is hereby provided by this comprehensive permit.

The Project will be served by private sewer infrastructure that will be located on Parcel 8 and
will conform to the requirements of the Board of Health; and the necessary sewer connection
permit is hereby provided by this comprehensive permit.

The 39 rental units shall be affordable to households earning 80% or less of the Area Median
Income as calculated by the Department of Housing and Urban Development or for a greater
degree of affordability as may be required under the development agreement between the
Petitioner and the MAHT or under any state or federal grant program used for the Project and
with the units to be affordable for so long as: (1) the Project does not conform to local zoning
requirements; (2) required under the development agreement between the Petitioner and
MAHT; (3) required under any state or federal grant program used for the Project; and (4)
required under any local Community Preservation Act grant restriction.

GENERAL FINDINGS AND DELIBERATIONS:

The Project is consistent with the Town'’s Affordable Housing Plan and the direction given by the
May 2017 Mashpee Town Meeting that the Property shall be developed for affordable housing
purposes.

The Petitioner has considerable experience and expertise in developing and managing
affordable housing.

The Project is appropriate for the Property.

With the Conditions imposed below, there are no Local Concerns and the Project Is Consistent
with Local Needs.

CONDITIONS IMPOSED

The Petitioner shall adhere to the comments made by the Mashpee Board of Health on
September 25, 2020 and November 18, 2020, copies of which are attached hereto as Exhibit A,
regarding the wastewater infrastructure.,

The Petitioner shall adhere to the comments made by the Mashpee Planning Board on
November 4, 2020, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit B; and the Petitioner:



 Has duly revised the Plans to provide 59 parking spaces, with 1.5 spaces per dwel’ing.

o Shall provide appropriate surety to the ZBA to construct the relevant portion of Cboper '
Street (f/k/a Cross Street), which may include one or more of the following types'of surety
(or combination thereof) at the Petitioner’s election:

i. No occupancy permit shall issue until the infrastructure is finished or secured by
money based surety; and/or

ii. Money-based surety may be posted including: (a) (a) a deposit of money; (b) a
surety bond; or {c) a tripartite agreement as provided for under G.L. c.41, §81U, 17,
and with the amount of money-based surety to be determined by the Board in
cooperation with the Building Official or the Board’s peer review consultant,

and the Board, acting as the Planning Board, shall duly release any existing subdivision
covenarit instrument recorded against the Property upon request by the Petitioner.

» Shall provide air conditioning to all units.

¢ Shall screen mechanical systems, whether on the ground or on a roof, with landscaping or
architectural features as shown on the approved Plans.

The Petitioner shall comply with the Planning Board’s Subdivision Regulations regarding
pavement thickness and compliance is shown on the Plans.

The Petitioner shall repair any damages to Cooper Street (f/ k/a Cross Street) that oceurs during
construction.

The Petitioner revised the Plans to provide for snow storage and a turnaround at the end of
Cooper Street {f/k/a Cross Street) and Petitioner shall be responsible for snow removal to
maintain access to the Project and before any occupancy permit issues for the Project shall
provide the Building Inspector with a snow plowing, snow storage and snow removal plan that
will coordinate snow removal efforts with the abutting landowner for so long as Cooper Street
(f/k/a Cross Street) is a private way.

The Petitioner shall provide recycling infrastructure and comply with DEP’s waste ban.

The Petitioner has revised the Plans to extend the sidewalk to SouthCape Resort and to install
two crosswalks to improve safe passing over Cooper Street (f/x/a Cross Street) for the abutting
development as shown on the Plans.

The Petitioner shall limit the hours of outdoor construction activities at the Property during the
months of June, July and August as follows:

Monday through Friday: 7:00 am to 5:30 pm
Saturdays: 7:00 am to 1:00 pm
Sunday: No outdoor construction activities



10.

11.

12.

13,

14.

15.

-Additionally, from July 4™ through Labor Day, outdoor construction activities at the Property

shall be further limited as follows: f

Monday through Friday: 7:30 am o 5:30 pm

Saturdays and Sundays: No outdoor construction activities

Additionally, there shall be no outdoor construction activities at the Property onthe following
holidays:

New Year’s Day
MLK Day
President’s Day
Easter Sunday
Memorial Day
July 4%

Labor Day
Columbus Day
Veteran’'s Day
Thanksgiving Day
Christmas Day

Note: Interior construction work shall not be restricted as referenced above.

The Petitioner shall connect the Project to water supplied by the Mashpee Water District and
permission for that connection is hereby provided, with the Project to conform to all technical
connection requirements of the Mashpee Water District unless an express waiver is granted,
either by the Mashpee Water District or the ZBA.

The Petitioner has revised the Plans to conform to all of the requests and issues raised by the
Board’s civil engineering peer review consultant received prior to February 2, 2021. The
Petitioner shall adhere to the requirements forth in the February 2, 2021 peer review letter of
Charles L. Rowley, P.E., PLS, regarding drainage and lighting plans and said letter is attached
hereto as Exhibit C.

The Petitioner shall cooperate with the Town to add the 39 rental units to the Subsidized
Housing Inventory maintained by DHCD.

The Petitioner shall provide a copy of the Regulatory Agreement with DHCD and any other
agreement that contains affordability requirements to Town Counsel for review for
conformance with the requirements of MGL c.40B.

The Petitioner shall provide a copy of DHCD's final approval for the Project before any building
permit issues (although building permits may be prepared and signed but may held in escrow
pending the final approval and then released upon receipt of the final approval from DHCD).

The construction of the Project shall proceed in substantial confarmance with the Plans.

The construction of the Project shall proceed in conformance with the Board of Health’s
approval under Title V.



16. The construction of the Project shall proceed in conformance with the technical requ*‘rements of
the Department of Public Works.

17. The water connection permit is granted subject to the Mashpee Water District reviev!ying and -
approving the water connection plans for full compliance with the District’s technical
requirements.

E. WAIVERS REQUESTED AND ACTION TAKEN

1. Zoning Board of Appeals’ Fee Schedule for Chapter 40B Petitions

The Applicant requested the following specific waivers from the Board’s Fee

Schedule:

Section 3.02. Waive the requirement that the Applicant pay an application fee that shall
include $7,500 “to pay for the services of legal counsel for assistance” with the “multitude
of legal issues that must be explored in the 408 process” as 760 CMR 56.05(5)(a) expressly
provides that: “Legal fees for general representation of the Board of other Local Boards shall
not be imposed on the Applicant.”

ACTION: The Board closed the Public Hearing without requesting the Petitioner to pay for
any legal services by Town Counsel and the Board voted to return the Petitioner’s check
for $7500 and this waiver request was, therefore, withdrawn.

Section 3.02. Waive the requirement that the Applicant pay an application fee that shall
include $5,000 “for the retention of a financial expert” as 760 CMR 56.05(6) expressly
provides that the ZBA may not request to review financial statements for Project until after
all of the preconditions sets forth under 760 CMR 56.05(6)}{(a){1)are met.

ACTION: The Board closed the Public Hearing without requesting the Petitioner to pay for
the retention by the Board of a financial expert and the Board voted to return
the Petitioner’s check for $5000 and this waiver request was, therefore,
withdrawn.

2. Zoning Board of Appeals’ Checklist

The Applicant, to the extent that the ZBA’s Checklist is applicable, requests that the ZBA waive
the following requirements:

Any requirement for a Tax Collector Worksheet as this is municipally owned land and the
Applicant owns no land in Mashpee.

ACTION:  Waiver granted.



i
i
[
I
i
|
i
|
i
i

e Any requirement for copies of deeds. This is municipally owned property, under tax
foreclosure proceedings.

ACTION:  Woaiver granted, after provision of the development agreement with MAHT and
the deeds held by MAHT.

= Any requirement for signatures by municipal officials to support the application being filed
as the ZBA is the comprehensive permit granting authority.

ACTION:  Waiver granted, with copies of the Petition having been sent to all Local Boards.

3. Zoning Board of Appeals’ Comprehensive Permit Rules

As provided for under 760 CMR 56.02, 56.05 and 56.07(2)(4), the Applicant seeks a waiver from
the application of any standard in the ZBA’s Comprehensive Permit Rules (“ZBA Rules”) that is not
applied equally to market rate developments, including, but not limited to the sections identified below.
Under 760 CMR 56.02, 56.05 and 56.07(2)(4), Local Rules and Regulations shall be applied so asto be -
Consistent With Local Needs and shall be applied as equally as possible to subsidized and nonsubsidized
housing.

ACTION: The ZBA determines that its standards are equally applied and determines that
this waiver is denied as not necessary.

As provided for under 760 CMR 56.05, the Applicant also seeks a waiver from any standard in the
ZBA Rules that is inconsistent with the requirement that the ZBA shall be the board to grant
comprehensive permit relief and to grant waivers.

ACTION; The ZBA determines that it is granting all required relief and waivers without
delegating any action to any Local Board and, therefore, this waiver is denied as
not necessary.

The Applicant requested the following specific waivers from the ZBA Rules:

» Section 3.01(g). A waiver is requested to the extent that this section requires any
documentation as to project eligibility other than to present the Project Eligibility Letter
issued by the Subsidizing Agency (“PEL”). Under 760 CMR 56.04(1), project eligibility
requirements “shall be established by issuance” of the PEL.

ACTION:  The ZBA is not requiring any documentation other than the PEL to determine
project eligibility and, therefore, this walver is unnecessary.



. s Section 3.01(i). A waiver is requested from the requirement to provide the Board with a
pro-forma analysis as the ZBA may not request to review financial statements for Project
until after all of the preconditions sets forth under 760 CMR 56.05(6)(a)(1) are met.

ACTION:  The ZBA did not fequire the Petitioner to provide a pro forma analysis and this
waiver, therefore, is unnecessary.

¢ Section 3.01(i). A waiver is requested from the requirement that the Applicant provide the
Board with all materials provided to the Subsidizing Agency as those materials are not
relevant to the Board’s jurisdiction in this matter.

ACTION:  The ZBA did not require the Petitioner to provide all materials that were
provided to the Subsidizing Agency and, therefore, this waiver is unnecessary.

» Section 3.02. Asreguested above, the Applicant seeks a waiver from the requirements for a
7,500 fee for legal services and for a $5,000 fee for a financial expert as these fees are
inappropriate for the reasons detailed above.

ACTION:  The ZBA held the checks for $7,500 and $5,000, respettively, and then returned
thie checks to the Petitioner as legal services review {other than for general

services) and pro forma review were not requested; and, therefore, this waiver
is unnecessary.

e Section 4.02. A waiver is requested from the requirement that the Applicant pay for the
Board's legal fees for general representation for the reasons detailed above.

ACTION:  As detailed above this waiver is unnecessary because the fee was not required
and the check has been returned.

» Section 5.03. A waiver is requested from the provisions of this regulation to the extent that
they exceed the Board’s authority, as limited by 760 CMR 56.05(8).

ACTION:  The Board is hereby approving the requested comprehensive permit without
exceeding the limits set forth under 760 CMR 56.05(8) and this waiver is
unnecessary.

»  Section 5.04. A waiver is requested from the burden of proof placed upon the Applicant
that there is a presumption that a waiver of Local Rules and Regulations “will adversely

affect local concerns” as the burdens of proof are established under 760 CMR 56.07(2)(b)
and the Board has the burden of proof.



ACTION:  The Board is hereby approving the requested comprehensive permit and
granting the waivers necessary for the Project and therefore this waiver is
unnecessary.

Section 5.05. The Applicant does not seek subdivision approval and the subdivision rules
and regulations do not apply to the Application.

ACTION:  Acknowledged that no subdivision approval is sought, but that any existing
subdivision covenant recorded against the Property will be released by the ZBA
acting as the Planning Board, as provided for above.

Section 6.01. A waiver is requested from the requirement that the Applicant provide a new
PEL any time that a change to the project is made as this requirement contradicts the
express requirements of 760 CMR 56.04(5).

ACTION: Granted, as any proposed cha'nge to the approved Project shall be processed
under the procedures set forth under 760 CMR 56.04(5).

Section 6.02. A waiver is requested from the requirements of Section 3 regarding Notice of
Project Change information as previously made above.

ACTION: Granted, as any proposed change to the approved Project shalt be processed
under the procedures set forth under 760 CMR 56.04(5).

Section 6.4. A waiver is requested from the requirement that any plan revision shall
constitute an amendment to the Application, as the Applicant reserves the right to return to
the criginal plan unless otherwise specified.

ACTION: The Plans, as revised, are hereby approved and, therefore, this waiver request is
unnecessary.

4, MASHPEE ZONING BYLAW PROVISIONS

As provided for under 760 CMR 56.05(7), the Applicant seeks waivers only from the “as-of-right”
zoning requirements set forth in the Mashpee Zoning By-law (*ZBL") as set forth below; and, the
Applicant notes and emphasizes that no waiver is needed {or sought) from any special permit
requirement set forth under the Zoning Bylaws as 760 CMR §56.05(7) expressly provides that: “Zoning
waivers are required solely from the “as of right” requirements of the zoning district where the project
site is located; there shall be no requirement to obtain waivers from the special permit requirements of
the district.”

1. ZBL §174-9. The Applicant requests a waiver from the requirement that all buildings and uses shall
comply with the ZBL provisions and to allow the buildings and uses shown on the Plans.

10



ACTION: Granted.

2. ZBL §174-12. The Applicant requests a waiver from the requirement that there shall not be more
than one “principle building” and to allow the buildings shown on the Plans.

ACTION: Granted. .

3. ZBL§174-22. The Applicant requests a waiver from the requirement that no building or land may
be occupied or used except for a purpase set forth in the Table of Uses and to allow the buildings
and uses shown on the Plans.

ACTION: Granted.

4. 7BL §174-23. The Applicant requests a waiver from the requirement that the Applicant post a
performance bond for erosion and street right-of-way damages.

ACTION: Granted, as there is no such existing street right of way along the Petitioner’s frontage;
however, the Petition shall repair any damage to the existing portion of Cooper Street
(f/k/a Cross Street) and provide surety as provided for herein.

5. ZBL §174-28.A. The Applicant requests a waiver from the requirement that every building and use
shall conform to the dimensional requirements of the ZBL and to allow the buildings and uses
shown on the Plans.

ACTION: Granted.

6. ZBL§174-28.B. The Applicant requests a waiver from the requirement that a certification shall be
provided to the Building Official that every structure has been located in conformance with the
requirements of the ZBL and to allow the buildings shown on the Plans.

ACTION: Granted, with the condition that a certification shall be provided that every structure
has been located in substantial conformance with the Plans.

7. 7BL §174-31. The Applicant requests a waiver from the dimensional requirements for the R-3
District as shown on the Plans and as itemized in the table below:

R-3 Table Requirement Project Proposes Waiver Requested

Use Single Family Apartment Buildings  Yes
and Town houses

Location of building 1 Principle Building Multiple Buildings Yes

on lot

11



Minimum Lot Size 40,000 108,464 +/- No

(sf) |

Minimum Lot 150 660 +/- No

Frontage (feet)

Front Yard Building 40 8.50 Yes
Setback (feet)

Rear Yard Building 15 74+/- No

Setback (feet) ,

Side Yard Building 15 66+/- No

Setback (feet)

Maximum Building 2 % stories 3 Stories Yes
Height 35 feet 40’ 2” (Bldg B Only) Yes
Maximum Lot 20% 46% +/- Yes
Coverage

Open Space * 50% 54% +/- No

10.

ACTION: Granted, as requested above.

ZBL §174-39. The Applicant requests a waiver from the requirement under ZBL §174-39 that there
be two spaces per dwelling and to allow the parking for the Project to be 1.5 parking spaces per
unit (for a total of 59 parking spaces) as shown on the Plans.

ACTION: Granted.

ZBL §174-38. The Applicant requests’a waiver, to allow the minimum parking lot aisle width to be
reduced from 24’ to 20’ and to allow the 1 bay module width to be reduced from 43’ 4” t0 40’ and
to allow the 2 bay module to be reduced from 62’ to 60’ as shown on the Plans and in the following
table:

REQUIRED PROVIDED .
Parking Aisle 1Bay 2 Bay Alsie 1 Bay 2 Bay
Angle Width Module Module Width Mdule Module
Width Width Width Width
90 degrees 24 43’ 4" 62’ 20 40’ © B0’

ACTION: Granted.

Section 174-41(N). The Applicant requests a waiver from the requirement that no trees over ten
(10) inches in diameter at breast height may be removed without approval of the permitting
authority for the project.

ACTION: Granted.

12




11. ZBL §174-41(R).  The Apphcant requests a waiver from the requirement that no more than forty
(40%) percent of the area wnthm the dripline of any tree to be planted or retained within or
adjacent to a parking area, when fully grown, may be made impervious.

ACTION: Granted.

12. ZBL §174-41(Q). The Applicant requests a waiver from the requirement that irrigation facilities be
installed to ensure proper maintenance of parking lot landscaping.

ACTION: Granted.

5. Planning Board’s Subdivision Rules and Regulations.

As expressly provided for under 760 CMR 56.05(7), no waiver from the Planning Board's
Subdivision Rules and Regulations is required for the Project as the Project does not divide the Property
and Is not a subdivision application. The Applicant notes, however, that the access way {i.e., Cross
Street which is now known as Cooper Street) within the Project was approved previously under the
subdivision Control Law and the Project’s stormwater infrastructure and erosion controls will conform
to the latest version of the Massachusetts DEP Stormwater Standards and a release from any existing
subdivision covenant under MGL c.41, §81U, §7 is requested.

ACTION: While no waiver action is required, the Board notes, as stated above, that the
ZBA will act as the Planning Board in this matter and will release any existing
subdivision covenant held recording against the Property under MGL c.41,
§81U, 97 when the Petitioner either installs the municipal services or provides
surety as noted above,

F. DURATION OF THE COMPREHENSIVE PERMIT

The Permit shall lapse if construction has not begun within three years from the date that this Permit
becomes final, except for good cause, pursuant to 760 CMR 56. 04(12)(c), or unless such time has been
extended by the Board, with any request for an extension of time to be made before the three year
period expires.

Signature of the Chairman on behalf of the Board authorized by Board vote on April 22, 2020.

Dated: February ;Z, 2021 Ma__

Exhibit A. Mashpee Board of Health September 25, 2020 and November 18, 2020 Comments
Exhibit B. Mashpee Planning Board November 4, 2020 Comments
Exhibit C. Charles L. Rowley’s February 2, 2021 Peer Review Comments

13



EXHIBIT A




Wotnn of Mashpee

BOARD OF HEALTH
16 GREAT NECK ROAD NORTH
MASHPEE, MASSACHUSETTS 02649
(508) 538-1426 * Fax (508) 477-0496
ma.oov

September 25, 2020 ()_’
©

Horsley Witten Group, Inc.
90 Route 6A, Unit 1
Sandwich, MA 02563

Mr. Joe Henderson, P.E. _,Q\TQ’ \A\Y\

RE: 950 Felmouth Road, Mashpes, MA {Assessor's Map 93, Parcels 6-7; and Map 94, Parcel 7)
Dear Mr. Henderson:

On Scptember 24, 2020, the Mashpee Board of Health reviewed Title 'V design plans for the
propoied residentia] development located at the above-referenced address. The design plans were
extitled *Utility Plan, 950 Felmouth Road, Conceptnal Development, Mashpee, Massachusetts,”
dated April 2020, Scale: 1%=20 prepared for Preservation of Affordable Housing, Sheeis WW-1
& 2. The septic system would service three proposed buildings with 39 dwelling units and
containing 69 bedrooms. The total design flow for the project would be 7,590 gallons per day.
No variances were proposed on the plans.

You appeared at the virtual meeting to represent the project to the Board. At the meeting, the
discussion covered the technical desipn and location of the propased septic system that would
serve the new residential buildings.

After the discussion, the Board voted the following:

1. To require revised design plans that depict the details end specifications of the septic
.components, and general notes. The Health Agent shall review and approve the plans as
part of the Zoning Board of Appeals submittal or the Buﬂdmg Permit package,

2. A generator shall be provided for backup power.

3. A four-inch diameter vent manifold shall be provided on the soil absorption system.

4, The installation shall oocur in accordance with the DEP Provisional Approval Letter for
the Bioclere system,

If you ere aggrieved by the decision of the Board of Health, you have the right to appeal to a court
of competent jurisdiction in accordance with the laws of the Commonwealth.

Z/wond/sopc/? SOFalmpuhRABOHapprovel doe



Should you have any questions, please contact this office at (508) 539-1426.

Glen E. Harrington, R S., C.1.O.
Health Agent

cc:-  Building Department
Zoning Board of Appeals

J'\Wword\septie\29.24 1 EchaRd2020V ARrequestdoox



23\ Town of Mashpee

16 Great Neck Road North
Muoshpee, Massachusetts 02649

BOARD OF HEALTH COMMENTS
NOVEMBER 18, 2020

150 Pimlico Pond Road: BOH Comments: No conment.

16 Spoondrift Circle:

BOH Comments: Septic plan and architectural plaas approved for three bedrooms. A
rodent control inspection is reguired to be performed by an agent of the BOH and an
asbestos inspéctior must be pérformed by a private asbestos inspector as part of the
demolition checklist. Demolition checklist shall be completed prior to demo permit sign-
off. A disposal works construction permit is required to install the new Title V septic
system. The building permit will not be issued until the septic permit is obtained by the
licensed septic installer.

107 Ninigret Ave:

BOH Comments: Floor plans approved for three bedrooms. Septic inspection
performed. A rodent control inspection has been performed by an agent of the BOH and
an asbestos inspection must be performed by a private asbestos inspector as part of the
demolition checklist. Demolition checklist shall be completed prior to demo perrit sign-
off. Existing septic system to be utilized.

63 Waterline Drive South: BOH Comments: No comments.

24 Uncle Percys Road:

BOH Comments: The existing three-bedroom septic is to be utilized. The proposed floor
plans have four bedrooms as shown. The office/sitting area has a stendard door so the
root kus privacy and considered o bedroor: per BOH bedroom definition. A rodent
control inspection is required to be performed by an agent of the BOH and an asbesios
inspection must be performed by a private asbesios inspector as pari of the demolitior
checklist. Demolition checklist shall be completed prior to demo permit sign-off. A
septic inspection is required due 1o the change in footprint. The inspection report shall

be uploaded as part of the building permit application.

550 Falmouth Road (Route 28):

BOH Comments: The BOH approved the concept of the septic system for the proposed
residential development on September 24, 2020. An approval letier was prepared on
September 25, 2020 outlining the board’s conditions for approval. The technical review
is on-going and any comments will be directed to the designing engineer.



EXHIBIT B




ﬁ@f T Town of Mashpee
%&3?&’ JVV‘% fJ <7 16 Great Neck Road M orih

. NS Mushpee, Massachusetis 02649
ML £ A g e
3+ MEMORANDUM

To: Jonathan Furbush, Chairman, Board of Appeals
From: Jack Phelan, Chairman, Planning Board

AT Its meeting of November 4, 2020 the Planning Board discussed the petition of
Preservation of Affordable Housing LLC requesting a Comprehensive Permit under
M.G.L Chapter 408, §§20-23 and 760 CMR 56,00 to construct thirty nine (39) low
income housing rental units on property located in an R-3 Zoning District, Parcel A: Map
93 Parcel 6-0, Parcel B: Map 93 Parcel 7-0, and Parcel C: Map 94 Parcel 7-0.

The applicant requested eleven (11) waivers from the Board of Appeals Comprehensive
Permit Rules, The Planning Board found no issues with those requests.

The applicant also requested twelve (12) waivers from the Mashpee Zoning Bylaw. The
Planning Board raised some concerns with regard to the following waiver requests and
suggests that the Board of Appeals consider the following comments as voted on by the
Planning Board:

§174-23 — The Pianning Board does not suppart this waiver request and asks the
Board of Appeals to require the petitioner post a performance bond for erosion
and street right of way damages.

§174-41 Parking Lot Design — The Planning Board requests the petitioner provide
the Board of Appeals with the actual ratio of natural or landscaped area to paved
area proposed. The Planning Board requests that the applicant comply with this
provision if possible. If not possible, the petitioner should be required to get as
close to a 1:5 ratio as is practicable.

Lastly, the Planning Board reguests the Board of Appeals include the following as
conditions:
e Central Air Conditioning should be provided to all units within the proposed
development.
» Any mechanical systems, whether on the ground or on the roof, should be
concealed by landscaping and/or architectural features.




EXHIBIT C



Charles L. Rowley, PE, PLS

Consulting Engineer and Land Surveyor

5 Carver Road Tel: 508-295-1881
PO Box 9 Cell: 508-295-0545
West Warcham, MA 02576 F-mail crsro3(@verizon net

February 2, 2021

Town of Mashpee Board of Appeals

Town Hall :
16 Great Neck Road North

Mashpee, MA 02648

~ Re: 850 Falmouth Road
40B proiect peer review.

Attention; Jonathan Furbush, Chairman

Dear Chairman Furbush;

Over the past several days | have been in communication with Brian

Kuchar, PE of Horsley Witten Group to discuss the site plan and details for the
abave referenced project.

Having reviewed the final site plan and the adjustments that have been

made to it | am recommending approval of the plan subject to two conditions.

1.

The project be approved subject to a final review of the drainage
calculations. What small changes that may occur during this review
should not adversely impact the project and can be accomplished within
20 day of filing the approval with the Mashpee Town Clerk.

Final site lighting may be subject to review depending on whether there
will be any building mounted lighting on the project. At this time the
outside lighting plan indicates low intensity pole mounted units within the
parking and assess driveways with no direct impact on the buildings.
Maximum mounting height has been limited to 12 feet. The condition
should include a requirement to keep all lighting pedestals at least 3 feet
behind the curb line and so as not to block the full sidewalk access.

The Special Permit should reflect the latest plan set dates as provided by

Horsley Witten. They may be different than what is currently in the document.
Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions.

~ Very truly yours,

Charbes L. Brsy

Charies L. Rowley, PE, PLS

Cc Brian Kuchar, Horsley Witten Group



Doc2ls395:501 DS—-0S5-2020 1:49
BARNSTABLE LAND COURT REGISTRY

CERTIFICATE GF AUTHORIZATION VOTE
TOWN OF MASHPEE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

I, the tndersigned, Deborah Dami , duly elected Town Clerk of the
Town of Mashpee, hereby certify in my official capacity that the Town of Mashpee Zoning
Board of Appeals (“Board”™) at a duly convened public meeting on April 23, 2020 did, by,

vote of & _in favor, {7 opposed, authorize the following action:

Moved that the Bosard vote to authorize \d/iﬁﬂ’ﬂ (77 ///{z’/f’éﬂf’é

to execute and endorse all decisions, permits, approvals, plans, orders, instruments or other
documents, of whatever natire, on behalf of, and as duly authorized agent for, the Zoning

Board of Appeals.

The within authorization shall take effect upon the filing of this Certificate with the
Barnstable-Land Court District and shall tenminate upon further vote of the Board and the
registration of a certificate of vote rescinding the within authorization or wpon the
expiration of the March 10, 2020 Declaration of State of Emergency To Respond To
COVID-19 by the Govémor of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, whichever occurs

Aitesled: w 4 ,y} QL )(}Q%;‘

Tgwn Clerk-

first,

-
% N
J B % . e -
".-"[’".-' JEA ) LB
.-_'-‘L ¥4 . St
_‘v. .{?' \_|£ \._l‘ .y
:‘( [- f‘)l i; o . ," *
.’{- AL 8 e
j, e '._ .{“f::o
i cow
BARNSTABLE GOL
REGISTHY OF Lebve
ATRUE COPY, ATTEST
JOHN F. MEADE, REQISTER

BARNSTABLE REGISTRY QF DEEDS
John F. Meade, Registef







DocusSign Envelope ID: 1CA773CC-BA71-4D21-B027-DA3E6GEE43658

Housing
Assistance

April 7, 2021

Mashpee Affordable Housing Trust
c/o Terrie Cook,

Office of the Town Manager

Town of Mashpee

16 Great Neck Road North
Mashpee, MA 02649

959 Falmouth Road Affordable Housing - Project Update and Funding Request
Dear Members of the Mashpee Affordable Housing Trust,

On February 2, 2021, Housing Assistance Corporation (HAC) and Preservation of Affordable Housing
(POAH) were granted a Comprehensive Permit by the Mashpee Zoning Board of Appeals for the
development of 39 units of affordable housing at 950 Falmouth Road in Mashpee, MA. This was an
important milestone in a multi-year effort by HAC and POAH, with the ongoing support of the Town, to
provide much needed low- and moderate-income housing in Mashpee.

The HAC/POAH team is now focused on securing all necessary funding and planning for construction. In
January, we submitted a full application to the Massachusetts Department of Housing & Community
Development (DHCD) seeking an allocation of Low-Income Housing Tax Credits, Project-Based Vouchers
for eight (8) units, and a mix of state affordable housing “soft” money sources to support the capital
costs and ongoing operations of this project. The application is currently under review by DHCD. We
have also submitted a funding request to the Barnstable County HOME Consortium.

Through this letter, HAC and POAH are requesting $300,000 from the Mashpee Affordable Housing
Trust to support the development costs of the project. As you know, the Mashpee Affordable Housing
Trust (MAHT) has been a strong supporter of this project from the beginning. Your financial support is
critical to moving this project forward and ensuring its success. Attached to this letter, we have included
a brief project summary, anticipated project timeline, and summary of projected uses for MAHT funds.

Thank you for your consideration. If you need any additional information to support this request please
contact David Quinn, HAC's Director of Housing Development and Planning, at
dauinn@haconcapcod.org or 508-771-5400, ext. 288.

Sincerely,
Docusigned by:

Alisa. Masnofta
7EF31M

Alisa Magnotta, CEO

Housing Assistance Corporation (HAC)
460 West Main St., Hyannis, MA 02601
alisa@haconcapecod.org; 508-771-5400

460 West Main St. Hyannis, MA 02601 e haconcapecod.org  hac@haconcapecod.org & 508-771-5400 fax: 508-775-7434



DocusSign Envelope ID: 1CA773CC-BA71-4D21-B027-DA3EGEE4365B

959 Falmouth Road Affordable Housing
Request for Funding from the Mashpee Affordable Housing Trust

Project Overview:

The site is comprised of approximately 13 acres of land on three contiguous parcels owned by the Town
of Mashpee. Through a competitive RFP process directed by the Mashpee Affordable Housing Trust,
Housing Assistance Corporation (HAC) and Preservation of Affordable Housing (POAH), were awarded
development rights to the property and are proposing to construct 39 new affordable rental units in
three buildings. On February 2, 2021, the project was granted a Comprehensive Permit under MGL
¢.40B to construct 39 affordable rental units at 950 Falmouth Road.

HAC and POAH have worked closely with the Mashpee Affordable Housing Trust, Board of Selectmen,
and Town staff to design a project that provides much-needed affordable housing stock in Mashpee
while fitting in with the community’s historic and natural character to ensure that it gains solid public

support.

The Project will have 39 residential rental affordable units, with a total of 68 bedrooms, with all of the
units located on Parcel A. The wastewater treatment infrastructure for the Project will be located on

Parcel B and Parcel C shall remain as open space.

460 West Main St. Hyannis, MA 02601 ¢ haconcapecod.org ¢ hac@haconcapecod.org ® 508-771-5400 fax: 508-775-7434



DocuSign Envelope ID: 1CA773CC-BA71-4D21-B027-DA3EGEE43658B

Anticipated Project Timeline:

| Item Anticipated Date Status
_ Development Agreement between HAC/POAH and Town 2/2/2020 Complete
Submission of DHCS Financing Applications 1/21/2021 Complete
Regulatory & Zoning Approvals 2/2/2021 Complete
HOME Funding Application Submitted 3/24/2021 Complete
Mashpee AHT Funding Application Submitted 4/7/2021 Complete
Receipt of All Financing Commitments 12/30/2021 Pending funding decisions
Loan Closings and Construction Start 6/1/2022
50% Construction Completion 12/1/2023
Construction Completion 6/1/2023
Full Occupancy 10/1/2023

Projected Uses of Funds:

The total development cost for the project is projected to be $15,813,471.00, including $11,057,253.00
of direct construction costs. The construction contract has not yet been bid or finalized. A general
contractor was hired to provided pre-construction estimates for funding purposes, however, market

conditions are subject to change.

If granted, Mashpee Affordable Housing Trust funds would be used for direct construction costs, likely
early in the construction period for site and infrastructure work. If the Trust has specific requests for
the uses of MAHT funds, HAC/POAH can accommodate the request.

Sources/Uses Amount

Federal LIHTC Equity S  5,983,523.00
State LIHTC Equity S 3,160,000.00
Subordinate DHCD State Debt S 4,300,000.00
Barnstable County HOME S 250,000.00
Mashpee AHT S 300,000.00
Permanent Debt S  1,819,948.00
TOTAL Sources $ 15,813,471.00
Project Plans:

An electronic copy of the current project plans {permitting set) has been provided with this request.

Hard copies are available upon request.

460 West Main St. Hyannis, MA 02601 e haconcapecod.org ® hac@haconcapecod.org ¢ 508-771-5400 fax: 508-775-7434




*DRAFT* BOARD OF SELECTMEN MINUTES JUNE 7 2021* 1

*AMENDED* AGENDA
BOARD OF SELECTMEN
MONDAY, JUNE 7, 2021
WAQUOIT MEETING ROOM
MASHPEE TOWN HALL
16 GREAT NECK ROAD NORTH
MASHPEE, MA 02649

*Broadcast Live on Local Cable Channel 18*
*Streamed Live on the Town of Mashpee Website: htips://www.mashpeema.gov/channel-18*

6:30 p.m. — Convene Meeting in Open Session

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND MOMENT OF SILENCE
MINUTES Approval of the following: Monday, May 24, 2021 Regular and Executive Sessions
APPOINTMENTS & HEARINGS
» Public Comment
» Discussion and Approval of Liquor License Amendment Application for a Change of Corporate Name from New
Seabury Resources Management, Inc. to NS Beach Club, LLC: Chris Card
» 6:40 pm Public Hearing: Liquor License Application of Cape & Islands Distillers, LLC 10A Evergreen Circle Mashpee:
New Farmer Series Pouring Permit: Jonathan Fryer
» 6:45 pm Public Hearing: Request for Modification of Entertainment License of Barnstable Pizza and Pasta Co., Inc.
dba Finally Dino’s 401 Nathan Ellis Highway Mashpee to Allow Amplified Music on Qutdoor Premises: Constantinos
Mitrokostas
> Discussion and Approval of the following:
1. One-Day Liquor License: June 17, 2021, 5 -~ 8 pm at 31 Frank E. Hicks Drive Mashpee and Waiver of Fee;
Waiver of Annual Building inspection Fee: Lloyd Wilson Jr. - Boys and Girls Club of Cape Cod
2. Race Amity Day: June 13, 2021, 1 - 3 pm Mashpee Community Park: Teresa Donovan/Marie Stephenson
» Town Manager Rodney Collins: Review of Amendment No. 1 to Agreement for Operation of Mashpee Transfer
Station: (“License to Use Additional Composting Area”): Gotta Do Contracting, LLC
» DPW Director Catherine Laurent:
» Discussion and Approval of Orders of Taking Easements: Route 151 Corridor Improvement Project
» Discussion and Approval of Award and Extensions of Annual Department of Public Works Contracts
> Discussion and Approval of End of Year Transfer Request
COMMUNICATIONS & CORRESPONDENCE
OLD BUSINESS
1. Update, Discussion and Possible Action Relative to COVID-19
2. Update, Discussion and Possible Action Relative to Wastewater Project(s)
3. Update on Comcast Contract Renewal Negotiations
NEW BUSINESS
. Discussion and Certification of Hiring Process: Firefighter/EMT - Devon Crowl: Fire Chief Thomas Rullo
. Discussion and Approval of Selectmen's Designation of Member to Approve Expenditure Authorization Documents
. Discussion and Approval of Resignation from the South Cape Beach Advisory Committee: Jeralyn Smith
. Discussion and Approval of Boards, Committees and Commissions Annual Reappointments
. Discussion of 2021-2022 Board of Selectmen Liaison Assignments
*6. Discussion and Approval of the Sixth Amendment to the Memorandum of Understanding between the Mashpee
Wampanoag Tribe and the Town of Mashpee for the Provision of Fire Protection and Emergency Medical Services
and Law Enforcement Mutual Aid Assistance*
LIAISON REPORTS
TOWN MANAGER UPDATES
ADDITIONAL TOPICS
(This space is reserved for topics that the Chairman did not reasonably anticipate would be discussed)
1.Mashpee Commons Expansion Project — Three-Party Development Agreement/Proposed Expansion
EXECUTIVE SESSION
ADJOURNMENT

U WwWwN




*DRAFT* BOARD OF SELECTMEN MINUTES JUNE 7 2021* 2

Board of Selectmen

Minutes
June 7, 2021
Present: Selectman Carol A. Sherman, Selectman David W. Weeden, Selectman Andrew R. Gottlieb,
Selectman John J. Cotton, Selectman Thomas F. O’Hara
Town Manager Rodney C. Collins
Assistant Town Manager Wayne E. Taylor
Meeting Called to Order by Chairman Sherman at 6:30 p.m.
Mashpee Town Hall, Waquoit Meeting Room
MINUTES

Monday. Mav 24. 2021 Regular and Executive Sessions:

Motion made by Selectman Weeden to approve the Regular and Executive Session minutes of
Monday; May 24, 2021 as presented.

Motion seconded by Selectman O’Hara.

VOTE: Unanimous. 5-0.

Roll Call Vote:
Selectman Sherman, yes  Selectman Weeden, yes Selectman Gottlieb, yes
Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Opposed, none
ADDITIONAL TOPICS

(This space is reserved for topics that the Chairman did not reasonably anticipate would be discussed)

Mashpee Commons Expansion Project — Three-Party Development Agreement/Proposed Expansion:

Motion made by Selectman Weeden to add the Three-Party Development Agreement topic and the
proposed expansion of Mashpee Commons on the agenda as an unanticipated topic for discussion.
Motion seconded by Selectman Gottlieb.

YOTE: Unanimous. 5-0.

Roll Call Vote:
Selectman Sherman, yes  Selectman Weeden, yes Selectman Gottlieb, yes
Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Opposed, none

Discussion followed regarding action previously taken by the Board of Selectmen as a “Participating Party”
in a Three-Party Development Agreement with Mashpee Commons and the Cape Cod Commission for the
proposed expansion of Mashpee Commons. There was a question if the Board of Selectmen as a
“Participating Party” would serve as a representative with voting ability or as a respective liaison.

For clarification it was disclosed the Board of Selectmen representative in the Three-Party Agreement with
Mashpee Commons and the Cape Cod Commission is Selectman John J. Cotton. Selectman Cotton is the
liaison, and as the assigned liaison of the Board of Selectmen is not a voting member.

With regards to the proposed expansion project Chairman Carol A. Sherman indicated that several letters
and emails have been received, some in favor and some against the expansion proposal. Mrs. Sherman
assured the citizens their comments are duly recognized. Selectman Sherman requested patience and made
note of the significance of this project and the importance to fully allow adequate time to review the project
proposal and potential changes to the zoning bylaw.



*DRAFT* BOARD OF SELECTMEN MINUTES JUNE 7 2021* 3

Board of Selectmen
Minutes
June 7, 2021

ADDITIONAL TOPICS
(This space is reserved for topics that the Chairman did not reasonably anticipate would be discussed)

Mashpee Commons Expansion Project — Three-Party Development Agreement/Proposed Expansion:
(continued)

Selectman David W. Weeden offered comments with respect to the Town’s Zoning Bylaw specifically
under Development Agreements as outlined under §174-27.1. The purpose and intent of the bylaw enables
the Town to enter into Development Agreements consistent with the provisions of the Cape Cod
Commission Act and Chapter D, the code of the Cape Cod Commission regulations of general application.
The Act provides that such Development Agreements may proceed as long as the Town’s Local
Comprehensive Plan has been certified by the Cape Cod Commission as consistent with the Regional Policy
Plan. The Local Comprehensive Plan (LCP) last updated in 1998 is under revision. Selectman Weeden
asked is the Plan consistent with the 2019 Regional Policy Plan?

Under the bylaw, negotiations of the elements of a Development Agreement between “Participating Parties”
and a Qualified Applicant shall be led by the Planning Board or its designee, and may include
representatives from other municipal boards, departments and commissions where joint participation would
assist the negotiation process.

Selectman David W. Weeden indicated he is concerned with the process as it relates to the 400-page
document and timeline as being rushed in an effort to move forward to obtain passage at Town Meeting.
Selectman Weeden urged the Board to commit funds for independent assessments to include environmental,
financial impacts, traffic studies and archaeological review. It was also recommended the Board identify
applicable boards, departments and/or commissions with relevant knowledge and skills to contribute to
discussions and negotiations.

Selectman Weeden stated the process is unfair to our civil servants who are part-time volunteers when the
Cape Cod Commission and Mashpee Commons have teams of attorneys and other skilled personnel to offer
representation. It was recommended the Board of Selectmen make a commitment to support their Planning
Board.

As discussion continued it was agreed the Board of Selectmen would arrange to meet with the Planning
Board to determine how the Town will meet this challenge amongst the two boards. Town Manager
Rodney C. Collins indicated if he is so directed, funds would be made available for consulting purposes
with resources to be provided as necessary.

In lieu of the October warrant, it was recommended the Board consider a Special Town Meeting in 2022.

Motion made by Selectman Gottlieb to set a Special Town Meeting date after the first of January
2022. The motion was amended to hold a Special Town Meeting in March of 2022 on articles
associated to this project, and request the Planning Board attend a joint meeting with the Board of
Selectmen to discuss the process issues as conveyed by Selectman Weeden.
Motion seconded by Selectman O’Hara.
VOTE: Unanimous. 5-0.
Roll Call Vote:

Selectman Sherman, yes  Selectman Weeden, yes Selectman Gottlieb, yes

Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Opposed, none



*DRAFT* BOARD OF SELECTMEN MINUTES JUNE 7 2021* 4

Board of Selectmen
Minutes
June 7, 2021

APPOINTMENTS & HEARINGS

Public Comment:

Lynne Barbee; Surf Drive, spoke on the Mashpee Commons expansion project. Ms. Barbee requested
public input and time to review all of the details. Ms. Barbee stated the voters need a clear, detailed and
agreed upon signed plan before any zoning bylaw change. Although she is appreciative of the Board of
Selectmen Ms. Barbee said most importantly, we have a situation where the zoning bylaw cart is being put
before the development plan horse. With the cart behind the horse, we can make Mashpee better.

Ms. Barbee noted she is supportive of increased affordable housing in Mashpee. Housing happens within
and impacts a community. Ms. Barbee explained the town needs to get this right and the 25-year agreement
needs at least 25 weeks of review, public comment and independent assessments.

Richard Klein of 205 Ashers Path West stated in his opinion if the town moves forward with the town
meeting articles in October, we are all screwed. Mr. Klein voiced support to defer the articles to 2022 and
indicated the town needs to negotiate to see what the developers are willing to give to the town.

Marje Hecht a resident of Hoophole Road indicated the Planning Board is rushing headlong into an
agreement before we know what the zoning is for and that the Cape Cod Commission is drafting a
development agreement with no select board or public comment. Ms. Hecht asked for a commitment from
the Board of Selectmen to not submit any bylaw until there is a development agreement.

Ms. Hecht stated that Mashpee Commons is trying to build a little city in Mashpee with thousands of new
residents, equivalent to six super Walmart’s in the most congestive center of town. Ms. Hecht said that it is
important to know the dimensions of the project and commented as residents we suffer with traffic and there
is a need to consider the implications of the project.

Ms. Hecht also conveyed that high priced units are not family or workforce housing and favored deferring
the zoning amendments to the spring town meeting.

Kathryn Jacobsen of Sea Oaks Condominiums, 195 Falmouth Road voiced concern on the issue of
wastewater management stating it is doubtful the current wastewater treatment plant at Mashpee Commons
could handle the wastewater. She asked if the developer would be required to build another wastewater
treatment plant.

Karen Faulkner asked the Board of Selectmen to delay any and all bylaw amendments on the Mashpee
Commons Plan until a development agreement is executed by the Board of Selectmen. Under the
development agreement, the lead negotiator is the Planning Board. Ms. Falkner stated the development
agreement should elicit what benefits the developer is giving to the town and the impacts. Ms. Faulkner also
noted if the Planning Board votes for the amendment in October and if the bylaw amendment were to pass,
there is no legal binding mechanism for Mashpee Commons to participate in a development agreement. We
would be stuck with the bylaw amendment forever. If the zoning bylaw amendment was to pass, Mashpee
Commons would have carte blanche for high density and the town would have no recourse. Ms. Faulkner
also agreed there is a dire need for a fiscal impact statement done by an independent consultant. And in
closing Ms. Faulkner stated the town cannot let Mashpee Commons push us into getting this bylaw
amended. The town should not put the cart before the horse.



*DRAFT* BOARD OF SELECTMEN MINUTES JUNE 7 2021* 5

Board of Selectmen
Minutes
June 7, 2021

APPOINTMENTS & HEARINGS

Public Comment: (continued)

Bobbie Christensen respectfully withdrew her request to comment to alleviate redundancy.

OLD BUSINESS

Update, Discussion and Possible Action Relative to COVID-19:

The Governor has formally rescinded the State of Emergency on June 15, 2021 at 12:01 p.m.
Rules and regulations that existed prior to the pandemic will apply.

The reopening of the Mashpee Town Hall has been without incident.

Update, Discussion and Possible Action Relative to Wastewater Project(s):

There is no report at this time. The newly staffed Town Engineer is well educated, energetic, ambitious and
proficient to assist the Town of Mashpee in moving forward with the magnitude of the clean-water
undertaking and other required duties.

Update on Comcast Contract Renewal Negotiations:

It was reported negotiations are proceeding.

NEW BUSINESS

Discussion and Certification of Hiring Process: Firefighter/EMT - Devon Crowl: Fire Chief Thomas Rullo:

Correspondence was received from Fire Chief Thomas C. Rullo dated May 28, 2021 regarding the hiring
process and appointment of Devon Crowl as a Step 1 Firefighter/EMT effective June 14, 2021. Town
Manager Rodney C. Collins affirmed that all phases of the entry level selection process have been adhered
to for this appointment.

Motion made by Selectman Gottlieb to certify the hiring process of Devon Crowl as Firefighter/EMT
at Step 1 of the intended pay scale.
Motion seconded by Selectman O’Hara.
VOTE: Unanimous. 5-0.
Roll Call Vote:
Selectman Sherman, yes  Selectman Weeden, yes Selectman Gottlieb, yes
Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Opposed, none



*DRAFT* BOARD OF SELECTMEN MINUTES JUNE 7 2021* 6

Board of Selectmen
Minutes
June 7, 2021

Discussion and Approval of Selectmen's Designation of Member to Approve Expenditure Authorization
Documents:

With the lifting of the State of Emergency, the Board of Selectmen took action as follows;

Motion made by Selectman Gottlieb to rescind past action and move that the Board vote in
accordance with the provisions of G.L. ¢. 41m §41, §56 to designate the Chair, or in the event of the
Chair’s absence or incapacity, the Vice-Chair or Clerk to execute and endorse all bills, drafts, orders,
and payrolls on behalf of and as duly authorized agent for the Board of Selectmen.

Motion seconded by Selectman O’Hara.

YOTE: Unanimous. 5-0.

Roll Call Vote:
Selectman Sherman, yes  Selectman Weeden, yes Selectman Gottlieb, yes
Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Opposed, none

Discussion and Approval of Liquor License Amendment Application for a Change of Corporate Name from
New Seabury Resources Management. Inc. to NS Beach Club. LLC: Chris Card:

Chris Card, President of New Seabury Resources Management was in attendance to respectfully request the
Board of Selectmen support the License Amendment Application of New Seabury Resources Management,
Inc. for a Change of Corporate Name from New Seabury Resources Management, Inc. to NS Beach Club
LLC. This is merely an administrative change that does not require a public hearing.

Motion made by Selectman Gottlieb to approve the Liquor License Amendment Application of New
Seabury Resources Management, Inc. to NS Beach Club, LLC as presented.

Motion seconded by Selectman O’Hara.

VOTE: Unanimous. 5-0.

Roll Call Vote:
Selectman Sherman, yes  Selectman Weeden, yes Selectman Gottlieb, yes
Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Opposed, none

Public Hearing: Liquor License Application of Cape & Islands Distillers. LL.C 10A Everereen Circle
Mashpee: New Farmer Series Pouring Permit: Jonathan Frver:

The Board of Selectmen acting as the Licensing Authority for the Town of Mashpee opened the Public
Hearing on the application of Cape & Islands Distillers LLC d/b/a Cape & Island Distillers, for a new
Farmer Series Pouring Permit. The subject premise is located at 10A Evergreen Circle, Mashpee. Premise
is described as 1,500 square feet, with (1) entrance, (2) exits and a seating capacity of (64).

The Hearing notice was read aloud into the record in accord with posting procedures.
Jonathan Fryer, a principal of the subject establishment and representing attorney was in attendance to
request the New Farmer Series Pouring Permit to allow the Cape & Island Distillers, LLC to provide

samples and cocktails for patrons.

Being no comment, the Board of Selectmen motioned as follows;



*DRAFT* BOARD OF SELECTMEN MINUTES JUNE 7 2021* 7

Board of Selectmen
Minutes
June 7, 2021

Public Hearing: Liquor License Application of Cape & Islands Distillers. LLC 10A Evergreen Circle
Mashpee: New Farmer Series Pouring Permit: Jonathan Frver: (continued)

Motion made by Selectman Gottlieb to close the Public Hearing.
Motion seconded by Selectman O’Hara.
VOTE: Unanimous. 5-0.

Roll Call Vote:
Selectman Sherman, yes Selectman Weeden, yes Selectman Gottlieb, yes
Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Opposed, none

Motion made by Selectman Gottlieb to approve the New Farmer Series Pouring Permit application of
Cape & Islands Distillers, LL.C as presented.

Motion seconded by Selectman Cotton.

VOTE: Unanimous. 5-0.

Roll Call Vote:
Selectman Sherman, yes Selectman Weeden, yes Selectman Gottlieb, yes
Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Opposed, none

Public Hearing: Request for Modification of Entertainment License of Barnstable Pizza and Pasta Co.. Inc.
dba Finally Dino’s 401 Nathan Ellis Highway Mashpee to Allow Amplified Music on Outdoor Premises:
Constantinos Mitrokostas:

The Board of Selectmen opened the Public Hearing to consider a modification to the entertainment license
of Barnstable Pizza & Pasta Co., Inc. d/b/a Finally Dino’s located at 401 Nathan Ellis Highway, to allow for
amplified music within the outdoor premises.

Constantinos Mitrokostas was in attendance to discuss the requested modification as the hearing notice was
read into the record. Mr. Mitrokostas indicated he has been a resident of the Town of Mashpee and operator
of the subject establishment for the past 30 years.

With the lifting of the COVID-19 restrictions Mr. Mitrokostas in concern to the catastrophic loss of revenue
in the restaurant industry conveyed his desire to move forward. The license as it presently exists allows for
live music, recorded music, dancing by patrons, DJ, coin operated devices. The outdoor entertainment is
restricted to acoustical music ceasing at 10:00 p.m. with the outside patio closed at 10:00 p.m.

Mr. Mitrokostas indicated during the past few years he has not received any complaints, and there has been
no issues with respect to the acoustical music. A great deal of time and energy was expended to purchase
the equipment to support the size of the band and to channel the noise. With the release of COVID-19
restrictions patrons wish to spend more time enjoying the outdoors. Mr. Mitrokostas stated the Board of
Selectmen has granted licenses for amplified music to other restaurants in Town and respectfully requested
the Selectmen support his request for outdoor amplified music.

The license allows amplified music indoors and the larger bands are scheduled indoors as they tend to
attract more patrons. Mr. Mitrokostas stated the larger bands may have been the issue with the
neighborhood complaints in the past.



*DRAFT* BOARD OF SELECTMEN MINUTES JUNE 7 2021* 8

Board of Selectmen
Minutes
June 7, 2021

Public Hearing: Request for Modification of Entertainment License of Barnstable Pizza and Pasta Co.. Inc.
dba Finally Dino’s 401 Nathan Ellis Hichway Mashpee to Allow Amplified Music on Qutdoor Premises:
Constantinos Mitrokostas: (continued)

Mr. Mitrokostas suggested the Board allow the amplified music outdoors on a trial basis to grant the
opportunity to be competitive with other restaurants offering entertainment. It was thought that a special
permit could possibly be granted on two specific dates to test the amplification of the live outdoor music.
Mr. Mitrokostas explained that in general his patrons who would be attending the events are an older crowd.

It was disclosed that currently Mr. Mitrokostas has not consulted with the neighbors to discuss his request.
The Board opened the Public Hearing to solicit comment.

Virginia Scharfenberg of 3 Pequot Avenue indicated the neighborhood had serious objections to the
amplified music five years ago. The readings were above 70 decibels. Ms. Scharfenberg indicated she was
unable to sit outdoors during this time, and the music could be heard inside. There was also problem with
loud noise affecting a very young child that could not sleep at night and a nurse had to get up early. Ms.
Scharfenberg stated that Mr. Mitrokostas did not contact the neighborhood to confer on this matter. Asa
resident she is not in favor of a test with amplification as it can vary too much with the change of volume.
The present accommodation of the license has worked very well with no complaints since 2017.

Steve Jarvis a resident of Pequot Avenue stated the decision to allow amplified music was a mistake and the
decision to take it away was the right thing to do. Mr. Jarvis in his opinion indicated it is not enough to say
we are going to do the right thing and we will be good. Mr. Jarvis also made note of the traffic concerns in
addition to the added noise in a sleepy town environment. Duncan Campbell of 4 Mohican Avenue stated
the two loudest bands played indoors over Memorial Day weekend. Why would Finally Dino’s need to
have amplified music outside if he can have amplified music inside? It was also noted a few years ago
illegal tables and chairs were arranged outside of the permitted area, people double parked, and the volume
of customers was very large.

Mr. Mitrokostas responded by stating he does not disagree. Mistakes have been learned and the manner of
his business has changed. Big bands do not work outside. During the summer months people want to be
outdoors. Mr. Mitrokostas in closing indicated he is proposing to be a good neighbor and to change the
format of the entertainment venue absent of large bands.

Motion made by Selectman Gottlieb to close the Public Hearing.

Motion seconded by Mr. Cotton.

VOTE: Unanimous. 5-0.

Roll Call Vote:
Selectman Sherman, yes  Selectman Weeden, yes Selectman Gottlieb, yes
Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Opposed, none



*DRAFT* BOARD OF SELECTMEN MINUTES JUNE 7 2021* 9

Board of Selectmen
Minutes
June 7, 2021

Public Hearing: Request for Modification of Entertainment License of Barnstable Pizza and Pasta Co.. Inc.
dba Finally Dino’s 401 Nathan Ellis Hishway Mashpee to Allow Amplified Music on Outdoor Premises:
Constantinos Mitrokostas: (continued)

Motion made by Selectman Gottlieb to deny the request of Barnstable Pizza and Pasta Co., Inc. d/b/a
Finally Dino’s to modify the Entertainment License.

Motion seconded by Selectman Weeden.

YOTE: Unanimous. 5-0.

Roll Call Vote:
Selectman Sherman, yes  Selectman Weeden, yes Selectman Gottlieb, yes
Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Opposed, none

Several members of the Board of Selectmen recommended Mr. Mitrokostas gain input from the neighbors
regarding a possible test run of the volume for sound control and to abide by the rules maintaining a certain
level of sound. In general, there is an understanding of both the applicant and the residents. A special
request would be considered for a test period with exact perimeters to include a not to exceed decibel with
limited hours.

*If the neighborhood does not support this request, the Board of Selectmen agreed there would be no
authority to test the sound.

Discussion and Approval of the following:

One-Day Liguor License: June 17.2021. 5 — 8 pm at 31 Frank E. Hicks Drive Mashpee and Waiver of Fee:
Waiver of Annual Building Inspection Fee: Llovd Wilson Jr. - Boys and Girls Club of Cape Cod:

Ruth Provost, Executive Director of the Boys & Girls Club of Cape Cod, Inc. met with the Board of
Selectmen to request support of the One Day Liquor License Application; beer and wine only for the annual
meeting planned to be held on June 17, 2021 at the club located at 31 Frank Hicks Drive, Mashpee.

Ms. Provost also requested the Board waive the Boys & Girls Club Annual Building Inspection Fee of $25.
This will help to maintain low membership costs for the children of Mashpee and Cape Cod.

Motion made by Selectman Gottlieb to approve the One Day Liquor License Application of the Boys
and Girls Club of Cape Cod, Inc. as referenced and waive the annual $25 Building Inspection Fee as
requested.
Motion seconded by Selectman Cotton.
VYOTE: Unanimous. 5-0.
Roll Call Vote:

Selectman Sherman, yes  Selectman Weeden, yes Selectman Gottlieb, yes

Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Opposed, none



*DRAFT* BOARD OF SELECTMEN MINUTES JUNE 7 2021* 10

Board of Selectmen
Minutes
June 7, 2021

Race Amity Day: June 13. 2021. 1 — 3 pm Mashpee Community Park: Teresa Donovan/Marie Stephenson:

In an effort to recognize the establishment of the second Sunday in June as Race Amity Day, a proposed
event is planned at the Community Park on Sunday, June 13, 2021 from 1:00 p.m. to 3:00 p.m. The event is
being presented by the Race Amity Day Committee, the Mashpee Inclusion & Diversity Committee and the
Baha’is of Mashpee. Approximately 75 persons are anticipated to attend the free event which will include a
guest speaker, entertainment and a family picnic.

Motion made by Selectman Weeden to support the Race Amity Day event on June 13, 2021 as
planned.

Motion seconded by Selectman Cotton.

VOTE: Unanimous. 5-0.

Roll Call Vote:
Selectman Sherman, yes  Selectman Weeden, yes Selectman Gottlieb, yes
Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Opposed, none

Town Manager Rodney Collins: Review of Amendment No. 1 to Agreement for Operation of Mashpee

Transfer Station: (“License to Use Additional Composting Area”): Gotta Do Contracting. LLC:

Town Manager Rodney C. Collins reviewed Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement for the Operation of the
Mashpee Transfer Station referenced as the Town by and through its Board of Selectmen and Gotta Do
Contracting, LLC dated October 1, 2019.

There has been concern regarding the level of noise emanating at the Transfer Station from the licensed
contractor’s composting area. Under the license approximately 5 acres is utilized for the composting of
yard waste from commercial businesses which includes grinding activities and the sale of landscape
materials,

The contractor has complied with several mitigation measures in an effort to control this issue. However,
the neighborhood is disturbed by the noise, dust and debris from the commercial enterprise operating in an
industrial scale in a relatively quiet residential area. The Board of Selectmen agreed the scale of the
operation is functioning much larger than it was envisioned.

Motion made by Selectman Gottlieb to authorize the Town Manager to enter into discussions with
Gotta Do Contracting, LLC to terminate the Composting facility at the Transfer Station.
Motion seconded by Selectman O’Hara.
VOTE: Unanimous. 5-0.
Roll Call Vote:
Selectman Sherman, yes  Selectman Weeden, yes Selectman Gottlieb, yes
Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Opposed, none



*DRAFT* BOARD OF SELECTMEN MINUTES JUNE 7 2021* 11

Board of Selectmen
Minutes
June 7, 2021

DPW Director Catherine Laurent:

Discussion and Approval of Orders of Taking Easements: Route 151 Corridor Improvement Project:

Catherine Laurent, Director of Public Works outlined the Order of Taking for Easements related to the
Route 151 Corridor Improvement Project for Phase I in a memorandum addressed to the Board of
Selectmen and Town Manger dated June 3, 2021.

In Phase I, from Old Barnstable Road to the Rotary it is necessary to acquire temporary and permanent
easements from (6) property owners on Route 151. The description of easements would affect Southport,
the Mashpee Senior Housing, Turchin, the Orenda Wildlife Land Trust, Mashpee Commons and the Roman

Catholic Bishop of Fall River.

The project is scheduled to go to bid in early July 2021. Work includes realignment/widening of the two
intersections, traffic signal upgrades, the widening of the exiting multi-use path, the installation of a
sidewalk, drainage work and road resurfacing.

The project will improve safety, congestion/traffic flow and bicycle/pedestrian accommodations.

Motion made by Selectman Gottlieb to approve the Orders of Taking Easements associated to Phase I
of the Route 151 Corridor Improvement Project.

Motion seconded by Selectman O’Hara.

VYOTE: Unanimous. 5-0.

Roll Call Vote:
Selectman Sherman, yes  Selectman Weeden, yes Selectman Gottlieb, yes
Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Opposed, none

Discussion and Approval of Award and Extensions of Annual Department of Public Works Contracts:

Contracts for Annual Bids and Extension; first year two-year bids were outlined in the Director of Public
Works memorandum of June 3, 2021 to the Board of Selectmen and Town Manager.

Motion made by Selectman Cotton to approve the first year of a two-year bid for the contracts as
outlined including Alarm Services; year one of a three-year bid, and Operation of the Wastewater
Treatment Facility at the Mashpee Middle/High School; year one of a three-year bid.
Motion seconded by Selectman O’Hara.
VOTE: Unanimous. 5-0.
Roll Call Vote:

Selectman Sherman, yes  Selectman Weeden, yes Selectman Gottlieb, yes

Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Opposed, none



*DRAFT* BOARD OF SELECTMEN MINUTES JUNE 7 2021* 12

Board of Selectmen
Minutes
June 7, 2021

Discussion and Approval of End of Year Transfer Request:

The Board of Selectmen was requested to allow a transfer of $32,000 from the FY21 DPW Salary Account
to the FY21 Transfer Station Operating Account to cover anticipated expenses for the remainder of 2021.
The shortfall is due to the increase in bulky waste and trash disposal, recycling and hazardous waste
disposal. Funds are available in the DPW Salary Account to offset the shortfall.

Motion made by Selectman Gottlieb to approve the End of Year Transfer request of $32,000 from the
FY21 DPW Salary Account to the FY21 Transfer Station Operating Account.

Motion seconded by Selectman O’Hara.

VOTE: Unanimous. 5-0.

Roll Call Vote:
Selectman Sherman, yes  Selectman Weeden, yes Selectman Gottlieb, yes
Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Opposed, none

COMMUNICATIONS & CORRESPONDENCE

Communication regarding Mashpee Commons: The Board of Selectmen was noted to be in receipt of many
letters and emails regarding the proposed expansion of Mashpee Commons. The Board being aware of the
concerns agreed to not move forward with articles for the October 2021 Town Meeting, and voted to defer
the proposal to March 2022. This is a great opportunity for the Town of Mashpee. However, the project
proposal is in its initial stages and the Board of Selectmen and Planning Board has just begun their course of
review.

Eagle Scout Program: It was announced the Eagle Scouts program remains strong with (3) new Eagle
Scouts bringing forth a total membership of 236 scouts.

Discussion and Approval of Resignation from the South Cape Beach Advisory Committee: Jeralyn Smith:

Correspondence was received from Jeralyn J. Smith dated May 21, 2021 resigning from the South Cape
Beach State Park Advisory Committee effective May 23, 2021. Ms. Smith has served on this committee for

19 years.

Motion made by Selectman Gottlieb to accept the resignation of Jeralyn Smith from the South Cape
Beach Advisory Committee with regret sending a letter of appreciation to Ms. Smith for her
dedicated service to the Town of Mashpee.
Motion seconded by Selectman Weeden.
VOTE: Unanimous. 5-0.
Roll Call Vote:

Selectman Sherman, yes  Selectman Weeden, yes Selectman Gottlieb, yes

Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Opposed, none



*DRAFT* BOARD OF SELECTMEN MINUTES JUNE 7 2021 * 13

Board of Selectmen
Minutes
June 7, 2021

Discussion and Approval of Boards. Committees and Commissions Annual Reappointments:

The Board of Selectmen reviewed the Annual Reappointment List of Boards, Committees, and
Commissions. It was recommended the new Town Engineer be appointed to the Cape Cod Water
Collaborative for a term to expire; June 30, 2022.

Motion made by Selectman Gottlieb to approve the Annual Reappointment List as amended
accepting any declines for reappointment.

Motion seconded by Selectman Cotton.

VOTE: Unanimous. 5-0.

Roll Call Vote:
Selectman Sherman, yes  Selectman Weeden, yes Selectman Gottlieb, yes
Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Opposed, none

Discussion of 2021-2022 Board of Selectmen Liaison Assignments:

It was agreed the Board of Selectmen Liaison Assignment List would be reviewed at the next meeting.

Discussion and Approval of the Sixth Amendment to the Memorandum of Understanding between
The Mashpee Wampanoag Tribe and the Town of Mashpee for the Provision of Fire Protection
and Emergency Medical Services and Law Enforcement Mutual Aid Assistance:

To prevent a lapse in service, the Board of Selectmen agreed to extend the MOU between the Town and the
Tribe for Fire Protection, Emergency Medical Services and Law Enforcement Mutual Aid assistance.

It was noted the Chief of Police and Tribal Police Chief are working on language to be brought forth at a
later date.

Motion made by Selectman Cotton to extend the Memorandum of Understanding between the
Mashpee Wampanoag Tribe and the Town of Mashpee for the provision of Fire Protection,
Emergency Medical Services and Law Enforcement Mutual Aid assistance.

Motion seconded by Selectman O’Hara.

VOTE: Unanimous. 4-0-1.

Roll Call Vote:
Selectman Sherman, yes  Selectman Weeden, abstained Selectman Gottlieb, yes
Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Opposed, none

TOWN MANAGER UPDATES

Update on John’s Pond: In concern to the abundance of milfoil, an invasive aquatic plant aggravated by
propellors from power boats this matter is being reviewed by the Conservation Department and Department
of Natural Resources. To alleviate the increased growth, new regulations will most likely require the
cleaning of propellors prior to entering other ponds.

Triple M in preparation for retail marijuana sales will be holding a soft opening on June 14 and June 15,
2021 before its grand opening on June 16, 2021 at the Echo Road facility. Board of Selectmen members are
invited to attend the opening.



*DRAFT* BOARD OF SELECTMEN MINUTES JUNE 7 2021* 14

Board of Selectmen
Minutes
June 7, 2021

ADJOURNMENT

Motion made by Selectman O’Hara to adjourn at 8:36 p.m.
Motion seconded by Selectman Cotton.
YOTE: Unanimous. 5-0.

Roll Call Vote:
Selectman Sherman, yes  Selectman Weeden, yes Selectman Gottlieb, yes
Selectman Cotton, yes Selectman O’Hara, yes Opposed, none

Respectfully submitted,

Kathleen M. Soares
Secretary to the Board of Selectmen



TOWN OF MASHPEE
BOARD OF SELECTMEN
PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE

Pursuant to Chapter 138 of Massachusetts General Laws, the Board of Selectmen, acting as the
Local Licensing Authority for the Town of Mashpee, will conduct a public hearing on the Liquor
License Amendment Application of Better Food, LLC dba Siena, 17 Steeple Street, Mashpee MA
02649, Graham Silliman, Manager for an Alteration of Premises.

Said hearing will be held on Monday, June 28, 2021 at 6:40 p.m., in the Waquoit Meeting Room
of Mashpee Town Hall, 16 Great Neck Road North, Mashpee, MA 02649.

You can submit comments and questions via email to bos@mashpeema.gov prior to the
meeting date and time.

Per order of
Mashpee Board of Selectmen

Carol A. Sherman, Chair
_ "TOWN OF MASHPEE. David W. Weeden, Vice-Chair
/229N BOARD OF SELECTMEN Andrew R. Gottlieb, Clerk
=

PUBLIC'HEARING NOTICE: John J. Cotton
i apter 13814 Ma Thomas F. O’Hara

rolA. Sherma - .
David W. Weeden, Viee:Ghalr:* ", *:4,
Andrew R, Gottlieb, Clerk
Jehn J. Cotton.

Thomas F. O'Hara’

June 18, 2021



TowN OF M ASHPEE OFFICE OF SELECTMEN

16 Great Neck Road North
Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649
Telephone - (508) 539-1401
bos@mashpeema.gov

MEMORANDUM
Date: June 23, 2021

To: Rodney C. Collins, Town Manager and
Honorable Members of the Board of Selectmen

From: Stephanie A. Coleman, Administrative Secretary ﬁ/

Re: Liquor License Amendment Application — Better Food, LLC dba Siena

Description

Discussion and approval of the License Amendment Application of Better Food, LLC dba Siena, 17
Steeple Street Mashpee MA, Graham Silliman Manager, for an Alteration of Premises.

Background

Attached for your review is the Liquor License Amendment Application of Better Food, LLC dba
Siena for a permanent alteration to the outdoor patio. The licensed premises is described as
5,338 total square feet, dining room seating 180, bar seating 22, outside patio seating 73. The
existing outdoor seating is expanded into the walk way, with tables placed six feet apart per the
approved COVID-19 temporary expansion.

The proposed changes will include extending the patio seating from Siena’s front door towards
Steeple Street. There will be a 10’ x 18’ bar with seating for fifteen (15) diners, and a wait station.
Four (4) propane heaters will be replaced with seven (7) natural gas heaters and one fire pit
supplied from underground lines. The total square footage is 2,420 with a seating capacity of 124.



The Commonwealth of Massachusetts
Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission
95 Fourth Street, Suite 3, Chelsea, MA 02150-2358
www.mass.gov/abcc

AMENDMENT-Change or Alteration of Premises Information

[ Change of Location

Chg of Location/Alteration of Premises

Application

Financial Statement

Vote of the Entity
Supporting financial records
Legal Right to Occupy

Floor Plan

Abutter's Notification
Advertisement

Alteration of Premises

® Chg of Location/Alteration of Premises
Application

Financial Statement

Vote of the Entity

Supporting financial records

Legal Right to Occupy

Floor Plan

Abutter's Notification

Advertisement

1. BUSINESS ENTITY INFORMATION

Entity Name

Municipality ABCC License Number

Bgtter Food LLC dba Siena

mashpee

}0670001 5

Please provide a narrative overview of the transaction(s) being applied for. Attach additional pages, if necessary.

Removal of some outdoor patio space and addition of other space. Addition of a modular container bar and wait station with 15 seats and a counter
for dining and waitstaff service, to improve service and reduce congestion at the only public entrance to the restaurant building

APPLICATION CONTACT

The application contact is the person who should be contacted with any questions regarding this application.

Name

Title

Email Phone

Graham Silliman

managing member

f |

2. ALTERATION OF PREMISES

2A. DESCRIPTION OF ALTERATIONS

Please summarize the details of the alterations and highlight any specific changes from the last-approved premises.

Removal of space to the north of the patio that is in the pedestrian walkway. Addition of space to the east of the patio to the
Steeple Street sidewalk. Additonal tables and chairs, and a temporary modular container with a bar and wait station with 15 seats

2B. PROPOSED DESCRIPTION OF PREMISES

Please provide a complete description of the proposed premises, including the number of floors, number of rooms on each floor, any
outdoor areas to be included in the licensed area, and total square footage. You must also submit a floor plan.

Outdoor patio will now extend straight out from Siena's front door towards Steeple Street. At the farthest point from the
restaurant door there will be a 10x18 container with a staffed bar with seating for 15 diners, and a wait station. 4 Propane
heaters will be replaced with 7 natural gas heaters and 1 fire pit supplied from underground lines

Total Sq. Footage

Number of Entrances

2420

Seating Capacity

w

Number of Exits

124 Occupancy Number 220 total

3 Number of Floors ‘1

1




AMENDMENT-Change or Alteration of Premises Information

3. CHANGE OF LOCATION
3A. PREMISES LOCATION

Last-Approved Street Address

Proposed Street Address

3B. DESCRIPTION OF PREMISES

Please provide a complete description of the premises to be licensed, including the number of floors, number of rooms on each floor, any
outdoor areas to be included in the licensed area, and total square footage. You must also submit a floor plan.

Total Sq. Footage

Number of Entrances | Number of Exits Number of Floors |

Seating Capacity Occupancy Number

3C. OCCUPANCY OF PREMISES

Please complete all fields in this section. Please provide proof of legal occupancy of the premises. (E.g. Deed, lease, letter of intent)
Please indicate by what means the applicant has to occupy the premises B]

Landiord Name

Landlord Phone Landlord Email

Landlord Address

Lease Beginning Date Rent per Month

Lease Ending Date Rent per Year

Will the Landlord receive revenue based on percentage of alcohol sales? CYes C No




4. FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

Associated Cost(s): (i.e. Costs associated with License Transaction including but not limited to: Property price, Business Assets,
Renovations costs, Construction costs, Initial Start-up costs, Inventory costs, or specify other costs):

$120,000
Associated Cost(s):

SOURCE OF CASH CONTRIBUTION

Please provide documentation of available funds. (E.g. Bank or other Financial institution Statements, Bank Letter, etc.)

Name of Contributor Amount of Contribution
internal funds from operations $120,000
Total $120,000
SOURCE OF FINANCING
Please provide signed financing documentation.
Name of Lender Amount Type of Financing Is the lender a ficensee pursuant
to M.G.L. Ch. 138.
none CYes ( No
(CYes  No
CYes " No
CYes (" No




APPLICANT'S STATEMENT

Lleraham silliman ] the: l:'.r.ole proprietor; O partner; mcorporate principal; LLC/LLP manager
Authorized Signatory

of [Better Food LLC d/b/a Siena ]
Name of the Entity/Corporation

hereby submit this application (hereinafter the “Application”), to the local licensing authority (the “LLA”) and the Alcoholic
Beverages Control Commission (the “ABCC” and together with the LLA collectively the “Licensing Authorities”) for approval.

I do hereby declare under the pains and penalties of perjury that | have personal knowledge of the information submitted in the
Application, and as such affirm that all statements and representations therein are true to the best of my knowledge and belief.

| further submit the following to be true and accurate:

(1) I understand that each representation in this Application is material to the Licensing Authorities' decision on the
Application and that the Licensing Authorities will rely on each and every answer in the Application and accompanying

documents in reaching its decision;

(2) | state that the location and description of the proposed licensed premises are in compliance with state
and local laws and regulations;

(3) I understand that while the Application is pending, | must notify the Licensing Authorities of any change in the
information submitted therein. | understand that failure to give such notice to the Licensing Authorities may result in

disapproval of the Application;

(4) I understand that upon approval of the Application, | must notify the Licensing Authorities of any change in the
ownership as approved by the Licensing Authorities. | understand that failure to give such notice to the
Licensing Authorities may result in sanctions including revocation of any license for which this Application is submitted;

(5) I understand that the licensee will be bound by the statements and representations made in the Application, including,
but not limited to the identity of persons with an ownership or financial interest in the license;

(6) I understand that all statements and representations made become conditions of the license;

{(7) I understand that any physical alterations to or changes to the size of the area used for the sale, delivery, storage, or

consumption of alcoholic beverages, must be reported to the Licensing Authorities and may require the prior approval
of the Licensing Authorities;

(8) I understand that the licensee's failure to operate the licensed premises in accordance with the statements and
representations made in the Application may result in sanctions, including the revocation of any license for which the

Application was submitted; and

(9} I understand that any false statement or misrepresentation will constitute cause for disapproval of the Application or
sanctions including revocation of any license for which this Application is submitted.

(10) I confirm that the applicant corporation and each individual listed in the ownership section of the application is in

good standing with the Massachusetts Department of Revenue and has complied with all laws of the Commonwealth
relating to taxes, reporting of employees and contractors, and withholding and remitting of child support.

i W |
Signature; jL,. N GM Date: [6/7/2021

Title: Managing Member




ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Please utilize this space to provide any additional information that will support your application or to clarify any answers
provided above.

The seating plan provided is the maximum seating of the patio. This is an outdoor patio on Cape Cod, and is subject to seasonal variations in

temerature, length of day, customer traffic, and staffing availability. In the normal course of operations tables and chairs may be removed and stored,
the container may be closed, and the patio may be reduced in size,

still within the overall space specified. These circumstances will especially apply at
the beginning and end of the patio season.




CORPORATE VOTE

The Board of Directors or LLC Managers of [Better Food LLC
Entity Name
duly voted to apply to the Licensing Authority of Mashpee and the
City/Town
Commonwealth of Massachusetts Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission on |May 4, 2021
Date of Meeting
For the following transactions (Check all that apply):
Alteration of Licensed Premises
[] Change of Location
[] other I_ j
“VOTED: To authorize leaha"‘ Sifliman J

Name of Person

to sign the application submitted and to execute on the Entity's behalf, any necessary papers and
do all things required to have the application granted.”

For Corporations ONLY

A true copy attest, A true copy attest,
y ), ~ L, N, .
/Mir‘”/; , /@%‘A Z%‘!%’\
“Corporate Officer /LLC Manager Signature Corporation Clerk's Signature

C’IZAHAM S IL..L_)M*A%) @'XZA!MM SieL pap)

(Print Name) (Print Name)




TEAE ALYd NI S

_ .D ., . ‘ . ....mmm.
..VE d4w \:w& WQZ¢.&¢%J Q\v:vm&is.imﬁi hm\mw e
cals) “ - :




recoc wd.d&\ Qq.ﬂ.@ﬂ\%& <3+.\UQ\$Q_WW\.

1Zo02Z orods QCneu\ F° fﬁme@m&\g \\NQN _ g@N

N LISFIL 0/ Ly

_+D o A _ o © 15 deays
d3w 279 GIVRVAND |, gimimwinum S e m




T~ 7
GCTEEPLE

STREET =
_ | \% IR I s =
AT Ssatyle- @3 | opmoeel 1T
2 | g, CoNTAw |

A THRLE q
TEWEL BdX

20 “TaBLE /6

CONTRMWEI
BAR COWNTERR (6

mAX gstad  J2H

Fazeme LoT




. faumeig

c0 0 e

S SRl fodloig

] OLLL # Jeusg dVvd YN3IS
NOILVAT13

e W0l = JB »\wJ

B

1437 T =

_\_» S TR e

|
e p— SIHSINIA TWNI-
. —m/ A8 GELHLOM aNy HLONIT TIVH3IA0 10vX3 m

: _ "3NYYA SISSYHO dvum SIHSINIA HOTLXT \\,“
| | .| " T T T ey "

inodsnmog

Hiuns -

e 0N =P e B L L
om0 [ e P LHSIN Afka iQ )
spein

.. N W0 -
—— ) — 2
:_.w\r.c _]| —
—

. : : mum,_\@H S

B ——

. .|.|I| |.I|h. § .Imwxu 0
P -Soioo
| — e . u'..ﬂ{.,.., ~—
0 I 1

v W0~ .6 _

SISSviododofy -

98  te==—ty
I SISSVHO 36 o L



Payment Confirmation

YOUR PAYMENT HAS PROCESSED AND THIS IS YOUR RECEIPT

Your account has been billed for the following transaction. You will receive a receipt via email and via
text message.

IS L AP D g RO T L W IOt ¥ ch S T S AT I Y
@ RN A, A R S M N LT I TR 1 9 L

E—

FILING FEES-RETAIL 06700015 Better Food LLC $200.00
| i - ) $200.00
Total Convenience Fee: $0.35
Date Paid: 6/7/2021 8:20:09 PM EDT Total Amount Paid: $200.35
Payment On Behalf Of Billing Information
License Number or Business Name: First Name:
06700015 Better Food LLC Better Food LLC
Last Name:
Fee Type: Siena Restaurant
FILING FEES-RETAIL
Address:
City:
Mashpee
State:
MA
Zip Code:
02649

Email Add_ress:




WAIVER OF NOTICE OF
SPECIAL MEETING OF MEMBERS
OF
BETTER FOOD, LLC.
(A Massachusetts Limited Liability Company)
The undersigned, being the Managing Member of the above-named Company,

states that all Members hereby waive notice of the time and place at, and of the purpose
for, which any of the Members has been, or shall be called or held on this date.

‘ /Mw @.@:——f _
Dated: % 4/ A4

Graham Silliman



BETTER FOOD, LLC.

MINUTES OF SPECIAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS

A Special Meeting of the Members of this Company was held at the Company’s
registered office on May 4, 2021.

Members present: All

Graham Silliman acted as chairman pro tempore of the meeting and as secretary
and recorded the minutes. The Chairman confirmed that a quorum of Members was

present.

The Chairman directed that the Waiver of Notice of this meeting be attached to
the minutes and made a part thereof by reference as Exhibit A.

The following matters were discussed and acted upon at this meeting:

Operation of Mashpee Location The Members discussed the seasonal patio at
Siena. Given the concern that the established operation of the patio be properly reflected
in the restaurant’s license documents, upon motion duly made, seconded, and
unanimously carried, it was

RESOLVED: The Managing Member of the Company is authorized to petition
for Change of License due to Alteration of Premises, following the ABCC standard
application form, to be submitted to the Town of Mashpee and to the ABCC..

There being no further business, upon motion duly made and seconded, the meeting was

oo Ly

Graham Silliman




AMENDMENT NQ. 3 TO INDENTURE OF LEASE

THIS AGREEMENT, made as of the 10th day of July 2019, by and between Mashpee Commons II, LLC,
having an officc at Mashpee Commons, P.O. Box 1530, Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 (hereinafter
referred to as the "Landlord"), and BETTER FOOD LLC d/b/a Sicna, having a mailing address 141 School
Street, Cotuit, MA 02635 (hereinafter referred to as the "Tenant").

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant have entered into a rental agreement dated as of August 2 2002, (the . X
"Agreement"), amended on February 13, 2013 (Amendment No. 1) and amended on Janvary 24,3018 014 %
(Amendment No. 2) relating to certain premises in the commercial development commonly referred to as
Mashpee Commons, on a tract of land located primarily in the Town of Mashpee, County of Barnstable,
Commonwealth of Massachusetts more particularly shown on Exhibit "A" annexed to the Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the parties hereto desire to amend and modify the Agreement as set forth below.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and for One Dollar ($1.00) and other good and
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, Landlord and Tenant

hereby agree as follows:

1 The amendment Term’s expiration date is hereby amended from 12/31/22 to 12/31/ 2024

IN WITNESS WHEREOF this Agreement has been duly executed and delivered as of the ; 0 day of
July, 2019,

LANDLORD: TENANT:
.’f /»]-7 .{7 /"/._I -
MASHPEE COMMONS I, LLC Yﬁ 5 >2/ {/j .
By: X/ A e | : Vi —
By:  Mashpee Commons Limited Partnership, BETTER FOOD LLC d/b/a Siena

Its sole member

By: NMS Associates, Inc., its General
Partner

By e B sker [ -
Name: _ APnUS B (APLE T
Its: FLESIDENT




From: cmsmailer@civicplus.com [mailto:cmsmailer@civicplus.com)

Sent: Friday, May 28, 2021 12:17 PM

To: Terrie Cook

Subject: [Town of Mashpee MA] Nip Ban - Retail Community Plan (Sent by Dena Rymsha,

TUNE 28,2021 Se le e o '
WARNING! EXTERNAL EMAIL: : This message originated outside the Town of Mashpee mail system. DO NOT
CLICK on links or attachments unless you are absolutely certain the content is safe.

Hello tcook,

Dena Rymsha ) B .. has sent you a message via your contact form
(https://www.mashpeema.gov/user/1933/contact) at Town of Mashpee MA.

If you don't want to receive such e-mails, you can change your settings at
https://www.mashpeema.gov/user/1933/edit.

Message:
Dear Mashpee Board of Selectmen,

I hope this note finds you well. I'm writing to you today on behalf of the Mashpee wine and spirits retail
community with regards to the ban on alcohol nips that is scheduled to go into effect on July 1.

At the meeting where you voted to pass the ban, you left the door open to repealing the ban if a nip deposit
were passed at the state level, or if liquor store owners could present a viable alternative. Attached you will
find a plan that we hope demonstrates our commitment to addressing the issue of litter head-on while
allowing us to keep nips on our shelves, which are an important source of revenue.

We want you to know that we have heard and share many of your concerns about the litter problem in
Mashpee. We do not think that banning nips at a time when small businesses are just beginning to see a
return to normalcy is the right solution. As such, we ask that you please read and consider the attached memo
and join us in implementing comprehensive, lasting solutions for the litter issue in our community.

Please feel free to reach out to me with any questions. Thank you in advance for your consideration.
Best regards,
Dena Rymsha

Co-Owner, Liberty Liquors
Mashpee, MA



TO: The Mashpee Board of Selectmen

FROM: The Retail Community of Mashpee
RE: The July 1, 2021 Ban on the Sale of Alcohol Nips
DATE: May 28, 2021

This plan was compiled by the Mashpee wine and spirits retail community in an effort to convey
our dedication to making Mashpee a cleaner, greener place and ensuring that our community

remains one that people want to live in and visit for years to come.

During the November 2020 Board of Selectmen meeting where you voted to approve the ban on
the sale of alcohol nips (50 or 100 milliliter (ml) containers), you agreed that you would
reconsider the ban if a nip deposit were passed at the state level or if liguor store owners can
present a viable alternative. Currently, there are multiple bills pending at the state level that
would add nips to the bottle deposit program in Massachusetts. The chance of any of those bills
passing before the July 1, 2021 implementation date of the ban is virtually impossible.

Therefore, it is our hope that this plan serves as an indication of our commitment and dedication
to finding a viable solution for Mashpee’s litter issues in the interim. As such, we ask that you
commit to cooperating with us to make our community a better place and repeal the ban in

advance of the July 1 implementation date.

Background

The retail community recognizes and shares your concerns around the issues of littering and
drunk driving in Mashpee. However, we believe that these complicated issues require a solution
that is more comprehensive than a ban on nips, which will not solve these issues and could
have serious negative knock-on effects. Meaningful improvement on these issues will only come
about through cooperation between local businesses, town government, and law enforcement,

supported by a statewide solution for waste management.
Economic Impact

For a full year, the small business community has been fighting to make it through this
unprecedented public health crisis. To have to remove one of the most popular products from



our shelves right at the moment that our community is beginning to open up again is both
arbitrary and unfair. The litter that clutters our streets is not only comprised of nips, and yet nips

are the only product being banned.

These small bottles can make up as much as 30% of sales depending on the store. Banning
them would cost the business community hundreds of thousands of dollars in sales that we will
have no way to make back, at a time where our community’s economic recovery is still very
fragile. We think it's worth noting that in discussing a potential ban, the city of Attleboro agreed
that it would be reasonable to implement a ban on nips on January 1, 2023 at the very earliest

because of the impact on retailers and the precarious timing coming out of the pandemic.

Additionally, we are concerned that this ban will not have its intended effect of preventing people
from buying nips, but will instead encourage them to either buy larger sizes or to take their
business to neighboring communities that do not have nip bans. If we lose an important source
of revenue and our customers begin defecting to stores in other towns, retailers could face

having to cut back hours for staff, and even layoffs.
Better Enforcement

The behaviors the Board of Selectmen are trying to mitigate by banning nips, namely littering
and driving under the influence, are already illegal. It seems clear to us that any meaningful

reduction of these illicit behaviors will not come from banning a single product.

Regarding the Board of Selectmen’s concerns about drunk driving, we agree that drunk driving
is a problem in our community and in communities around the country. We do not believe that
banning the sale of nips, which allow for portion control and convenient moderation, will improve
the problem. Removing nips from our shelves will not encourage people to drink less, but it will
compel them to buy larger sizes that make it more challenging to determine a safe and

appropriate quantity for consumption.

Furthermore, as retailers it has always been our policy to never sell alcohol to someone clearly
under the influence. That is how we train our staff, and it is a responsibility that we take very

seriously as members of the Mashpee community.

Unfortunately, we cannot control what our customers decide to do once they leave our stores.
This is true of both the littering issue and drinking and driving. What we can do, and what we



commit to continue doing, is educating our customers both on the importance and the legality of

drinking in moderation and never while driving, and of properly disposing waste.
Community Opposition

We also would like to acknowledge the 500+ signers of a fall petition in Mashpee that expressed
opposition to a ban on nips. This was not an issue that the citizens of Mashpee were ever given
the chance to weigh in on, despite hundreds of them putting their names down as standing
against the ban. While we believe that the ban should be fully and completely repealed, we feel

that this issue must at the very least be put to a town vote.

We would also like to make clear that we have been in contact with the Mashpee Chamber of
Commerce, and had in fact spoken to them in advance of the November meeting where the nip
ban was passed, despite the insinuation that the retail community had not proactively addressed
this issue. Because of the diverse membership of the Mashpee Chamber of Commerce, they do
not feel like they can take a definitive stance on the issue of the nip ban, but would maintain a

neutral stance.

Our Littering Improvement Plan Overview

Qur plan for making Mashpee a cleaner and safer place to live, work, and visit comprises three

major elements:

e Regular Cleanups and Community Fund
e Customer Education
e Support for a Statewide Solution

While we do think that the most effective solutions to truly clean up our streets without doing
damage to our local economies must come from our state lawmakers, we're doing our part in

the meantime to ensure we're creating meaningful solutions for Mashpee.
Regular Cleanups and Community Fund

The retail community is committed to sponsoring and carrying out quarterly community cleanup
days. We have already successfully held one of these cleanups on April 3 and have another
scheduled for June 5. During these cleanups volunteers pick up all trash--not just nip
bottles--which includes a mix of items from cigarette butts to fast food wrappers.



Our successful April 3 cleanup turned out more than 90 community members, who collected
more than 60 bags of litter across several pick-up routes in the town, including along Mercantile
Way and Industrial Drive.

Volunteers from our April 3 cleanup in Mashpee

We are also interested in the idea of collecting a community fund--through retailer donations, a
nip surcharge, or a combination of both--that will be used to sponsor additional cleanups, to
place new trash and recycling bins in convenient places around the community, and to educate
consumers. Any collected fund could also potentially be put towards developing solutions that
would allow for better enforcement of existing laws, such as increased policing or surveillance
cameras to capture littering in the most problematic areas.

Customer Education

The retail community is committed to educating our customers and the broader town about 1)
the importance of proper waste disposal and not littering and 2) the dangers of driving under the
influence and the importance of responsible consumption.

Every liquor store in town now has anti-litter education materials prominently displayed in our

windows, at the register, and stickers to put on bags and on the inserts that separate bottles.



Earlier this year we launched a “Bin for the Win” campaign, which reminds consumers that
Mashpee recycles the bottles they’re purchasing. Beyond recycling, we want to remind our
customers that all litter is a problem and should be disposed of properly. We have also included
a warning that when individuals litter, they could be actively harming the small businesses they

visit by increasing the likelihood that their favorite items will be banned by the town.

Below is a “Bin for the Win” sticker that is being used by retailers to encourage proper waste

disposal.

* PICKUPMASS.COM/MASHPEE #

BIN FOR
THE WIN.

Support for a Statewide Solution

There are currently multiple bills being considered by the Massachusetts State Legislature that
would provide a comprehensive solution for the issue of nip littering. Bills like H.3289 and
S.2159 would add nips to the state’s bottle deposit program, giving a monetary incentive for
consumers to recycle the bottles instead of littering them or throwing them in the trash. Despite
being an additional responsibility for retailers, we believe that adding a deposit to nips is the
best long-term solution for solving the littering issue in our community and across the state. A

nip bottle deposit is also supported by the Massachusetts Package Stores Association and

many alcohol suppliers.

We also believe that adding a deposit to nips will have a broader positive impact on our
community beyond decreasing the amount of nips that are littered. In fact, a recent study from



Keep America Beautiful demonstrated that states that include nips in their bottle deposit

programs have substantially lower levels of litter overall (not just fewer nips).

There is a strong chance that a state-level solution for nip littering will come this year, but there
is virtually no chance that this legislation will be passed before the ban goes into effect. In the
meantime, we are fully committed to doing everything we can as a retail community and as
dedicated residents of Mashpee to clean up our streets and encourage residents to follow the

law.
Conclusion

It bears repeating that the liquor retailers of Mashpee agree with you that littering and driving
under the influence are serious problems in our community and want to cooperate with you to
find lasting, comprehensive solutions that do not involve one-off product bans. We think that the
answer lies in community cooperation and statewide solutions that will support lasting reform.
We are happy to answer any questions you may have about this plan, and ask that you please
add an agenda item to either the June 7 or June 28 meeting agenda that will allow for the

potential repeal or delay of implementation of the July 1 ban.

Thank you in advance for your consideration.



Town of Mashpee ‘Department of Public Works

350 Meetinghouse Road
Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649
Telephone - (508) 539-1420
Fax - (508) 539-3894

MEMORANDUM

June 22, 2021

TO: Board of Selectmen
Rodney Collins, Town Manager
FROM: Catherine Laurent, Director (/M/
RE: Recommendation for Award of Annual Contract for Operation of the Transfer

Station, Hauling of Recyclables

Description
The Town contracts for daily operation of the Transfer Station as well as the hauling of

recyclables/bulky waste to processing facilities.

Background
The Town solicited a 3-year bid in February 2019. The RFB was advertised in the Cape Cod

Times, the Central Register, and COMM Buys. Only one bid from the current vendor was
received in response.

Recommendation
| recommend that a contract be awarded to Gotta Do Contracting LLC of Jordan, NY for FY22 as

follows:

Operation $446,275.00

Hauling of Recyclables to:

Westport $308.00 single/$615.00 double
Mansfield $335.00 single/$665.00 double
Bourne $240.00 single/$435.00 double
Dennis $240.00 single/$435.00 double

Yard Waste (if extended for 3" year)
7/1/21-12/31/21 $4,750.00
1/1/22 -6/30/22 $5,000.00



Pros and Cons

The Town does not currently have the personnel or own the equipment needed for operation
and hauling, therefore contracting for this service is necessary. Only one bid has been received
in each of the last three years in response to the RFBs issued.



OFFICE OF SELECTMEN

16 Great Neck Road North
Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649
Telephone - (508) 539-1401
bos@mashpeema.gov

MEMORANDUM

Date: June 24, 2021

To: Rodney C. Collins, Town Manager and
Honorable Members of the Board of Selectmen

From: Stephanie A. Coleman, Administrative Secretary -

Re: Temporary Sign Permit — Seaside Le Mans

Description

Discussion and approval of the Temporary Sign Permit Application for the 215t Annual Race for
the Cape Cod Community hosted by Seaside Le Mans.

Background

The applicant is requesting to place seven (7) banners, measuring at 20 square feet, at the
entrances of the Mashpee Commons for the Annual Seaside Le Mans Race. The signs will be up
beginning Saturday, September 4" through Saturday, September 11th, 2021.



s

I




TowN OF MASHPEE OFFICE OF SELECTMEN

16 Great Neck Road North
Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649
Telephone - (508) 539-1401
bos@mashpeema.gov

MEMORANDUM
Date:  June 24, 2021

To: Rodney C. Collins, Town Manager and
Honorable Members of the Board of Selectmen

From: Stephanie A. Coleman, Administrative Secretary %—/

Re: Appointment to the Sewer Commission- Alfred R. Towle

Description

Discussion and approval of the appointment of Alfred R. Towle to the Sewer Commission as a Member
At-Large, term to expire June 30, 2023.

Background

On Thursday, June 17, 2021 the Sewer Commission voted to recommend appointing Alfred Towle as a
Member-at-Large.

Recommendation

For your reference attached is correspondence from the Commission approving the recommendation and
Mr. Towle’s letter of interest.



Mgshpee, MA 02649

June 11, 2021

Ms. Terrie M. Cook
Mashpee Town Hall

16 Great Neck Road North
Mashpee, MA 02649

Dear Ms. Cook;

Thank you for the time you spent with me yesterday to explain the Sewer Commission to me. |
would like to apply for the position of Member at Large. | submit the following qualifications:

Education
BSME Mechanical Engineer University of Connecticut

MBA Management Bryant University
PhD  Higher Education Administration (ABD) New York University

Professional Experience
Director of Facilities, Associate Director of Facilities at Suffolk County Community

College, Brown University, and Brandeis University
Corporate Facilities Manager, Strategic Planner Raytheon Company
Dean of Graduate School Massachusetts Maritime Academy

Now that | am retired | would like to do something to give back to my community. With my past
experience in major construction, energy management, and sewage treatment this position

sounds like an exciting challenge.
Sincerely,
_ // e
_Alfred-R.



Terrie Cook

Attachments: Alfred Towle Sewer Commissioner Letter of Interest.pdf

From: THOMAS FUDALA

Sent: Monday, June 21, 2021 4:12 PM

To: Rodney C. Collins; Wayne E. Taylor; Terrie Cook; Carol A. Sherman
Subject: Appointment to the Sewer Commission: Towle

WARNING! EXTERNAL EMAIL: : This message originated outside the Town of Mashpee mail
system and could be harmful . PLEASE DO NOT CLICK ON LINKS OR ATTACHMENTS unless you are
absolutely certain the content is safe.

At its meeting on Thursday, June 17, 2021 the Sewer Commissioners voted 6-0 to strongly endorse the request of Alfred
Towle (see attached letter) to be appointed as an at-large member of the Commission. Mr. Towle has an excellent resume

of education and experience applicable to the Commission's work.

We therefore request that Mr. Towle's appointment be placed on the Selectmen's June 28 agenda and that Mr. Towle's
request be approved for a term to expire on June 30, 2023.

As appointment of Mr. Towle will bring the Commission to its full 7 members for the first time in a number of years, and at
a critical time in our sewer system development, your favorable action on these requests will be greatly appreciated.

Sincerely,

F. Thomas Fudala, Chair
Sewer Commission



100YydS
Sdiejly uedliawy aAlleN

(vaz) sjeaddy jo pseog Sujuoz (VD) 11uno) Asosiapy ueiaiy Aseypipy

931iWWo) uo1dNIIsu0) 13 Suluuely Aseiqn
?2lj0d (L1) A3ojouyda uonew.oyu
a4 [ed1103S1H

. suoiadsuj ﬁ_m:_u__:m
8uisnoy ajqepioyy

(vav) seniqesig/m sueauswy
U011y dARBWLILY

>om.mEmmncmmE@Emr_3 >om.mewQ:mmE@cozo&

uoo) *f uyor

eieH,0 4 sewoyy

PUISIq 19180
shemiajepn
lamag
duiuueg

(¥NQ) s@21nosay jenjep

Sdleyly uesuawy aaneN
Juswadeuey aye Agaxem-aadysep
(203) WySissan0 jeyuswuouiaug
Uoi1BAIDSUO)

(DdD) 1V uoneasasald Ayunwwod
(d1D) wesSouy juswanoidw jeyden

no3-ewaadysew@dqaode
43111109 *Y maspuy

Aosinpy yoeag ader yinos
S9JIAI9S uBwWN}

(wod-uy) aawwo) 2Jueul4
(v0D) 8uiBy uo jpunoy
3ununodoy/saunseas) s
(HO9) yileaH jo pieog
(vOg) siossassy JO paeog

A03-ewaadysew@uapaamp
Uspasam *M pineq

(x14vHQ.) T20Z ‘L INNS d31vadn SINIINSISSY NOSIVI

N3W1I313S 40 Q¥v09g 33dHSYIN

99]UWWO) SUdAT |e1dadg
uolleatday

(Mda) sy40m d1jgng
S924N0SdY uewny

(D1a3) 3uswdojanaq s1wouooy
92J3Wwo) Jo Jaquey)

nod-ewaadysew@uewsayss
uewsys "y joae)

€e0T - 120C




Town of Mashpee
Board of Selectmen
Policy No: 031

Guidelines for Board of Selectmen Liaisons

POLICY:

The Board of Selectmen shall maintain liaison assignments to the various Departments,
Boards and Committees as deemed necessary by the Selectmen in accordance with the
following guidelines:

1. Each year Selectmen liaison assignments shall be designated by the Chairman of the
Selectmen following the Board’s reorganization.

2. The goal of liaison assignments shall be to facilitate communication with the Board of
Selectmen and liaisons shall not exert any independent supervisory authority over
Town departments or Boards, which shall be the responsibility of the Town Manager.
Any complaints or problems regarding the activities of a Town Department shall be
addressed through the Town Manager.

3. Liaisons shall endeavor to meet with each assigned department for the purpose of
sharing information at least one time per year.

4. It is recognized that liaison assignments shall not prevent any Selectmen from
requesting information from any department.

Adopted by the Mashpee Board of Selectmen
November 13, 1995



‘Town of Mashpee

16 Great Neck Road North
Mashpee, Massachuseits 02649
Telephone (508) 539-1400

MEMORANDUM

June 10, 2021

To: Town Manager Rodney C. Collins and the Board of Selectmen
From: Mary K. Bradbury, Recreation Director

Re: Request for approval by the Board Selectmen for seasonal No Parking designation along the
entry road to the State Boat Ramp (off Rte. 130)

| am requesting that the Board of Selectmen consider a seasonal, “No Parking” designation along both
sides of the entry road to the State Boat Ramp.

The rationale for my request is three-fold.

1. People without beach stickers or passes are parking along the entry road and walking through
the woods to the Attaquin Beach area, thereby avoiding the staffed gate entrance on Lake Ave.
Our current policy does not allow non-resident walk-ins access to the beach.

2. People launching boats at the boat ramp often have additional people joining them who are
driving a separate vehicle. They are parking along the road and then joining the people on the
boat.

3. The additional cars parked along the entry road are incurring additional litter and trash, and
potentially limiting emergency vehicle access to the boat ramp if they are not parked correctly.

Respectfully submitted,

/ f / LA AL AAASTL /

F f
Mary K. Bradpquy ,-/
Recreation Dir__elctor



ACCEPTANCE OF UNIT DEED

The Town of Mashpee, acting by and through its Board of Selectmen
pursuant to the authority granted by G.L. c.40, §14, the vote under Article 6 of the
May 3, 2021 Special Town Meeting, a certified copy of which is attached hereto,
and every other authority appertaining, hereby accepts from RJB Management,
LLC. the Unit Deed, dated June , 2021, attached hereto and recorded
herewith.

WITNESS our hands and seal this day of June 2021.

TOWN OF MASHPEE
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

Carol A. Sherman - Chair

David W. Weeden - Vice Chair

Andrew R. Gottlieb - Clerk

John J. Cotton

Thomas F. O’Hara
COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS
Barnstable, ss.

On this day of June, 2021, before me, the undersigned notary public
personally appeared — and proved to me through satisfactory
evidence of identification, which were to be the
person whose name is signed on this Deed, and swore or affirmed to me that the
contents of this document are truthful and accurate to the best of their knowledge
and belief and acknowledged to me that they signed it voluntarily for its stated
purpose as the Board of Selectmen for the Town of Mashpee.

Notary Public:
My Commission Expires:



Town of Mashpee
Mashpee High School

500 Old Barnstable Road
Mashpee, MA 02649
Special Town Meeting
Monday, May 3, 2021
Town Meeting opened at 7:19 PM
Quorum 100
Voters Present 464
Article 6

To see if the Town will vote to appropriate and transfer the sum of $850,000 from the Capital Stabilization
Fund to the Natural Resources Capital Account for the purchase and customization of facilities for the
Department of Natural Resources and to authorize the Board of Selectmen and/or Town Manager, pursuant
to and upon completion of the G.L. c. 30B real property procurement process, to acquire by purchase such
real property interests as the Selectmen may deem suitable to address the needs of the Department of Natural
Resources Department upon such terms and conditions as the Selectmen shall deem to be in the Town’s
interest, or take any other action relating thereto.

Submitted by the
Board of Selectmen

Explanation: the Capital Improvement Program Committee voted unanimously to recommend that the
Town use Capital Stabilization Funds to purchase existing condominium units and customize those units to
house the Department of Natural Resources and further to use Capital Stabilization Funds to be voted at the
May Special Town Meeting for the funds to become available during Fiscal Year 2021.

FISCAL YEAR 2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

PLANNING & CONSTRUCTION

DNR Facility $ 850,000

The Board of Selectmen recommends approval of Article 6 by a vote of 5-0
The Finance Committee recommends approval of Article 6 by a vote of 7-0

Motion made by Selectman Gottlieb

Motion: I move that the Town vote to appropriate and transfer the sum of $850,000 from Capital
Stabilization Fund to fund the Natural Resources capital expense account.

Motion passes unanimously at 7:26 PM

A TRUE COPY, ATTEST

L.

TOWN CLERK OF MASHPEE, MA




THE 31 MERCANTILE WAY CONDOMINIUM

UNIT DEED

RJB Management, LLC, a Massachusetts Limited Liability Company having a
mailing address of 41 Sparhawk Path, Marshfield, MA 02050

for SIX HUNDRED TWENTY-FIVE THOUSAND AND 00/100 ($625,000.00) Dollars
paid

grants to the Town of Mashpee, a municipal corporation and political subdivision
of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, acting by and through its Board of
Selectmen, having an address of 16 Great Neck Road North, Mashpee,
Massachusetts 02649 (“Grantee”)

with QUITCLAIM COVENANTS

Units 6 and 7, 31 Mercantile Way, of THE 31 MERCANTILE WAY CONDOMINIUM,
a Condominium situated in Mashpee, Barnstable County, Massachusetts,
established by Master Deed dated June 23, 2020 and recorded with the
Barnstable County Registry of Deeds in Book 33012, Page 253, together with an
undivided percent of interest in the common areas and facilities, as shown and set
forth in said Master Deed together with the right to use limited common areas, if
any, reserved to said units, as set forth in said Master Deed and shown on
Condominium Site Plan recorded at Plan

Book 686, Page 62.

Said Condominium Units are conveyed subject to and with the benefit of (a) the
Master Deed and Declaration of Trust of The 31 Mercantile Way Condominium
which Declaration of Trust is recorded in Book 33012, Page 227 and (b) all other
rights, restrictions, and easements of record.

The units conveyed are laid out as shown on plans filed with said Master Deed
and to which is affixed a verified statement in the form provided in G.L. c. 183A, §
9. They are subject to and with the benefit of the obligations, restrictions, rights,
and liabilities contained in G.L. c. 183A, as may be amended from time to time the
Master Deed and the By-Laws filed therewith.

The Condominium and its units are intended for commercial purposes and other
uses permitted by the applicable Zoning Ordinances and permits issued by the
Town of Mashpee and as set forth in the Master Deed.

Said Units are conveyed together with:

(a) an easement for the exclusive use of certain common areas of the
Condominium to the extent set forth in the Master Deed and referenced, if any, on
said Plan;



(b) an easement for the continuance of all encroachments by the Unit on
any other Unit or the common areas and facilities existing as a result of
construction of the Buildings, or which may come into existence hereafter as a
result of the reconstruction, repair, shifting, settlement or other movement of any
portion of the improvements comprising the Condominium;

(c) the right to use the common areas and facilities in common with other
Units and others entitled thereto in the Condominium, except for the common
areas subject to the exclusive uses by other Unit Owners, if any, described in the
Master Deed which are reserved for the use of the applicable Unit to which such
rights of exclusive use appertain; and

(d)  any other appurtenant rights of the Units provided in the Master Deed
or the Declaration of Trust of The 31 Mercantile Way Declaration of Trust (the
“Declaration of Trust”), dated June 23, 2020 and recorded in Book 33012, Page
227 the By-Laws set forth in Article V of the Declaration of Trust and the Rules
and Regulations appended thereto.

The Units are conveyed subject to:

(a) easements in favor of all other Units and in favor of the common areas
and facilities for the continuance of all encroachments of such other Units or
common areas and facilities on the Unit existing as a result of construction of the
Buildings, or which may come into existence hereafter as a result of the
reconstruction, repair, shifting, settlement or other movement of any portion of
the improvements comprising the Condominium,;

(b)  the provisions of the Master Deed, the Declaration of Trust, the By-
Laws set forth in the Declaration of Trust and any rules and regulations
promulgated thereunder, as the same may be amended from time to time by the
recording of an instrument effectuating the same, which provisions, together with
any amendments thereto, shall constitute covenants running with the Land and
shall bind any person having at any time any interest or estate in the Unit, its
family, servants, invitees or visitors, as though such provisions were recited and
stipulated in their entirety herein,

(c) the rights of the Declarant (as defined in the Master Deed) to amend
the Master Deed in accordance with the provisions thereof and any other rights
and easements in favor of, and reserved by, the Declarant as otherwise provided in
the Master Deed;

(d) easements, covenants, agreements and restrictions of record, as the
same may now be in force and applicable;

(e) such taxes for the current fiscal year as are not now due and payable;

H Special Permit issued by the Town of Mashpee through its Zoning
Board of Appeals dated August 5, 2019 and recorded in Book 32210, Page 191.

(2) Declaration of Protective Covenants, Restrictions, Easements and
Reservations recorded in Book 22327, Page 13.



The Grantee, by accepting this Unit Deed hereby consents, for the Grantee,
the Grantee’s heirs, administrators, executors, successors and assigns and all
other persons claiming by, through or under Grantee, or any other party
whatsoever, to Declarant’s right to amend the Master Deed as set forth in, and
subject to the provisions of, Section 11 thereof, including, without limitation, the
granting or exercise of any right or easement in favor of, and reserved by,
Declarant as described in the Master Deed.

This conveyance does not constitute all or substantially all of the LLC’s Assets and
is in the ordinary course of Grantor’s business.

For Grantor’s title, see Deed recorded in Book 33021, Page 164.

Said Units are conveyed and accepted by the Board of Selectmen as authorized by
the vote under Article 6 of the Mashpee Special Town Meeting on May 3, 2021, a
certified copy of which is recorded herewith.

No Deed Stamp tax is due or applicable to this Deed pursuant to M.G.L. 64D, §1.

Executed as a sealed instrument this day of June, 2021.

RJB Management, LLC

By: Robert J. Bothwell, Manager

By: Susan Bothwgf, Manager

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS
Barnstable, ss.

On this day of June, 2021, before me, the undersigned notary public
personally appeared Robert J. Bothwell and Susan Bothwell and proved to me
through satisfactory evidence of identification, which were B
to be the person whose name is signed on this Deed, and swore or affirmed to me
that the contents of this document are truthful and accurate to the best of their
knowledge and belief and acknowledged to me that they signed it voluntarily for
its stated purpose as Managers of RJB Management, LLC.

Notary Public:
My Commission Expires:



June 28, 2021

Commissioner Ronald Amidon, Department of Fish and Game
Commissioner Jim Montgomery, Department of Conservation and Recreation
Commissioner Martin Suuberg, Department of Environmental Protection

Dear Commissioners:

The Board of Selectmen is strongly opposed to the multi-purpose machine gun range proposed by the
Massachusetts National Guard on the Upper Cape Water Supply Reserve and respectfully urge you, in
your role as the members of the Environmental Management Commission, to deny this project.

The Guard’s self-assessment of this project was woefully inadequate and failed to provide the necessary
depth of analysis required of a project of this nature. It glossed over likely impacts of regional significance
that would occur if this project were built. The proposed machine gun range, with its unprecedented
amount of land clearing and proposed uses that will threaten public water supplies, endanger significant
habitats and rare species, and adversely impact regional carbon sequestration efforts, is simply not
compatible with the intended purposes of the Upper Cape Water Supply Reserve established by state law
through Chapter 47 of the Acts of 2002.

Unfortunately, the Guard has completely ignored the overwhelming public opposition to this project.
Rather than listening to and engaging with the community, the Guard is forcing the predetermined
conclusions of their self-analysis on us. In doing so, they have failed to gain the public’s trust as responsible
stewards of the reserve.

The machine gun range is a project of convenience, not necessity. The environmental integrity of the
Upper Cape Water Supply Reserve, and the obligation under state statute to protect water resources and
habitat found there and to only allow light military training activities that are compatible with those
purposes, should not be sacrificed as a matter of convenience.

We call on the Environmental Management Commission to deny this project.

Sincerely,

Carol A. Sherman, Chairman

David W. Weeden, Vice-Chairman

Andrew R. Gottlieb, Clerk

John J. Cotton, Selectman

Thomas F, O’Hara, Selectman

cc: Governor Charles Baker



